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Ms. Blanca Bayo

Director

Florida Public Service Commission . Y

2540 Shumard Oak Bouievard \ l S Tf)
Tallahassee, F1. 32399-0850

Re:  Application for Authority to Transfer Control
of Access Network Services, Inc.

Dear Ms. Bavo

Enclosed please find an original and 12 copies of the Application for Approval of a
Transfer of Control of Access Network Services, Inc. from the existing shareholders of
Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. 1o Intermedia Communications Inc. for filing with the
Commission.  Also enclosed is a duplicate copy of this filing. Please date-stamp the
duplicate and return it in the self-addressed, postage-paid envelope provided.

Please do not hesitate to call me at (202) 955-9883 if you have any guestions
regarding this filing.

Respectfully Su
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ORIGINAL

Before the
STATE OF FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Application of )

)

)
INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC., )
SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC. ) Docket No.
and ACCESS NETWORK SERVICES, INC. )

)

)
For Approval of a Transfer of Control )

APPLICATION

Intermedia Communications Inc. ("ICI"), Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc.
("STFI") and Access Network Services, Inc. (“ANSI") (collectively the “Applicants™), by
their attorneys, hereby respectfully request authority from the Flonida Public Service
Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to Sections 364.33 and 3164.345 of the Flonda
Statutes, to transfer control of ANSI from the current shareholders of STFI 10 ICI. ANSI
currently 1s certified to provide intrastate telecommunications services in Florida, and will
continue to operate as a telecommunications services provider in Flonda after the transter of
control.' Due to the timing of the Applicants’ business plans, they respectfully request that !

the Commission issue an order approving the transfer of contro! on or before March 1,

1998 In support of their Application, the Applicants provide the following information:

TR

[
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Please note that in July 1997, the sharcholders of STF] approved & t-unsaction whereby control ol
STFI. und thereby ANSI, would be trunsferred 1o Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. The Commussion approved this
transaction by order dated October {3, 1997, Docket No. 971026 TP. Thal trunsactim, however, has heen
superseded by the subsequent sale of the compuany to ICl as reported herein and the carhier transaction with Tel
Save Holdings, Inc. will not be consummated.
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I. THE APPLICANTS

IC1 is a publicly held Delaware corporation headquartered at 3625 Queen Palm Drive,
Tampa, Florida 33619. ICI is a rapidly growing provider of integrated telecommunications
services offering a full range of local, long distance and enhanced data services to business
and government customers, long distance carriers, Internet service providers and wireless
communicahons companies. [CI operates as both a facilities-based and resale carrier. ICl s
authorized by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC*) to provide interstate and
international telecommunications services. ICI also is authorized to provide intrastate toll
telecommunications services in all 50 states and the District of Columbia. ICI is authortred
to provide local telecommunications services in 35 states and the District of Columbia,
including Florida. [CI received its authority to provide intrastate telecommunications
services in Flonida on June 6, 1987 in Docket No. 870084-TI (toll), October 11, 1995 in
Docket No. 950954-TX (local), and May 29, 1996 in Docket No. 960199-TS (STS). Its
qualifications are, therefore, a matter of record before the Commission.

STFI is a publicly held Delaware corporation traded on the NASDAQ stock market
under the stock symbol "STCH".? It maintains its principal office at 100 Great Meadow
Road, Suite 104, Wethersfield, Connecticut 06109. STFI is the parent company of Shared
Technologies Fairchild Comnunications Corp., which, in turn, is the parent company of
ANSI, a certificated provider of intrastate telecommunications services in Florida. ANSI 1s
authorized by the FCC to provide interstate and international telecommunications services.

ANSI also 15 authorized 1o provide intrastate toll telecommunications services in 25 states,

Copies of STFI's most recent SEC Forms 10-K and 10-Q are appended hereto as Atuchments A and B
respectively

‘
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including Flornida. ANSI is authonized to provide local telecommunications services o 16
states, including Florida. ANSI received ils authority to provide intrastate
telecornmunications services in Florida on January 27, 1994 in Docket No. 930757 TX,
Certificate No. 3512 (toll), on January 27, 1997 in Docket No. 961424-TX, Order No. PNC-
97-0079-FOF-TX (local), and on February 29, 1996 in Docket No. 951518-TP, QOrder No.
PSC-96-0314-FOF-TP, Centificate No. 1669 (STS). as amended by Order No. PSC-96

0314A-FOF-TP, issued Apnil I, 1996,

il DESIGNATED CONTACTS
The designated contacts for purposes of this Apphcation are:

James J. Freeman

Marieann Z. Machida

KELLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP

1200 19th Street, N.W_, Suite 500

Washington, D.C. 20036

Tel. (202) 955-9600

Fax (202) 955-9792

e-mail - jfreeman@kelleydrye.com
mmachida@kelleydrye.com

Copies of all correspondence, notices, inquines and orders should also be sent

For ICl: For STEL and ANSL:
Patricia A. Kurlin Allan C. Hubbard

General Counsel Regulatory Counsel

INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC, SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC.
3625 Queen Palm Drive 300 West Service Road

Tampa, Flonda 33619 P.O. Box 10804

Chantilly, Virgima 20153



HI. R1QUEST POR APPROVAL TO TRANSFER CONTROL OF ANSI 10 ICI

On November 25, 1997, ICI and STFI entered into a definitive Agreement and Plan
of Merger ("Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which ICI will acquire STFI by purchasing all
of the company’s outstanding shares from the current STFI shareholders.’ Since STF1 15 the
ultimate parent company of ANSI, the acquisition of STFI by ICI will result in a transter of
uttimate control of ANSI to ICI. The transfer of control will be accomplished through use of
a reverse triangular merger whereby a newly formed, special-purpose subsidiary of [CI,
Moonlight Acquisition Corp., will be merged with and into STFL. STFI will be the
surviving entity, and will thereafter be a wholly owned subsidiary of ICI. ANSI will
continue to exist as a wholly owned subsidiary of STFI. The boards of directors of 1€ and
STFI have approved the Merger Agreement.*

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, each share of issued and outstanding STF!
common stock, par value $.004 per share, will be exchanged for $15.00, payable, without
interest, to the holder of each such share. ICI also is acquiring outstanding shares of STFI's
preferred and convertible preferred stock. The total cost of the acquisition is estimated by
ICT to be approximately $749 million and will be paid from existing cash reserves.
Consummation of this transaction will not in any way undermine the financial condition of
ICI or 15 ability to continue to provide high quality telecommunications services to custoniers
in Flonida.

After the transfer of control, ANSI will survive for an indefinite period as a wholly

owned subsichary of STFI, and STFI will be a subsidiary of 1C1. ANSI will continue 10

' The Merger Agreemeat can be provided 1o the Cormsrussion on a confidential basis upon reguest
‘  Chans depicting the transfer of control are appended hercti us Attachment C.
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ANSI's and ICI's ability to compete in the market for telecommunications services in
Florida. Both companies will benefit from increased economies of scale that will permit
them to operate more efficiently and thus to compete more effectively. Over time,
consumers in Florida will benefit from the availability of increased local and long distance
telecommunications product and service options.

WHEREFORE, the Applicants respectfully request that the Commission authorize a
transfer of control of ANSI from the existing shareholders of STFI to ICIL.

Respectfully submitted,

/] INTERMEDIA C
/L':’/
JamesJ Freg
Marieann Z. Ms
KELLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP
1200 19th Street, N.W.
Suite 500

Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 955-9600

SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC. and
CCESS NETWORK SHRVICES, INC.

o &

Allan C. Hubbard

Regulatory Counsel

SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC.
300 West Service Road

P.O. Box 10804

Chantilly, Virginia 20153-0804

(703) 478-5772

Their Attorneys

Dated: Decemnber 9, 1997




VERIFICATION

1 represent Intermedia Communications Inc. and am authorized to make this
statement on 1ts behalf. [ have reviewed the foregoing document and declare the statemnents
thercin concermng Intermedia Communications Inc. to be true of my own knowledge, except
as to matters whuch are stated on information and belief. As to those matters, 1 believe them

1o be true. 1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
2 /’ -
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF LOUDOUN, to-wit:

VERIFICATION

I am Regulatory Counsel for Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Access Network
Services Inc. and am authorized to make this statement on their beha'f. | have read the
foregoing document and declare the statements therein regarding the aforesaid parties to be
true of my own knowledge. except as to matters which are stated on information and belief
As to those matters, [ believe them to be true. | declare under penalty of perjury that the

foregoing is true and correct.
./

Name: Allan C. Hubbard

Title:  Regulatory Counsel

Date: (7’/"/97

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me in my County atoresaid this ! 1th
day of December. 1997

Melinda I.. Keuroglian, Notary Public

My Cominission Expires: 93099






SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Kk

X ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 1) OR 15{(d} OF THE SECURITIE®
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19%¢

ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 CR 15(d} OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD TG

Commission File Number (Q-17366

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter;

Delaware 87-0424%""
(State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation {I.R.S. Employer
or organization) Identification No.)
10C Great Meadow Road, Suite 104 Wethersfield, Connectjcut v
(Address of principal executive offices) (21 o

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (860Q) 258-247"

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: Nonr

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

common Stock. $.004 par value

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all
reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitiec
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports:
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 9C
days. Yas X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant tc
Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. (X)

The aggregate market value of the registrant's Common Stock held by
nonaffiliates as of March 21, 1997 was approximately 549,350,000,
based on the average of the closing bid and asked prices as reported
on such date in the over-the-counter markat.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's
classes of Common Stock, as of March 20, 1997.

15,704,399 shares of Common Stock
$.004 par value

The following document is hereby incorporated by reference into Part
II1 of this Form 10-K: The registrant's Proxy Statement for its
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on April 30, 1997 tc be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in definitive form
on or before April 15, 1997,




PART I
Item
Bus inesg

(a) Genaral Development of Business - Shared
Technologies Fairchild Inc., which was incorporated as Sharead
Technologies Inc. on January 30, 1986, its subsidiaries and
affiliated partnerships (collectively, the "Company") are
engaged in providing shared telecommunications services ("STS")
and telecommunication systems ("Systems®") to tenants of modern,
multi-tenant office buildings. As an STS provider, the Company
generally obtains the exclusive right from a building owner (the
owner/Developer™) to install an on-site communications system,
called a private branch exchange ("PBX"), or an off-site
communications system, called Centrex, and to market
telecommunications and office automation services and equipment
to tenants.

In May 199)1, the Company acquired the stock of Boston
Telecommunications Company(BTC), a provider of STS in the Boston
area. The Company paid $1,097,000 consisting of acquisition cost
less cash received of $197,000, stock purchase warrants valued at
$300,000 and a $600,000 promissory note payable. In May 1989,
the Company acquired interests in four entities providing STS in
the greater Chicago area from Shared Services, Inc. and I.S5.E.,
Inc. for $180,005. Additicnally, in February 1989, the Company
purchased the stock of Multi-Tenant Services, Inc. (MTS) a former
division of BellSouth Corporation for $4,048,000 of which
$391,000 was paid in cash and in payment of the balance the
Company assumed existing lease obligations. MTS was a provider
of STS in nine metropolitan areas.

During 1992, the Company completed a restructuring due
to its working capital deficit and the maturity of its principal
financing arrangements which were due to the FDIC, as receiver
for the Company's principal lender. The restructuring included
Shared Technologies Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. The
restructuring resulted in the Company recording a gain of
$5,162,000 before related expenses of $1,361,000 for consulting
fees related to the restructuring and income taxes of $45,000.
As a result of the restructuring, approximately $900,000 of
vendor payables and $1,%00,000 of capital lease obligations were
forgiven and $3,300,000 of vendor payables were converted to
three year non-interest bearing notes payable (see Note 7 of
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements). Additionally, a
settlement agreement was entered into with the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") as receiver for the Company's
principal lender which resulted in the Company paying off its
term loan and revolving credit arrangements and recognizing a
gain of approximately $2,700,000. 1In April 1994 the Company
entered into a settlement agreement which provides for the
payment of $750,000 plus interest at 10% which resulted in an
accrued extracrdinary loss of $150,000 in 1993.

In connection with the restructuring, the Company also

raised equity capital of approximately $5,780,000 from certain
instituticnal investors, net of expenses. A firm, cne of whose
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principals was a director and stockholdar of the Company, at the
t:me, served as Underwriter for the offering. The Company paid
this firm underwriting commissions and expenses totaling 5446,750
for the offering. No other parties to the restructuring were
affiliated with the Company. The Company alsc entered into
agreements with Series A and B Preferred Stockholders to convert
their holdings, including $327,920 of the accrued dividends
related thereto, into Series C Preferred Stock. As part of this
conversion, 540,990 of the accrued dividends was forgiven by the
stockholders.

In September 1992 the Company effected a one-for-four
reverse stock split of Common Stock and increased the par value
of Common Stock from $.001 to $.004 per share. All per share
amounts contained herein have been retroactively adjusted to
reflect this split.

In December and October 1993 the Company commenced
management and subsequently completed the acquisition of certain
assets and liabilities of Road and Show South, Ltd. and Road and
Show Cellular East, Inc., respectively. The purchase price for
South was 51,261,611 which represents $46,111 cash and an
obligation to issue 272,763 shares of the Company's common stock.
The purchase price for East was $750,245 which represents
$209,245 cash and an obligation to issue 121,403 shares of the
Company's common stock.

In June 1994, Shared Technologies Inc., completed its
acquisition of the partnership interests of Access
Telecommunication Group, L.P.("Access") for $9,000,000, subject
to certain post closing adjustments. The $9,000,000 includes
$4,000,000, paid at closing with the proceeds from the private
placement sale of approximately 1,062,000 shares of the Company's
Commen Stock, and the issuance to the sellers of $400,000 shares
of Preferred E stock, valued at 51,500,000 and 700,000 shares of
Preferred F stock valued at $3,500,000.

In April 1995, the Company's subsidiary, Shared
Technologies Cellular, Inc. (“STC"), completed an initial public
offering. Prior te this date, STC was approximately an 86% owned
subsidiary of the Company. STC sold 950,000 shares of Common
stock at $5.25 per share which generated net proceeds of
approximately $3,274,000 after underwriter's commissions and
offering expenses. The net effect of the public offering on the
Company's consolidated financial statements was a gain of
approx:mately $1,375,000.

On June 30, 1995, the Company purchased all of the
outstanding capital stock of Qffice Telephone Management
("OTM"). OTM provides telecommunication management services
primarily to businesses located in executive office suites.
The purchase price was $2,13%,000, of which $1,335,000 was paid
in cash, and the balance through the issuance of a $800,000 note,
including interest at B8.59% per annum, through June 30, 2005.

During December 1995, STC affected a private placement
of approximately $3,000,000 in Series A voting preferred stock to
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third parties. Although the Company's ownership percertage of
common stock of 59.3% did not change, the voting rights assigned
to the preferred stock reduced the Company's voting interest in
STC to 42.7%, resulting in the Company's loss of voting control
of STC. Accordingly, as a result of this atock issuance, the
Company has accounted for STC on an egquity basis with all assets
and liabilities of STC eliminated and a non-current asset
recorded to reflect the Company's equity investment in STC.

In March 1996, the Coumpany's stockholders approved and
the Company consummated a merger with Fairchild Industries, Inc.
("FII") with and into the Company. The Company simultaneously
changed its name to Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. ("STFI").
In connection with the merger, the Company issued 6,000,000
shares of common stock, 250,000 shares of cumulative convertible
preferred stock with an initial $25,000,000 liquidation
preference and 200,000 shares of special preferred stock with a
$20,000,000 initial liquidation preference. In addition the
Company raised approximately $111,000,000, net of expenses
through the sale of 12 1/4% senior subordinated discount notes
due 2006, and approximately $123,000,000 (of an avajilable
$145,000,000) in loans from a credit facility with Credit Suisse,
Citicorp USA, Inc. and NationsBank. The funds were used gprimarily
for the retirement two series of FII's preferred stock and of
certain liabilities assumed from FII in connection with the
merger and the retirement of the Company's existing credit
facility.

In June 1996, the Company entered into a management
agreement to serve as manager of ICS Communications, Inc.
("ICS"), a Dallas-based provider of cable and telephone services
to over 600 residential properties nationwide. The management
agreement is on a month-to-month basis, and was still in effect
as of March 20, 1997. Additionally, the Company entered into a
letter of intent with ICS in June 1996, which contemplates that
the Company will become a minority equity holder of ICS, while
continuing in the capacity of manager of the ICS business.

In March 1997, the Company entered into a similar short-
term agreement to manage the shared telecommunjications services
business of GE Capital-ResCom, L.P.("ResCom"), which provides
services to tenants of approximately 1,000 residential complexes
nationwide. Similar to the ICS agreement, it is contemplated
that the Company will obtain a minority equity position in the
ResCon business, while continuing toc serve as manager.

In addition to the above transactions, the Company has
continued to pursue and achieve internal growth in its existing
operations.

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments - The
Company is engaged in one industry segment, the
telecommunications industry, providing a wide range ot
telecommunications and office automation services and equipment.

(c) Narrative Description of Business




(1) (i) Products and Services

The Company provides STS to commercial tenants in office
buildings in which the Company typically has installed a
dedicated private branch sxchange (PBX) switch under exclusive
agreement with the building owner, theraeby permitting the
Company's customers to obtain all their telephone and
telecommunications needs from a single source and a single point
of contact. Under multi-year contracts that usually extend
through the terms of the tenants' leases, the C pany offers 1ts
customers access to services provided by regulated communicat.ons
companies, such as local, discounted long distance, international
and "800" telsphone services. The Company also provides
telephone switching equipment and telephones, as well as voice
mail, telephone calling cards, local area network wiring, voice
and data cable installation. Other services provided by the
Company lnclude audio conferencing, automatic call distribution
services and message center capability. 1In addition, the
Company's customers receive a convenient single monthly
customized invoice for all services provided by the Company.

Historically, the Company has zarketed its services to
small and medium-sized (25 to 250 lines) business customers who
are not otherwise able to take advantage of economies of scale iIn
procuring their telecommunications services. "One-stop shopping"
is previded for these customers' telecommunications needs without
the substantial initial capital costs that would be incurred
with the purchase of the same telecommunications system from
multiple suppliers. The Company offers its customers (1)
services that would otherwise not be cost-effective for, or
readily available to, such customers due to the size of their
business; (ii) reduced capital expenditures and space
requirements by allowing its customers to utilize the Company's
existing infrastructure and centrally located hardware; and (iii)
comprehensive maintenance programs. Additional services are
available as the customer's business and telecommunications
needs grow. The Company also provides its customers with the
benefits of responsive on-site service.

STS providers, such as the Company, negotiate and enter
into long-term telecommunications agreements with owners and
developers of office buildings. Under these agreements, the STS
provider typically has the right for a period of up to ten or
more years to install switching equipment, wiring and telephones
capable of serving all of the tenants in an office building.
Typically, the right to install a dedicated PBX switch is
exclusive. Such agreements provide for the owners to assist the
5TS provider by identifying potential tenant customers.
Generally, an 5TS provider leases and pays rent to the owner for
switch room space in the building and, under certain
circumstances, may agree to provide an incentive teo the owner. By
contracting with an STS provider, an owner will have the benefit
of a state-of-the-art telecommunications infrastructure in its
building and be able to offer its tenants the ability to access
sophisticated telecommunications services.
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Telec

The Company's telecommunications systems business
provides end users with a wide variety of telecommunications
products and services and offers its customers the flexibility *o
expand or enhance their telecommunications systems as their
businesses change. Through its telecommunications systems
business, the Company is also able to provide customized
telecommunications solutions to those of its customers choosing
to purchase, rather than lease, equipment. Under the trade name
Telecom 2000(, the Company sells directly to end users a wide
selection of telecommunications equipment produced by leading
manufacturers, including Northern Telecom, Inc., AT&T, NEC, Qctel
Communications Corporation, Centigram Communications Corporation
and Active Voice Corporation. Through a staff of field and other
engineers, the Company designs and installs all of its customers'
telecommunications infragtructure needs in a complete turn-key
telecommunications system including post-installation
maintenance. Post-installation maintenance consists of complete
maintenance of the customer's entire telecommunications systenm,
including warranty and post-warranty maintenance contracts,
upgrades and adds, moves and changes. Telecommunications systems
installations include PBX and key telephone systems, voice mail,
autcomated call distribution systems and entire call centers. The
Company also provides a variety of long distance services
including basic services, "800" services, calling cards,
international calling and various other network services. The
Company provides telecommunications systems to commercial
customers and government agencies with systems ranging in size
from 15 to several thousand lines.

Customer service options range from nine-to-five
coverage to 24 hours a day, 365~days a year maintenance
contracts. The Company also contracts with customers to staff
their facilities with dedicated service personnel under long term
contracts. As of December 31, 1996, the Company provided
telecommunications systems nationwide, including maintenance and
other services covering in excess of 500,000 customer lines.

Cellular

The Company owns an aquity investment in Shared
Technologies Cellular, Inc. {("STC") which is a national cellular
services provider, offering rental or prepaid services to over
€40 of the approximately 950 Cellular Geographical Service Areas
("CGSAY) within the United States, and cellular activatiocon
services in over 690 CGSA's. As a reseller or agent for cellular
and PCS carriers, STC can offer cellular service to approximately
94 percent of the US population.

o

As of December 31, 1996, the Company was providing STS
in 28 metropolitan areas. The Company is able to realize
significant cperating economies by sharing management,
administrative, sales and technical staff across a number of
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leccations. The following table sets forth as of December 31,
1996, on a city-by-city basis, the Net Leaseable Square Feet and
the Potential Lines of Service in each location where the Company
provides STS to tenants.

Lcasable Square  Total Poteomal  Total Lines

Locanon Eest Lines 1o Service

Atlanta 13,607,723 45,359 11,250
Ausun 400,000 1,333 3,077
Balumore 479,000 1,597 133
Burmungham 1.435.000 4,783 1,14
Boston 4 596,000 15,320 3,060
Chicago 18,856,319 62,854 12,676
Dallas 19,390,123 64,634 [3,483
Ft Lauderdale 561,000 1,870 898
Hartford 1,885,000 6,183 2,475
Houston 11,419,555 37,065 3,130
Indianapols 6,724,439 22,415 £,642
Los Angeles 7,845 108 26,150 4 19%
Mianu 2,583,216 8,611 2,316
Muwaukee 394,000 1,313 166
Minneapolis 5918230 19,727 6,428
Mstle Beach 125,820 419 20
New Jersey 625,000 2,083 856
New Orleans 4,697 500 15,658 7.195
Orlando 435,000 1,450 801
Phuladelphia 9,427 600 31,425 5658
Phoemux 2,837,400 9,458 3015
Piisburgh 7,346,272 24 488 2,208
Salt Lake Cin 1,010,000 3,367 864
Seattle 4,848 721 16,162 3518
Stamford 1,937,200 6,457 627
Tampa 2.869.636 9.565 3,787
Nashuille 1,352,600 4509 1,767
Washington D C 11,701,100 39.004 8,241
Totals 144 978 562 483259 111627

Pepetration Rate* 26%
“Pepetraton rate assurmung a |0% Nanonal Vecancy rate. Lines 1n Senace/(Potental Lines x 90%)




own W

In most buildings where it provides STS, the Company or
its assignor has entered into a contractual agresmant
{"Owner/Developer Agreement") with the building Owner/Developer.
Subject to specific provisions contained in certain
Owner/Developer Agreements, the Ownher/Developer Agreements
generally grant the Company the exclusive right to provide STS
in the building and the Owner/Devaloper is precluded from
entering into a "materially similar arrangement™ with a third
party. In addition, the Company is granted a right nf first
refusal in the building for the offering of additional STS, such
as telephone answering services, word and data processing, telex,
copier services and certain other STS. The tent of the agreement
is generally for ten years with renewal options.

The Owner/Daveloper Agreements generally provide for the
payment of royalties to the Ownar/Developer which may be based on
a percentage of gross revenues or on a percentage of rental, sale
and service income or net long-distance revenues. 5uch royalty
payments may commence at the initial service date, at some later
date, typically 18 to 24 months after the Company commences to
provide STS to the building, or at the time the Company achieves
a certain level of market penetration in the building.

The Company is responsible for the costs and expenses
incurred in operating and maintaining the STS equipment in the
building and must obtain the Owner/Developer's approval to make
any modification in the STS squipment which would affect the
building structure. The agreement is assignable by the
Owner/Developer upon the sale of the building. Certain
Owner/Developers also have the right to purchase the Company's
STS eqguipment in the building at a, nominal or fair market price
if the agreement is terminated.

Each Owner/Develcper Agreament either contains a lease,
or references a separately exacuted lease, for the space
necessary for the Company's on-site personnel and equipment.

Tenant Contractsg

The Company is a party to a master shared tenant
services agreement ("Tenant Contract”) with substantially all of
its STS customera. The Tenant Contract contains terms and
conditions governing the provision of STS. Subsequent to signing
a Tenant Contract, tenants submit individual customer orders for
specific equipment rentals and STS. In addition to the typical
Tenant Contracts for STS, the Company has agreements with several
tenants whc have their own PBX to maintain the system and manage
the tenant's telephone call billing system, and the Company
receives a monthly fee for its services.

The Company generally signs contracts for a periocd
coterminous with the customer's lease in the building. The
Company feels it has staggered the contracts such that there is



no time when a material amount of contracts come due at the same
ti1me. Additionally, the Company does not have any individual
customer contracts which are material.

(iii} Sales and Marketing

The Company markets its services and products through a
direct sales force which is segnented into distinct geographic
markets. Typically, under agreements with the Company, the owner
identifies prospective and existing tenants to the Company's
local sales force. After establishing contact with the potential
customer and obtaining an understanding of the prospective
customer's telecommunications needs, the Company's local sales
representative arranges for a presentation of the Company's
products and services and the cost of potential soclutions meeting
the customers requirements. After securing a sale, meabers of
the Company's sales force follow-up with customers by offering
themn new value-added services. Management believes that direct
sales activities are more effective than advertising for securing
and maintaining the businesses of small to medium-sized services
customers. A significant percentage of nev systems sales result
from upgrading, enlarging or replacing systems currently used by
the Company's existing customers. As of December 31, 1996, the
Company had approximately 66 employees in its direct sales force.

Customer Service

The Company strives to provide superior customer service
and believes that personal contact with potential and existing
customers is a significant factor in securing and retaining
customers. Each new customer account is processed locally at the
site location that was responsible for obtaining the account.

The Company's customer service staff is dedicated to providing
new customers with a smocoth transition to its services and
systems. All customers' calls for repair, moves, adds, and
changes are handled and prccessed at the local site. Management
believes that this personal and local handling of the customer
service function is very important to the customers, creating
strong alliances for the Company and encouraging repeat business.
The Company's local offices retain total responsibility for all
aspects of their respective customers services (including
egquipment, local service, and long distance). As a result, the
customer only needs to place one call to inquire about any aspect
of its service. The management of each local office site is
evaluated quarterly on the quality of its customer service and
the Company's field service reprssentatives conduct pericdic
audits of all its customers to assess their satisfaction with all
aspects of service. The Company's service contracts with STS
customers are typically for a duration of five years (or expire
upon termination of a customer's building leasa). Service
contracts with the Company's telecommunjcations systems customer
are typically for one to three year duration and generally for
automatic extensions of such term.



Management Information Systems (MIS)

Providing accurate and customized billing for customers
is an integral componant of the Company's business. The
Company's MIS systems process millions of call records a month
for the telecommunications services business and combine this
information with other recurring and nonrecurring customper
charges to produce monthly invoices. Tenants are quoted a
monthly charge for leased equipment which includes a rental fee
for equipment, a charge for access to the PBX owned by the
Company and installed in the buildings where such tenants are
located, and a local access chargs for access based on the cost
of the trunk lines which connect the building tc the central
office of the local telephone company. In addit: on, tenants are
charged for special services and usage, including "800" service,
dedicated circuits, directory listings, local message units,
directory assistance, calling card services, third party billing
calls, and long-distance at a discount from the standard rates
charged by long-distance providers. The Company believes that
its detailed billing reports provide a unique service to small
and medium-sized customers allowing customers to understand and
control their telecommunicaticns costs.

The MIS systems also track telecommunications
installations and customer raquests fror initial request to final
collection. Each customer request is entered into the job order
system to monitor the progress of the work as well as to keep
track of the time and material requisitioned for the job.

The Company's MIS systems can be expanded with minimal
incremental cost to accommodate substantially more volume. Such
systems feature backup processors and short-time response
maintenance agreements and are dasigned to respond to customer
needs as well as support the Company's operations.

Canadian Operations

In June 1996, STF cCanada, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with RH
Telecom, ICN. ("RHTI"), an affiliate of O&Y Properties, Inc., a
major property management company that currently manages in
excess of 12 million sguare feet of mixed use properties across
Canada, and with Rogers Cablesystems Limited ("Rogers"), a
Canadian telecommunications company, pursuant to which the three
parties formed Shared Technologies of Canada Inc. ("STOC"), with
each party holding a one-third interest in STOC. STOC provides
shared telecommunications services in Canada, combining the
Company's telecommunications services expertise with RHTI's
extensive property management resources and sxpertise and Rogers'
resources as a Canadian telecommunications service provider.

The Company believes it is well positioned to continue
tc grow through the continued implemeantation of its business
strategy, the key elements of which are:

- Increased Penetration of Existing Buildings. The
Company intends to increase its focus on generating additional
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revenue from the buildings in which it now provides shared
telecommunications services. Although the Company may continue
to make selective acquisiticons of STS providers in the future,
its principal focus will be on marketing services within its
existing buildings, both to new custorers and to existing

customers.

- Significant Additions of Buildings. The Company plans
to continue to take advantage of its improved market position to
aggressively pursue opportunities to add buildings to its
portfolio, in particular, through multi-building contracts with
large commercial property owners.

-~ Expanded Service Offerings. The Company intends to
capitalize on the growing demand for new telecommunications and
information technolegy by expanding its services to include high
speed access to the Internet, video teleconferencing, wireless
services and the delivery of cable programming. The Company's
existing infrastructure allows for low-cost delivery of these
services at minimal incremental expense to the Company. The
Company believes that many of these services would otherwise nct
be readily available or affordable to its customers.

- Cross Marketing of Services and Systems. The Company
intends to leverage its Systems business by marketing
telecommunications services to its existing Systems customer
base. In addition, the Company intends increasingly to market
Systems to its STS customers relocating from existing rental
space who continue to require customized telecommunications
solutions, including the purchase or lease of equipment or the
provision of long distance and other netwcork services offered by
the Company.

(iv) Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises,
Concessions- See Item 1(d) (i) - "Owner/Developer Agreements"”
herein. Additionally, Shared Technologies Fairchild and Shared
Technologies Cellular are registered trademark.

(v) Seasonality

While the Company's business is not generally seasonal,
the Company has experienced, over the last several years, a
reduction in local and long distance revenues in the month of
December which is believed to be associated with the holiday
season.

{vi) Working Capital

To date, the Company has funded its working capital
shortfall through borrowings and sales of its securities. See
Item 1(a) - "General Development of Business"”; "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition". The Company requires working capital to sustain its
growth and maintain its revenue base.
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In March 1996, the Company's stockholders
approved and the Company consummated a merger with Fairchild
Industries, Inc. ("FII") with and intc the Company. The Company
simultanecusly changed its name to Shared Technologies Fairchild
Inc. ("STFI™). In connection with the merger, the Company issued
6,000,000 shares of common stock, 250,000 shares of cumulative
convertible preferred stock with an initial $25,000,000
liquidation preference and 200,000 shares of special preferred
stock with a $20,000,000 initial liquidation preference. 1In
addition the Company raised approximately $111,000,000 net of
expenses through the sale of 12 1/4% senior subordinated discount
notes due 2006, and approximately $123,000,000 (of an available
$145,000,000} in lcans from a credit facility with Credit Suisse,
Citicorp USA, Inc. and NationsBank. The funds vere used
primarily for the retirement two series of FII's preferred stock
and of certain liabjilities assumed from FII in connection with
the merger and the retirement of the Company's existing credit

facility.

As of March 15, 1997, the Company has approxXimately $20
million available under the credit facility to fund working
capital requirements. The credit facility contains, among other
things, affirmative and negative covenants which are usual and
customary with respect to senior secured indebtedness.

The Company expects to satisfy its future cash
requirements through cash from operations and borrowings under
the Credit Facility.

The Company expects that its working capital reguirements will
remain manageable primarily due to the minimal capital
requirements of the Systems business and, with respect tc the
Services business, its ability to negotiate favorable payment
terms with its vendors and to bill its customers in advance for
many recurring services,

(vii) Dependence on a Single Customer

Ne single customer or building accounts for 10% or more
of the Company's revenues. The Company's business is not
dependent upcon a single or a few customers.

{viii) Backlog

At any given period the Company maintains new contracts
signed but not yet installed due to the term of the contract
which further adds tco this backlog. The number of additional
lines not yet installed related to new contracts cannot be
determined due to changes that occur through the installation
date. Therefore, backlog information cannot be quantified.

(ix) Government Regulation

The Company is subject to specific regulatiocns in
several states. Within various states, such regulations may
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include limitations on the number of lines or PBX switches per
system, limitations of shared telecommunications systems to
single buildings or building complexes, requirements that such
building complexes be under common ownership or common ownership,
management and control and the imposition of local excharge
access rates that may be higher than those for similar single-
user PBX systems.

Rates for telecommunications services generally are
governed by tariffs filed by certified carriers with various
regulatory agencies. Future changes in the requlatory structure
under which such tariffs are filed, or material changes in the
tariffs themselves, could have a material adverse effect on the

Company's business.

The Company's Systems business is gensrally exempt trom
governmental regulation from the standpoint of marketing and
sales. However, various regulatory bodies, including the Federal
Communications Commission, require that manufacturers of
equipment obtain certain certifications.

On February 8, 1996, the Telecommunications Act of 199¢
("Telecommunications Act") was enacted as Federal law. The
Telecommunications Act made certain changes in the regulatory
environment in which the Company operates by: (i)pre-empting any
State or local law or regulaticn that prohibits, or has the
effect of prohibiting, the ability of any entity to provide any
interstate or intrastate telecommunications service which may
result in the removal ¢f regulatory barriers that have heretofore
discouraged the Company from expanding its business in certain
States: (ii) prohibiting local exchange telephone companies from
prohibiting, or imposing unreascnable or discriminatory
conditions on, the resale of those companies' telecommnunications
services which may result in the removal or relaxation of some
of the restrictions on shared telecommunications systems referred
to above, and reduces the risk that telephone companies could
modify their tariffs to improve more restrictive terms and
conditions on such Systems; (iii) authorizing the FCC to forebear
from applying any requlation to a telecommunjcations carrier or
class of telecommunications carriers under certain conditions,
which may result in a relaxation of the FCC's requlatory
supervision of over the Company's operations; and (iv)
authorizing the Regiocnal Bell Operating Companies upon satisfying
certain conditions, to apply for, and the FCC to grant, authority
to offer long-distance services to customers within the States in
which they offer local telephone service. This will result in
more intense competition within the markets in which the Company
cperates.

The Telecommunications Act has affected government
regulation of telecommunications, both at the state and federal
level. Although the long term goal of the lagisiation is
deregulatory, federal and state government regulatory agencies
have created new rules to govern competition in the local
exchange market that, in the short term, could subject the
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Company's shared telecommunications services to greater
regulation than in the past.

(x} Competition

The Company's STS business competes with regulated major
carriers that may provide a portion of the services that the
Company provides, but are typically not structured to provide all
of a customer's telecommunications requirements. The Company
also competes with small independent operators serving regional
or local markets and with other STS providers, including the
Realcom unit of MFS WorldCom, Inc. ("MFS%). The Company also
competes with eguipment manufacturers and distributors and long
distance companies for the provision of telephone aid other
telecommunications equipment and services to tenants in buildings
under franchise with the Company. Within the past five vears,
competition has expanded to include a group of companies known as
alternate access providers, including MPFS, TCG, Inc. and others.
The major competitive factors in the STS market are techneclogy,
price and service. The Company's principal competitive
advantages are its ability to provide "one-stop shopping” for
telecommunications services and site-based technical service,

The principal competitors of the Company's Systems
business and, once a building franchise has beaen obtained, the
Company's STS business, include the direct sales channels of
manufacturers such as Lucent Technologies, Northern Telecom,
Inc., NEC, other distributors of equipment manufactured by such
companies, as well as the Regional Bell Operating Companies
("RBOCS") .

On February 8, 1996, the Telecommunications Act was
enacted as Federal Law. The Teslecommunications Act makes certain
changes in the requlatory environment in which the Company
operates by: (i) pre-smpting any State or local law or regulation
that prohibits, or has the effect of prohibiting, the ability of
any entity to provide any interstate or intrastate
telecommunications services which may result in the removal of
regulatory barriers that have heretofore discouraged the Company
from expanding its business in certain States; (ii) prohibiting
local exchange telephone companies from prohibiting, or imposing
unreasonable or discriminatory conditions on, the resale of t..cose
companies' telecommunications services which may result in the
removal or relaxation of some of the restriction on shared
telecommunications Systems referred to in the preceding
paragraph, and reduces the risk that telephcne companies could
modify their tariffs to impose more restrictive terms and
conditions on such Systems; (iii) authorizing the FCC to forebear
from applying any regulation to a telecommunications carrier or
class of telecommunications carriers under certain conditions,
which may result in a relaxation of the FCC's regqulatory
oversight over the Company's operations; (iv) authorizing the
RBOCs, upon satisfying certain conditions, to apply for, and the
FCC to grant, authority to offer long-distance services to
customers within the States in which they offer local telephone
service. This may result in more intense competition within the
markets in which the Company operates. Other provisions of the
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Telecommunications Act direct the PCC to conduct rulemaking
proceedings on a variety of subjects, including interconnections,
resale, and universal service, which may affect the Company, but
it is not possible to predict the outcome of any such

proceedings.

The Telecommunication Act may result in greater
competition for the Company. The RBOCs are free immediately to
seek authority to offer long distance service outside their
current operating areas. They will be free to offer long
distance services to customers within their current operating
regions after satisfying the law's requirements for opening the.ir
local markets to competition. GTE and other local exchange
carriers are free immediataly to seek auchority to offer long
distance services both within and outside their regions.

long distance carriers also are permitted to seek
authority to offer local exchange services. The major carriers
{(AT&T, MCI and Sprint) will be subject, on an interim basis, to
restrictions on joint marketing of local and long distance
services.

(xiii) Employees

As of March 15, 1997, the Company had 787 employees, of
whom 66 were covered by two collective bargaining agreements. Ore
agreement expires in 1998 and the other expires in 1999,
Management believes its relations with their employees are
satisfactory.

item 2.
Property

As of December 31, 1996, the Company leased real
property totaling approximately 340,000 square feet. The Compan-
does not own any real property. Each of the leased properties
is, in management's opinion, generally well maintained, is
suitable to support the Company's bhusiness and is adequate for
the Company's present needs.

The Company leases from RHI Holdings, Inc., the former

parent of FII, on an arm's-length basis, office space at
Washington-Dulles International Airport.
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Item 3.
Legal Proceedings

As a result of the merger with FII, the Company becamne
liable for all liabilities of FII. The Federal Corporate
Administrative Contracting Officer (the "AOC"), based upon the
advice of the United States Defense Contract Audit Agency, has
made a determination that PII did not comply with Federal
Acquisition Regulations and Cost Accounting Standards in
accounting for the (i) the 19895 reversion to FII of approximately
$50.0 million in excess pension funds in connection with the
termination of defined benefit pension plans, and (ii) pension
costs upon the closing of segments of FII's business.

The ACO has directed FII to prepare z cost impact proposal
relating to such plan terminations and segment closings and,
following receipt of such cost impact proposal, may seek
adjustments to contract prices. The ACO alleges that substantial
amounts will he due if such adjustments are made. In connection
with the merger FII stated that it believes it has properly
accounted for the asset reversions in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. FII has had discussions with the
government to attempt to resclve these pension accounting issues.

The aforementioned government claim (the "Contingent
Pension Liability®™) and other liabilities are covered by an
indemnification agreement (the "Indemnification Agreement")
entered into between the Company and RHI Holdings, Inc. ("RHI"},
the former parent of FII. Pursuant to tha Indemnification
Agreement, RHI agreed to indemnify the Company for various
liabilities, including the Contingent Pension Liability.
However, since RHI is primarily a holding company, any claim by
the Company pursuant to said Indemnification Agreement will be
effectively subordinated to the creditors of RHI's subsidiaries.
There is no expiration date with respect to the Indemnification
Agreement. RHI's indemnification obligations under the
Indemnification Agresment are secured by all of the shares of
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (other than an amount
equal to $1,500,000 in initial liguidation preference) and the
Special Preferred Stock issued to RHI in the merger.

In view of the Indemnification Agreement and RHI's
current financial condition, it is the opinion of the Company's
panagement that the Contingent Pension Liability is unlikely to
have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition, future results of operations or cash flows.

In December 1995, Gerard Klauer Mattison & Co., LLC
("GKM"), filed suit against the Company in U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of New York alleging breach of a letter
agreement and seeking an amount in excess of $2.25 million for a
commission allegedly owed to GKM as a result of GKM initiating
negotiations between the Company and FII and negotiating the
Merger. GKM has alleged that the Company entered into a fee
agreement, whereby the Company agreed to pay to GKM 0.75% of the
value of the transaction as a fee. FII has denied that FII at
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Answer in January, 1996, denying that any commission is owed.
This litigation is in the discovery process. Management believes,
however, that an adverse outcome, if any, would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial
position.

The Company is a party to other lawsuits and
.adminlistrative proceedings that arose in the ordinary course ot
its business. Although the final results in all suits and
proceedings cannot be predicted, the Company presently believes
that the ultimate resolution of all such other lawsuits and
proceedings, after taking into account the liabilities accrued
with respect to such matters, will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition, results of perations
or cash flows. See Note 14 to the Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Company has no other material litigation or
unasserted claims, the ocutcome of which would have a material
impact on the Company's financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Item 4.
Submission gf Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None

PART IX

Item 5.
M i ! der

Matters

The Company's shares of Common Stock (trading symbol:
STCH} have been quoted and traded in the over-the-counter market
since December 13, 1988. Over-the-counter market guotations
reflect interdealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
During 1996 and 1995, the guarterly high and low closing prices
were as follows:

4296 1995

h Low High Low
First Quarter $6 3/8 3 5/8 $5 1/4 83 1/2
Second Quarter g 5/8 4 1/8 5 3/4 4
Third Quarter g 1/10 5 1/4 S 1/4 3 7/8
Fourth Quarter 9 7/8 6 11/16 4 3/4 3 1/8

The number of beneficial holders of the Company's Common Stock as
of March 6,1997 was 1,448.

The following table sets forth the selected financial data
of the Company for each of the last five years. Financial
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statements for 1993 and 1992 are not presented in this filing.
Such selected financial data were derived from audited
consclidated financial statements not included herein. The
selected financial data of the Company should be read in
conjunction with the Consclidated Pinanclal Statements and
related notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. In September
1992 the Company effected a one-for-four reverse stock split of
common stock and increased the par value of common stock from
$.001 to $.004 per share. Weighted average common shares
outstanding and per share information have been retroactively
adjusted to reflect this split. All amounts, except per share
amounts, are in thousands.

Statemant of Oparations Data: 1996 1995 1994 1993 1esl
Peenues $157, 241 947,086 545,567 $25,426 £24,C77
Gress margln 74,669 18,214 19,195 10,912 G254
Se.l:ing, general and

administrative expenass 55,129 16,188 16,909 9,767 &, G4
Business Development Expenses - - - 325
Jperating Lncome (1C3%) 19, 340 2,026 2,286 g1z o
interest expense, net (22,808 (667) (359, 439, 6T
Eguity 1n loss of affiliate (3,927 (1,152) - - -
Mincrity 1nteresr :n het

income of subsidiaries - - 112e; B2, T
Ga.r on sale of subsidiary - 1,37% - -
atcock
InTcme taxes {783 {45) {87 -
Extraordinary Items:

'Loss, gain on restructuring - - - 1150, 3. 75¢

Loss on early retirement t311) - - -

cf debr
Net income (losa; (8,569) 927 2,286 149 A

HNet .ncome (loas] per
common sharle applicable
tc common stockholders {.7%9} .06 .47 1.04) v

We.ghted average common

shares ocutstandilng 13,787 8,482 6,192 5,132 4,382
Balance Sheet Data:
Working cap:ital deficit (58,765%) ($3,393) (33, 6%1) (83,874 "$54.53¢%
Tora. assets 369,566 42,863 37,925 26C, 601 18,758

Nctes payable, convertible
promissory notes payable,
other long-term debt (i1ncl.
cJurrent portion! and
redeerab.e preferred stock 291,004 6,998 4,727 1,719 4.7

ttockholders’ equity fdeficit. 43,209 22,844 20,881 9,302 €, 034
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Item 7,
! ions
1 Fj {al Conditi

The following Management's discussion and analysis of results of
operations and financial condition include forward-looking
statements with respect to the Company's future financial
performance. These forward-looking atatements are subject to
various risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results
to differ materially from historical results or those currently
anticipated.

ov iew v

STFI is a national provider of shared telecommunications services
("STS"} and telecommunications systems ("Systems") to tenants of
multi-tenant commercial office buildings. One of STFI's
affiliates, Shared Technologies Cellular Inc. ("STC"), is a
provider of short-term portable cellular telephone rentals and
prepaid, or debit, cellular telephone service.

In March 1996, STFI's stockholders approved, and STFI completed,
a merger with Fairchild Industries, Inc.{("FII") following a
reorganization in which FII transferred all non-communications
assets to its parent, RHI Holding, Inc. As a result of the
merger, STF1 is the largest provider of STS in the United States.
On a pro forma basis, STFI generated approximately $185 million
in revenues and %24 million in operating income for the year
ended December 31, 1996.

Resu (o)

The following table sets forth various components of STFI's
statements of operations expressed as a percentage of revenues:

Year Ended
December 31,
1996 1985 1994
Fevenues 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Zost of revenues £2.51¢ €1.32% 57.69%
Gross Margin 47.49% 38.68% 42.31%
Seiling, General and
Administrative Expenses 35.19% 34.38% 37.27%
Jperating Income 12.30% 4.30% 5.040%
Interest expense {net) -14.55% -1.44% -0.79%
Mincrity Interest C.00% 0.00% -0.28%
Gain cn sale of subsidiary stock 0.00% 2.92% 0.00¢%
Equity 1r loss of subsidiaries -2.50% -3.72% 0.00%
Income Tax Benef:t (Expense) -0.50% -0.10% 1.07%
Extracrdinary Item -0.208% 0.00% 0.00%
Net t(loss; Income 2,408 1, 26% 2048
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Year Ended December 231, 1996 compared to Year Ended December 31,
1935 Revenues

STFI's revenues for the year ended December 31, 1996 increased

by $110.2 million, or 233.8%, to $157.2 million compared to $47.1
million for the year ended December 31, 1995. This increase was
principally due to the March 13, 1996 merger with Fairchild
Industries, Inc. ("FII"™). Shared Telecommunications Services
{("STS") revenue increassd $60.8 million, or 173.0%, and
telecommunications systems ("Systems”) revenues increased $49.31
million or 414%.

Gross margin

Gross margin increased in 1996 to 47.5% of revenues, from 38.7%
of revenues in 1995. The following table sets forth the
components of the Company's overall gross margin for 1996 for the
STS and Systems divisions, respectively.

- Weighted
Rivisiopn Revenues GM M
5TS 61.1% 53.0% 32.4%
Systems 38,9% 38,9% 15.1%
Company Total 100,0% 472.5%

In 1996, the Company's gross margin was a combination of STS
gross margin of 5).0% and Systsme gross margin of 38.9%., In 19%¢
the Company's gross margin was a combination of STS gross margin
of 44.6% and Systems gross margin of 21.1%. STS increased
gross margin from the 1995 level mainly due to the network
syhergies resulting from the March 1996 FII merger. Systems
margins increased from 21.1% in 1995 to 38.9% in 15996. This
increase was due primarily to the FII merger and the resultant
change in the mix of systems revenue. The Company's systems
revenue was comprised of long-distance revenues outside of its
building sites and the sale and ongoing maintenance of equipment
to customers in and out of its building. The long distance
component had margins in the range of 20-25%, while the sale of
equipment, with its maintenance component, provides margins in
the range of 35-40%. With the completion of the March 1996
merger of FII, the Company's sales mix in Systems became more
concentrated in the equipment sale and maintenance end.
Therefore, the Company's margin has increased accordingly.

In addition the revenues generated from the management agreement
with ICS Communications, Inc. ("ICS") have bean included in
Systems revenue. Since the associated cost for this revenue of
$5 million is in the selling, general and administrative expense,
it has a positive effect on Systems gross margin.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") as a

percentage of revenue increased to 35.2% for 1996, compared to
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34.4% for 1995. This increase was due to the merger with FII,
principally in the SBystems division, as the higher margin sale of
equipment and maintenance requires sales and support personnel.

Qperating income
Qperating income increased by $17.3 million, or 854.6%, to $19.3

million in 1996, from $2.0 million in 1995. The increase was
mainly due to the merger with FII.

ity in 1 {f arfilia
The Company recorded an equity loss of $3.9 million, $3.7 of
which came as a result of STC losses of $8.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 1996. The remaining 5.2 million came as a

result of the Company's portion of the losses incurred by Shared
Technologies of Canada, Inc.

interest expense

Interest expense, net of interest income, increased by $22.2
million to $22.9 million for 1996, compared to $0.7 million in
1995. This increase was due to the merger with FII and the
resulting bank and bond debt incurred as a result of the
transaction. As of December 31, 1996, the Company has bank debt
in the amount of $123.3 million and bond debt in the amount of
$126.5 million. It should be noted that the interest on the
bonds is initially accretive and, therefore, non-cash. The total
non-cash portion of interest expense was $12.1 million as of
December 31, 1996,

Extraerdinary item - Loss on early retirement of debt
An extraordinary loss of $0.3 millien for 1996 was recorded to

reflect the expense asscciated with the early retirement of pre-
merger bank debt which was paid at the conclusion of the March

1996 FII merger.

Ingome tax expense

The Company's income tax expense of $.8 million consisted of
actual payments of tax for approximately $.2 million and the
reversal of a tax asset benefit of $.6 million. Since the March
1996 merger, and the corresponding loss due primarily to interest
charges on debt, the company reversed its tax benefit.

Net income (lQ8s)
As a result of the factors listed above, net loss for the year

ended Dacember 31, 1996 was $8.6 million compared to net income
of $.9 million for 1995.

Net (loss) income applicable to common stockholders
As a result of the II[I merger, the Company issued additional

mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, this resulted in the
Company recording higher preferred cash dividends and non-cash
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dividends through the accretion of these instruments to
liquidation values.

Year Ended December 31, 1995 compared to Year Ended December 31,

1294
Revenues

STFI's revenues rose to a record $47.1 million in 1995 an
increase of $1.7 million or 3.7% over 1994 revenues of $45.4
million. This increase occurrad dsspite the loss of STC revenue
as STC results ware recorded per the equity method in 1995: STC
accounted for $10.2 million of 1994 revenus. STS revenue
increased $6.5 million or 22.7% and Systems $%5.4 million or 823.1%
in 1995 over 1994 levels. Approximately $2.9 million of the
growth in revenue for STS was attributable to a full year of
service at locations acquired in June 1994 with the acquisition
of Access Telecommunications Group, L.P. (Access), $1.6 million
was attributable to the June 1995 acquisition of Office Telephone
Management (QTM), the remaining increase of approximately $2.0
million was generated through internal growth at existing and new
locations. Approximately $4.7 million of the growth in Systems
revenues is attributable to a full ysar of activity at accounts
acquired with the June 1994 acquisition of Access, the remaining
increase of $1.8 million was generated internally.

Gross margin

Gross margin dropped to 28.7% of revenues for 1995 from 42.3% for
1994, a reduction of 3.6%. The following table sets forth the
compeonents of the Company's overall gross margin for 1995 as a
factor of sales percentage and gross margin percentage per line
of business:

Weighted
Division Revenues GH GM
STS 74.7% 44.6% 33.3%
Systems 25.3% 21.1% 2.4
Company Total 100.0% 28.7%

As shown above, the 1995 gross margin was a mix of STS gross
margin of 44.6% and Systems gross margin of 21.1%. In 1994 the
Company's gross margin was a combination of STS gross margin of
45.2%, Systems gross margin of 20.4% and STC gross margin of
48.2%. STS produced slightly reduced gross margin from the 1994
level mainly due to the acquisition of OTM operations which
produced gross margin of approximataely 30%. Systems experienced
slightly improved gross margin mainly due to a full year of
operations obtained with the Access acquisition. The overall
decrease in the Company's gross margin was principally the result
of changes in sales mix. The change in accounting to the egquity
method for STC results of operations created an overall drop in
gross margin of approximately 1.7% for 1995. The drop in STS
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gross margin for 1995 contributed 0.4% to the overali reduction
in gross margin for 1995. The remainder of the decrease in gross
margin was generated by Systems. As noted above, Systems
revenues grew at a faster rate than STS revenues in 1995. Since
Systems produces significantly lower gross margin compared to
STS, the growth in Systems salaes depressed overall gross margin
for the Company 1.5%.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A") as a
percentage of revenues decreased to 34.4% for 1995 compared to
37.3% for 1994. The Company has reduced SGLA as a percentage of
revenues by increasing revenues without adding a comparable
percentage of SG&A costs. Certain SG&A costs are essentially
fixed and do not increase significantly with revenue growth. 1In
addition the Company has carefully chosen to expand in locations
with existing management infrastructures already in place.

Operating jncome

Operating income decreased by $0.3 million or 11.4% to $2.0
million in 1995 from $2.3 million in 1994. The decrease was
partially the result of STC no longer a part of the STFI
consolidated group in 1995. STC contributed approximately $0.7
million to operating income in 1994. This was offset by improved
STS and Systems contribution of $0.4 million in 1995 over 1994
levels.

Gain on sale of subsidiary stock

In April 1995 the Company successfully completed a public
offering of STC stock. Following the offering the Company's
percentage of ownership decreased from approximately 86% to 60%.
The accounting treatment of the sale required the Company to
record a gain of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31,
1995,

Equity in 1 f subsidi

In December 1995, STC issued approximately $3.0 million in voting
preferred stock to third parties. While STFI's ownership
percentage did not change, STFI's voting interest in STC was
reduced to 42.7%, resulting in STFI's loss of voting control.
Accordingly, subsequent to this stock issuance, STC was accounted
for under the equity method, The Company recorded an equity loss
of $1.7 million as a result of STC lcosses of $2.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 1995.

Interest expense

Interest expense net of interest income increased »y $0.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 1995 over tl.e ysar ended December
31, 1994. This is attributable to the addition of approximately
$4.4 million in interest bearing debt during 1995. Approximately
$0.3 million in non interest bearing debts were repaid during
1995.
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Incope tax benefit (expense)

The Company recorded an insignificant amount of income tax
expense for the year ended December 31, 1995 compared to a net
benefit of $0.% million for the year ended December 31, 1994.
Income tax expense for 1995 was mainly the result of state ncome
taxes. During 1994 STFI adjusted the deferred tax asset
valuation reserve per Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes® ("SFAS 109"). This
adjustment resulted in a deferred tax asset of $8.0 million, a
corresponding valuation reserve of $7.4 million and a $0.6
million tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 1994. This
benefit was partially offset by state income taxes resulting in a
net benefit of $0.5 million for 1994. The s>urce of the deferred
tax asset is principally the expected future utilization on a
conservative basis of net opearating losses ("NOL") generated in
prior years. Based on the raquirements of SFAS 109 the Company
recalculated the deferred tax asset and adjusted the valuation
reserve for the year ended December 31, 1995. This adjustment
resulted in no significant impact to the Company's results of
operations for the year ended December 31,1995. At December 31,
1995 the Company's NOL carryforward for federal income tax
purposes was approximately $21.8 million.

Net incope
As a result of the factors listed above, net income for the year

ended December 31, 1995 decreased by $1.4 million or 60.9% to
$0.9 million from $2.3 million for 1994.

Liquidi s capital R

Net cash provided by operations reached $24.4 million in 1996
compared to $4.9 million in 199% and $3.1 million in 1994. The
Company's working capital deficit was $8.8 million at December
31, 1996 compared to $3.4 million and $3.7 million for December
31, 1995 and 1994 respectively. The increase in the Company's
working capital deficit was directly related to the March 1996
merger with FIT and the current portion of bank debt raised as
part of this transaction. The Company's current portion of long-
term debt and capital leases went from $2.9 million in the year
ended December 31, 1995 to $13.6 million in the year ended
December 31, 1996.

The merged Company has continued to invest in capital equipment
directed at internal growth, expansion into new operations and
upgrading telecommunication equipment at existing locations. The
Company invested $9.7 million in the purchase of equipment in
1996 compared to $3.7 million and $3.2 million in 1995 and 1994,
respectively. The Company invested $225.9, net of cash, acquired
in the merger of FII and had invested $5.3 million to complete
two other acquisitions; Office Telephone Management in June 1993
and Access Telecommunications Group, LP in June 1994.

Financing activities were focused primarily on raising capital to
provide cash for investing activities. For the year ended 1996
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the company raised $125 millicen of bank debt of which $% million
was the amount taken down on a $25% million revolver, and $115
million in Senlor Subordinated Discount Notes both in connecticn
with the March 1996 merger with FII. Additionally, the Company
received $3.2 million from the exercise of employee and directer
options as well as the exercise of warrants issued 1n conjunction
with its Preferred D stock. The Company paid $9.4 million 1in
deferred financing and debt issuance costs and $8.4 miliion in
payments to affiliates, both of which are related directly to the
merger with FII. It paid $1.5 million in preferred stock
dividends and $12.7 million for repayments of debt. During 1%«
the Company borrowed $2.7 million and raised $1.2 million from
sales of common stock to help finance the current year's
equipment purchases and the acquisition of OTM. During 1994
approximately $4.6 million was raised from sales of common and
preferred stock to help the Company fund operations. 1In 199% anpa
1994 the Company spent $4.6 million to repay notes, long-term
debt and capital lease cbligations.

Cash requirements for 1997 will be significant due to the merger

with FII and the continued payments of its principal and interes*
for debt. The Company anticipates that it will continue repaying
its borrowings and providing cash flow for operations and capital
expenditures through cash flow from operations. As of March 1997
the Company has a credit facility available of approximately S1°

millien.

The initial cost of capital equipment to establisih shared
telecommunications services in a building typically ranges from
$50,000 to $80,000 with additional start-up working capital
expenditures of less than $50,000. The Company currently
anticipates that capital expenditures for 1997 will be
approximately $13.5 million.

Due to the Company's net cperating loss carryforwards, the
Company currently anticipates minimal federal income tax payments
during 1997.

The Company does not anticipate inflation to materially impact
its operations in 1997,

Item §.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Attached.

Itep 9.
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None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
of Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 1996, and the related
consclidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity
and cash flows for the year then ended. Theae financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. The
summarized financial data for Shared Technologies Cellular
Inc., contained in Note 4 are based on the financial
statements of Shared Technclogies Cellular Inc., which were
audited by other auditors. Their report has been furnished
to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the data in
Note 4, is based sclely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are frea of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
finpancial statements. Anh audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
repcrt of the other auditors provide a reascnable basgis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the
other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1996, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

/8/ Arthur Anderson LLP

Washington, D.C.
March 7, 1997




Raport of Indepandent Public Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Shared
Technoleogies Fairchild Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheet
of Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Subsidiaries as
of December 31, 1995, and the related consoclidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash
flows for the two-year period then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test bas:s,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinicon, the consolidatad financial statements
referred to above presant fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc.
and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 1995, and the results
of their cperations and their cash flows for the two-year
period then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consclidated financial
statements, the Company changed its method of accounting
for its investment in one of its subsidiaries.

ROTHSTEIN, KASS & COMPANY., P.C.

Roseland, New Jersey
March 1, 199¢



SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
1996 AND 1995
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

AS OF DECEMBER 31,

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Billed accounts receivable,less allowvance
for doubtfulaccounts of $§611 and $410,
respectively

Unbilled accounts receivable

Advances to affiliates

Inventories

Cther current assets

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST:
Telecommunications
Ccffice and data processing

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

OTHER ASSETS:

Costs in excess of net assets acquired, less
accunulated amortization of $6,189 and $792
Deferred financing and debt issuance costs
Investment in affiliates

Deferred income taxes

Other

Total assets

ASSETS
199¢

$ 2,702

23,752
8,811

1,976
1,852
35,095

90,158

5,776
95,934
28,169
67,765

253,329
8,513
457

407
462,706
£269,066

28,904
6,046
34,953
18, 30%
16,648

10,280
1,263
1,581

560
461

14,245
242,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these cconsolidated

balance sheets



SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,
{IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKKOLDERS'

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

1996 AND 1995

Current portion of long-term debt and capital

lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advanced billings
Accrued dividends
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATTONS

REDEEMABLE PUT WARRANT
Total liabilities

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK,$0.01
par value, authorized 250 shares, outatanding

250 shares in 1996

REDEEMABLE SPECIAL PREFERRED STOCK,
authorized 200 shares,

value,
shares in 1996

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock,
authorized 1,500 shares,

$0.01 par

cutstanding 200

$0.0]1 par value- Series C,
ocutstanding 428 and

907 shares in 1996 and 1995, respectively

Series D,

authorized 1,000 shares,

outstanding

441 and 457 shares in 1996 and 193§,

respectively

Common stock, $0.004 par value, authorized
50,000 shares, outastanding 15,682 and 8,506

shares in 1996 and 1995,

Capital in excess of par value

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders'

respectively

equity

EQUITY

1896

$13,576
17,356
9,558
6,935

435
47,860

i

R

to o}
“ -:\

I

[SERN R B ¢ )
[

— A

s

238,261
1,069
287,120

25,000

63
76,054

(32.916)

43,209
$360,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated balance sheets
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SHARED TECHNCLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996,
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

1296
REVENUES:
Shared telecommunications services $96,016
Telecommunications systems 61,225
Cellular services =
Total revenues 157,241
COST OF REVENUES:
Shared telecommunications services 45,133
Telecommunications systems 37,439
Cellular services -
Total cost of revenues g2.572
Gross Hargin 74,669
Selling, General And Administrative
Expenses 25,329
Operating Income 19,340
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME:
Gain on sale of subsidiary stock -
Equity in loss of affiliates (3,927)
Interest expense (22,9013)
Interest income 15
Minority interest in net income of
subsidiaries =
{26,813}
{Loss) Income before income tax
(provision) benefit and extraordinary
item (7,475)
Income tax (provision} benefit {783)
{Loss) income before extraordinary
item {8,258)
Extraordinary item, loss on early
retirement of debt (311
Net (loss) inconme (8,569)
Preferred stock dividends (2,366)
Net (loss) income applicable to $(10,9235)
common stockholders
(Loss) income per common share:
{Loss} income before extraordinary S (0.77)
item
Extraordinary item
Net (loss) inconme $ (0.79)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES 22,787
OUTSTANDING

AND SUBSIDIARIES

1995, AND 1994

1995 1994
$35,176 $28,6€6°7
11,910 6,461
= 10,217
47,086 45,367
19,473 15,717
9,399 5,1€1
- 5,294
28,872 26,172
18,214 19,19¢
16,188 16,5C%
2,026 2,28¢
1,375 -
(1,752) -
(882) (522)
205 1€3
= (128,
(1.054) (487,
972 1,799
{45) 487
927 2,286
927 2,28¢
{398} (478)
$ 529 1,808
s 0.06 0.27
S 0.06 0.27
8.482 8792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated

financial statements.
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SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAIRCHILD INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1995, AND 1994

{IN THOUSANDS)

ZASH FLOWS FROM COPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net (lossa) income §

Adjustments-
Loss on early retirement of debt
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Gain on sale of aubaidiary stock
Accretion on 12 1/4% bonds
Accretion on put warrant
Equity in loss of affiliate
Common stock of subsidiary issued for
services
Stock options and common stock issued 1in

lieu of compensation and cther
Minority interest in net income of
subsidiaries
Gain on sale of franchise
Amortization of discount on note
Change in assets and liabilities, net of
effect of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Cther assets

Deferred income taxes

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Advanced billings

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Fayments to affiliate
Deferred merger costs
Cther investments
Long-term deposits

Net cash used 1n investing activities

19Ge

LE, 5€%;

ERDE
15,33¢C
32

il, 26
64

3,627

18€
483

B3

560
4,277
2,2€}
1,203
4135

24,3587

(9,702

1225,924)

(8,407

(2,804

1{246,837!

LR/ A
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Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Subsidiarijes
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 1996, 1995, and 1994
{In Thousands) (Continued)

196¢€ Lt
Tash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt and capital lease
cpligations $(12,€662: S, el”
Proceeds from borrowings- - 2.4
Credit Faclility term loans 120, 600 -
Revolving Credit Facility 10,000
Senior Subordinated Discount Notes 114,999
Proceeds from sales of common and preferred
stock 3,213 PO,
Preferred stock dividends paid (1,467 3%¢
Deferred financing and debt issuance costs 15, 416;
Cash of subsidiary previcusly consolidated - L
Repayment of advances to subsidiary - b
leferred registration costs -
Net cash provided by financing activities 224, 6€7 L,
NET INCREARSE (DECREARSE} IN CASH 2,227 313
ZASH, beginning of year §7¢€ P
TASK, end cf year $ 2,701 $ iTF
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the years for-
Interest § 11,377 5 Eoe
Income taxes 223 B4
SUFPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
JkEllgations to 1ssue common stock in connection
wiTh acguisitions -
Issuance cf preferred stock 1n connecticon
w.th acguisition 38,269
Issuance of common stock to acquire FII 27,750 -
hedeemal le put warrant issued 1n connection wlith
rark financing - -
Capital lease obligations incurred for lease
of new equipment - 355
Dividend accretion on redeemable put warrant - 45
Cividend accretion con preferred stock 899 -
Costs of intangible assets included in
accounts payable -
Note received for sale of franchise - N
Issuance of note relat:ing to scquisition - 80
Issuance of common stock to settle accrued
expenses - 64
Ceferrec merger costs included in accounts
payable - £ll
Reclassification of advance to subsidiary to
investment 1inh subsidiary - 1,284

The accompamang notes are an untegral par of these consolidated financial statements,
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Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 1996 and 1995
(In Thousands Except per Share Data)

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION:

Oon March 13, 1996, Shared Technclogies Inc. merged with
Fairchild Industries, Inc.("FII"), and changed its .ame to
Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc. ("STFI") (see Note 3).

STFI, together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Company") operates in the telecommunications industry by
providing shared telecommunications services ("STS") and
telecommunications systems (Systems®) which provides
telecommunications and office automation services and
equipment to tenants of office buildings. O©One of the
Company's affiliates, Shared Technologies Cellular

Inc. ("STC™), is a naticnal cellular service provider,
offering short-term rentals, prepaid and activation services
through major retail outlets across the United States.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries in which
the Company has a controlling interest. The effects of all
significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. Investments in companies owned between 20
and 50 percent by the Company are recorded using the equity
method.

CASH EQUIVALENTS/STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For purposes of these statements, the Company considers all
highly liquid investments with original dates of three
months or less as cash equivalents. The Company maintains
1ts cash in bank depogit accounts, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not subject to any significant credit risk on cash.

UNBILLED RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCED BILLINGS

Unbilled receivables arise from those contracts under which
billings can only be rendered upon the achievement of
certain contract stages or upon submission of appropriate
billing detail. Advanced billings represent pre-billings
for services not yet rendered. Advanced billings are
generally for services to be rendered within one year.

F-9



INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost
is determined primarily using the weighted average method.
The inventories consist of telecommunications egquipment to
be installed at customer sites.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Properties are stated at cost and depreciated over estimated
useful lives, generally on a straight-line basis. All
telecommunications equipment is classified as equipment. No
interest costs were capitalized in any of the years
presented. Useful lives for property and equipment are:

Telecommunications equipment 8 years
Office and data procesging l - 8 years

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment
amounted to $10,133, $§3,%34 and $3,123 for 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The majority of the Company's revenues are related to the
sale and installation of telecommunications equipment and
services and maintenance after the sale. Service revenues
are billed and esarned on a monthly basis. For systems
installations, usually three to five months, the Company
uses the percentage-of-completion method, measured by costs
incurred versus total estimated cost at completion. The
Company bills equipment rentals, local telephone access
service and maintenance contracts in advance. The deferred
revenue is relieved when the revenue is earned. Systems and
equipment sales are recognized at time of shipment.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and ljiabilities at the date of the
financial statementgs and the reportsd amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

AMORTIZATION OF COST IN EXCESS OF NET ASSETS ACQUIRED

The excess of cost of purchased businesses over the fair
value of their net assets at acquisition dates is being
amortized on a straight-line basis primarily over 40 years.
The Company recorded amortization of $5,397, $433 and $579
for the years ended 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

F-10




DEFERRED FINANCING AND DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS

Costs incurred related to the issuance of debt are deferred
and are being amortized over the life of the related debt.
The amortization of deferred financing and debt issuance
costs included in interest expense was 5939 in 1996.

INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS") No. 109, "Accounting
for Income Taxes,™ which requires an asset and liability
approach to financial reporting for income taxes. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for
differences between financial statement and tax bases of
assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or
deductible amounts in the future, based on enacted tax laws
and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences
are expected to effect taxable income. Valuation allowances
are established, when necessary, to reduce the deferred
income tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Primary income (loss) per common share is computed by
deducting preferred stock dividends from nhet income. The
resulting net income applicable to common stock, is divided
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
including the dilutive effect, if any, of options, warrants
and obligations to issue common stock.

Fully diluted income (loss) per common share is computed by
dividing net income applicable to common stock by the
weighted average number of common and common equivalent
shares and the effect of preferred stock conversions, if
dilutive. Fully diluted income (loss) per common share is
substantially the same as primary income (loss) per common
share for the years ended December 31, 19%6, 1995 and 1994.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
be Disposed Of,” the Company reviews its long-lived assets,
including property and equipment, goodwill and identifiable
intangibles for impairment whensver svents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be fully recoverabla. To determine
recoverability of its long-lived assets the Company
evaluates the probability that future undiscounted net cash
flows, without interest charges, will be less than the
carrying amount of the assets. Impairment is measured at
fair value.




RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications to prior year financial statements
were made in order to conform with the current year
presentation.

3. THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND OTHER ACQUISITIONS:

Oon March 13, 1996, the Company's stockholders and the
Company consummated its merger with FII, a subsidiary of RHI
Holdings, Inc. ("RHI") for consideration of $295,191 of
securities and assumed debt. Under the merger agreement,
STFI issued to RHI 6,000 shares of common stock, 250 shares
of convertible preferred stock with a $25,000 initial
ligquidation preference and 200 shares of special preferred
stock with a $20,000 initial ligquidation preference (see
Note 8). The Company issued 12 1/4 percent Senior
Subordinated Discount Notes Due 2006 with an initial
accreted value of 5114,999 and received $125,000 (of an
available $145,000) in loans from a credit facility with
financial institutions (see Note 6). The funds were used
primarily for the retirement of certain liabilities assumed
from FII in connection with the merger, and the retirement
of the Company's existing credit facility. In connection
with the merger, the Company entared into two-year
employment agreements with key employses for annual
compensation aggregating $1,250, and adopted the 1996 Egquity
Incentive Plan. The merger was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting and resulted in $248,117 cf
cost in excess of net assets acquired, which is being
amortized over 40 years.

On June 30, 1995, the Company purchased all of the
outstanding capital stock of QOffice Telephone Management
("OTM"). OTM provides telecommunication management services
primarily to businesses located in executive office suites.
The purchase price was $2,135 of which $1,335 was paid in
cash and the balance through the issuance of an $800 note,
fdiscounted at 8.59 percent) payable June 30, 2005.

In June 1994, the Company acquired all of the partnership
interests in Access Telecommunication Group, L.P. and Access
Telemanagement, Inc. (collectively Access). The purchase
price was §%,252 of which $4,252 was paid in cash and the
balance through the issuance of 400 shares of Series E
Preferred Stock valued at $3.75 per share and 700 shares of
Series F Preferred Stock valued at $5.00 per share.

The following unaudited pro forma financial statements of

operations for 1996 and 1995 give effect to the acquisitions
as if they had occurred on January 1 of each year.
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{(Unaudited) 1996 96t

Revenues $184,525 S$174,RE2
Income before extraocrdinary items (4,621) g,tl¢
Net lnhcome (4,932) ;8,528
Ne* inccme available to commen stockholders (8,520 Ll L4F
‘Loss) income per common share:

‘Loss, income before extracrdinary item $ (0.60) < TR

Extracrdinary 1tem 10.G2;

Net iloss) income 5 (0.I2) s ok

4. INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATE:

During December 1995, STC issued approximately $3,000 in
voting preferred stock to third parties. The voting rights
assigned to the prefarred stock reduced the Company's voting
interest in STC to approximately 42.7 percent, resulting in
the Company's loss of voting control of STC. As a result of
additional common stock issuances to third parties,
partially offset by the Company‘s receiving 250 shares of
STC Series B voting Convertible Preferred Stock, the
Company's voting interest in STC was reduced to
approximately 41.3 percent during 1996. Accordingly, STC
has been accounted for on the equity method for 1996 and
1995. ’

The summarized balance sheet of STC as of December 31, 1996
and 1995, and the related summarized statement of operations
of STC for the years then ended, are as follows:

1996
Summarized balance sheet:
Current assets $ 2,070 v
Telecommunications and office equipment, net 2,131
Other assets 10,061
Total assets 514,262 :1
Current liabilities $11,045
Note payable 360
Teral liabilities 11,405
Stockholders' equity 2,857
Tcral liabilities and stockholders®' equity $14, 262 sl
Summarized statement of operations:
Revenues
Greoss margin §$20,914 St
Operating loss 7,285
Net locas 6,868
B,796

4, :7¢
- -,
ok

“, 7.
T

,,,,,
4 -
EER
‘ -,
-, Tar




5. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses at December 31, 1996 and 1995, consist of the fcllowing:

199¢€ et
State sales and excise taxes $1,98¢€ 51, 4
Deferred lease obligations - Ll
Property taxes 230 L
Toncession fees 204 N
Salaries and wages 3,598 -
Cther 3,54¢
54,558 SL.Ill

6. LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31,
1996 and 1995, consist of the following:

1996 1995

Credit Facility Term Loans $113,250 5 -
Revohang Credit Facility 10.600 -
Seor Subordinated Discount Notes 126,525 .
Bank Revotver - 2.174
Cnher long-lerm debt and capital leases 2,062 41824
251,837 6,998

Less- Current poruon 13,576 2,870
$218,261 $4,128

THE CREDIT FACILITY

The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Shared
Technologies Fairchild Communications Corp. ("STFCC"),
entered into a Credit Facility with a consortium of banks
upcen the merger with FII in March 1996. The Credit Facility
consists of (a) a Tranche A Senior Secured Term Loan
Facility providing for term loans to the Company in a
principal amount not to exceed $50.0 million (the "Tranche A
Term Facility"); (b) a Tranche B Senior Secured Term Loan
Facility providing for term loans to the Company in a
principal amount not to exceed $70.0 million (the "Tranche B
Term Facility" and, together with the Tranche A Term
Facility, the "Term Facilities®"); and (¢) a Senior Secured
Revolving Credit Facility providing for revolving loans to
the Company in an aggregate principal amount at any time

not tc exceed $25 million (ths “Revolving Facility"™).



The Tranche A Term Facility requires quarterly payments due
over 5 years; $44,750 was outstanding at year end. The
Tranche B Term Facility requires guarterly payments over 7
years: $68,500 was outstanding at year end.

The Company will be required to make mandatory prepayments
of loans in amounts, at times and subject to exceptions (a)
in respect of 75 percent (subject to step-down based upon a
leverage ratio test) of consolidated excess cash flow of the
Company and its subsidiaries, (b} in respect of 100 percent
of the net proceeds of certajin dispositions of assaets or the
stock of subsidiaries or the incurrence of certain
indebtedness by the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
{c} in respect of 100 percent (subject to step-down based
upon a leverage ratio test) of the net procesds of the
issuance of any equity securities by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. At the Company's cption, lcans may be
repaid, and reveolving credit commitments may be permanently
reduced, in whole or in part, at any time.

The obligations of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary,
STFCC, under the Credit Facility are unconditionally and
jointly and severally guaranteed by the Company and the
subsidiary guarantors. In addition, the Credit Facility is
secured by firat priority security interests in all the
capital stock and the tangible and intangible assets of the
Company and the guarantors, including all the capital stock
of, or other equity interests in, the Company and each
direct or indirect domestic subsidiary of the Company. The
wholly owned subsidiary, STFCC, is restricted from payment
of dividends or other distributions to its parent, STFI,
except to the extent necessary to pay preferred dividends
and other identified items.

At the Company's option, the interest rates per annum
applicable to the Credit Facility will be eaither Adjusted
LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.75 to 13.50 percent, or
the Adjusted Base Rate plus a margin ranging from 1.75 to
2.50 percent. The Alternate Base Rate is the higher of
Credit Suisse's Prime Rate and the Federal Funds Effective
Rate plus 0.5 percant. At December 31, 1996, the interest
rate for the Tranche A Term Facility was 8.375 percent and
the interest rate for the Tranche B Term Facility was 9.125
percent. The Revolving Facility

interest rates at year end ranged from 8.125 to 10.0
percent.

As reguired under the Credit Agreement, the Company entered
into interest rate swap agreempents with two commercial
banks. The three contracts, each with a $10,000 notional
amount, expire from May 1999 through May 2001. 1In order to
protect the Company from interest rate increases, the
agreements require the Company to pay a fixed interest rate
in lieu of a variable interest rate. The Company accounts
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for the interest rate swaps as hedge agreements and
recognizes interest expense based on the fixed rate.

The Credit Facility contains a number of significant
covenants that, among other things, restricts the ability of
the Company to dispose of assets, incur additional
indebtedness, repay other indebtedness or amend other debt
instruments, pay dividends, create liens on assets, enter
inte leases, investments or acquisitions, engage in mergers
or consolidations, make capital expanditures, or engage in
certain transactions with subsidiaries and affiliates and
otherwise restrict corporate activities. 1In add.tion, under
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to comply with
specified financial ratios and tests, including a limitation
on capital expenditures, a minimum Earnings Before Interest,
Taxes, Depreciatjon, and Amortization ("EBITDA") test (as
defined), a fixed charge coverage ratio, an interest
coverage ratio, a leverage ratio and a minimum net worth
test.

SENIOR SUBORDINATED DISCOUNT NOTES

As part of the acguisition of FII, the Company also issued
$163,637 of aggregate principal amount (with an initial
accreted value of $114,999) of Senior Subordinated Discount
Notes (the "Discount Notes"™). The discount notes bear an
annual interest rate of 12.25 percent with the principal
fully due on March 1, 2006. Interest will begin accruing on
March 1, 1999, with payments due semi-annually thereafter.
The discount on the Discount Notes is being amortized to
interest expense using the effective interest method over
the three year accretion period, ending March 1, 1999.

The Discount Notes are not redsemable prior to March 1, 2001
except that, subject to certain limitations, until 1999, the
Company may redeem, at its option, up to an aggregate of 25
percent of the principal amount of the Discount Notes at a
specified redemption price plus accrued interest until the
date of the redemption. On or after March 2001, the
Discount Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company,
in whole or in part, at the specified redemption prices plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Upon a change in contrel of the Company, as defined, the
holders of the Discount Notes may require the Company to
repurchase the Discount Notes at 101 percent of the accreted
value plus accrued interest to the date of repurchase.

The Discount Notes of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary,
STFCC, are subordinated to all existing and future senior
indebtedness, as defined, of the Company. The Discount
Notes are unconditionally and jointly and severely
guaranteed on an unsecured senior subordinated basis by the
Company and its subsidiary guarantors.
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In addition to similar restrictions to the Credit Agreement,
the indenture under which the Discount Notes ware issued
limits (i) the issuance of additional debt and preferrad
stock by the Company and subsidiaries, (ii) the payment of
dividends on capital stock of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the purchase, redemption or retirement of
capital stock or indebtedness, (iii) investments and (iv)
sales of assets, including capital stock of subsidiaries.

BANK REVOLVER

In May 1994, the Company entered into a $5,000 financing
agreement with a bank collateralized by certain assets of
the Company. The agreement provided for a revclving credit
line fror a maximum, as defined, of $4,000 to be used for
expansion in the shared telecommunications services business
and a $1,000 term loan. The Company retired this debt in
1996 and recorded an extraordinary expense of $311.

DEBT MATURITY

Scheduled maturities on long-term debt and capital lease
obligations are as follows:

Capital

Year Ending Long-Term Lease
December 31, Dabt Obligations
1997 $ 13,036 s S4C
1938 16,528 349
1868 11,926 BE
<00C 10,120 EM
2001 31,370 -
Thereafter 204,961 -
Subtotal 287,941 1,0Ce
Less - Accretion of 12-1/4% discount notes {37,112y -
Total debt maturities $250,829 $1,008

If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flow or
otherwise fails to comply with the variocus debt covenants,
it would be in default under the terms thereof. This would
permit the holders of such indebtedness to accelerate the
maturity of such indebtedness and could cause default under
such indebtadness of the Company. The Company's ability to
meet its obligations will be depandent upon the future
performance of the Company, which will be subject to
prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business
and other factors, including factors beyond the control of
the Company.
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7. REDEEMABLE PUT WARRANT:

In connection with the May 1994 bank financing agreement,
the Company issued the bank a redeemable put warrant for a
number of common shares of the Company's outstanding common
stock, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. The
warrant was redeemable at the Company's option prior to May
1996, and is redeemable at the bank's option at any time
after May 1997. As defined in the

agreement, the Company has guaranteed the bank a minimum of
$500 in cash upon redemption of the warrant, anid therefore,
initially valued the warrant at the present Value of the
minimum guarantee discounted at 11.25 percent. To the
extent that the Company's stock price exceeds approximately
$6.03 per share, the bank may eslect to receive stock in lieu
of the $500 cash as the value of the stock will exceed $500.
At December 31, 1996, the Company's stock price was $9.125
per share. The Company has therefore accreted through
interest expense the additional value due to the bank,
resulting in a liability of $§1,069 at vear-snd. The
liabilitv will continue to fluctuate until redemption based
on the Company's stock price.

8. REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK:
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

In connection with the Merger, the Company issued non-voting
Convertible Preferred Stock to RHI with an initial
liquidation prefersnce of $25.0 million. Dividends on the
Convertible Preferred Stock are payable gquarterly at the
rate of 6 percent per annum in cash. If for any reason a
dividend is not paid in cash when scheduled, the amount of
such dividend shall accrue interest at a rate of 12 percent
per annum until paid.

The Convertible Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference
of $25.0 million in the aggregate plus an additional amount
equal to the total amount of dividends the holder would have
received if dividends were paid quarterly in cash at the
rate of 10 percent per annum for the life of the issue,
minus the total amount of cash dividends actually paid (the
"Liquidation Preference®”). Fach share is convertible at any
time at the option of the holder into such number of Common
Shares as is determined by dividing the Liquidation
Preference thereof by the conversion price of $6.375. The
conversion price is subject to adjustment upon

oeccurrence of adjustment events including, but not limited
to, stock dividends, stock subdivisions and
reclassifications or combinations.

The Convertible Preferred Stock is not redeemable at the
Company's option during the first three years after
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issuance, but thereafter, upon 30 days' prior written
notice, is redeemables at the Company's option at a
redenption price of 100 percent of the Liquidation
Preference. 1In March 2008, the Company is required to
redeem 100 percent of the ocutstanding shares of Convertible
Preferred Stock at the Liquidation Preference.

SPECIAL PREFERRED STOCK

In connection with the Merger, the Company issued non-voting
Special Preferred Stock to RHI with an initial Liquidation
Preference of $20.0 million and recorded at an initial fair
value of $13,26%9. No dividends are payable on the Special
Preferred Stock until 2007 when the outstanding Special
Preferred Stock

will receive a dividend at a rate squal tc the interest rate
on the Discount Notes and calculated on the then ocutstanding
Liquidation Preference. The Special Preferred Stock's
initial liquidation preference of $20.0 million will
increase by $1.0 million each year after 1996 to a maximum
ligquidation preference of $30.0 million in 2007. The
Company is accreting the Special Preferred Stock to $30.0
million using the effective interest method and records the
accretion as preferred dividends.

Shares are redeemable at the Company's option at any time
upon 30 days' prior written notice, at a redemption price of
100 percent of the Ligquidation Preference. All outstanding
Special Preferred Stock is mandatorily redeemable in its
entirety at 100 percent of the Liguidation Preference upon a
change of control of the Company and, in any event, in 2008.
In addition, in March of each year, commencing with March
31, 1997, the Company is required to redeem, at a price
equal to 100 percent of the ligquidation preference in effect
from time to time, an amount of Special Preferred Stock
equal to 50 percent of the amount, if any, by which the
consclidated EBITDA, as defined, of the Company

and its subsidiaries exceeds a specified amount for the
immediately preceding year ended December 31. At December
31, 1996, the threshold was $47,000; therefore, no amounts
were due.

9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT

RHI and the Company are parties to a Shareholders Agreement
pursuant to which they have agreed to cause the Board of
Directors to consist at all times of eleven directors, with
RHI having the ability to nominate three or four and the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company having
the ability to

nominate seven. Each party agrees to vote for the other
party's nominees. Under the terms of the Sharehclders
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Agreement, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and RHI have agreed to certain restrictions with
respect to the resale of securities, other than the Special
Preferred Stock, of the Company owned by them as of the date
of the Merger.

The Shareholders Agresment terminates at such time as either
the Chairman and Chief Executive COfficer of the Company cr
RHI owns less than 25 percent of the shares of Common Stock
owned respectively by such Stockholders ¢n the date of the
Merger or the current individual ceases to be Chief
Executive Qfficer of the Company.

COMMON STOCK

The Company has authorized 50,000 shares of common stock at
$0.004 par value per share with equal voting rights.

During January 1995, the Company completed a private
placement to sell to a certain investor 300 shares of common
stock at $4.25 per share, pursuant t¢ Regulation 5§ of the
Securities Act of 1933. The Company received $1,163, after
deducting expenses of $112, including an underwriter
commission of $102 paid to a firm in which one of the
principals is a director and stockholder of the Company. In
addition, the underwriter was granted a five year common
stock purchase warrant to acguire 30 shares of the

Company's common stock for $5.00 per share.

In May and June 1994, the Company sold, through a private
placement to certain investors, 1,329 shares of common stock
and an equal number of warrants, for net proceeds of $4,562,
after deducting expenses of 5371. The warrants are
exercisable prior to June 26, 1999 at a per share price of
$4.25, subject to certain anti-dilution protection. As of
December 31, 1995, no warrants had been exercised.

SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK

Series C Preferred Stock is non-voting and is entitled to a
liquidation value of $4 per share and dividends of $.32 per
share per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. These shares
are convertible into common stock, at the holder's option,
on a one share of common stock for two shares of Series C
Preferred Stock basis, at any time, subject to certain
anti-dilution protection for the Preferred 5tockholders.

At the Company's option, the Series C Preferred Stock is
redeemable, in whole or in part, at any time after June 30,
1993, at $6 per share plus all accrued dividends.

SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK
In December 1993, the Company commenced a private placement

tc sell to certain investors units consisting of one share
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of Series D Preferred Stock and one warrant to purchase one
share of common stock. As of December 31, 1995, the
Company had sold 457 units for net proceeds of $1,740, after
deducting expenses of $430. Series D Preferred Stock is
entitled to dividends of 5 percent per annum, payable
quarterly, and may be redeemed for $7 per share, plus all
accrued dividends, at the option of the Company. The shares
are non-voting and are convertible into shares of the
Company's common stock on a one-for-one basis at the
holder's option. The shares are senior to all shares of the
Company's common stock and junjor to Series C Preferred
Stock. The common stock purchase warrants are exercisable
at a per share price of $5.75. 1In connection with the
offering, an investment banking firm received warrants to
purchase 16 shares of the Company's common stock at an
exercise price of $5.75 per share. As of December 31, 1996,

428 warrants had beaan exercised.
SERIES E PREFERRED STOCK

The Series E Preferred Stock was converted into 400 shares
of common stock in January 1995. The holders also received
warrants, which expire on December 31, 1999, to purchase
175 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise
price of $4.25 per share, subject to certain anti-dilutive
provisions.

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK

These shares were converted on August 1, 1995 into 700
shares of common stock. In 1996, an additional 111 shares
of the Company's common stock were issued in connection with

the provigions of conversion of the Series I Preferred
Stock, as defined.

Additionally, the Company issued warrants to the sellers of

Access to purchase 225 shares of the Company's common stock

at an exercise price of $4.25 per share, subject to certain
anti-dilution adjustments.

10. GAIN ON SALE OF SUBSIDIARY COMMON STOCK:

In April 1995, STC completed its SB-2 filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and became a public
company. Prior to this date, STC was approximately an 86
percent owned subsidiary of the Company. STC sold 950 shares
of common stock at $5.25 per share, which generated net
proceeds of approximately $3,274 after underwriters'
commissions and coffering expenses. The net effect of the
public offering on the consolidated financial statements was
a gain of approximately $1,375.

™
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11. STOCK OPTION PLANS:
1987 STOCK OPTION PLAN

Under the 1987 Stock Option Plan (the "1987 Plan"), the
Company is authorized to issue options to purchase an
aggregate of 1,200 shares of Common Stock of the Company.
All options granted are exercisable at the date of grant,
with a term of five to ten years and are exercisable in
accordance with vesting schedules set individually by the
Board of Directors. As of December )1, 1996, approximate:ly
131 options were available for grant. Options to purchase
%56 shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31,

1996.
BCARD OF DIRECTORS STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Board of Directors Stock Option Plan (the "“Directors'
Plan*), was adopted by the Board of Directors in 1994 and
accepted by the stockholders of the Company in 1995. Under
the Directors' Plan, an "independent director" is a director
of the Company who is neither an employee nor a principal
stockholder of the Company. The Directors' Plan provided
for a one-time grant of an option to purchase 15 shares of
common stock to all independent directors who served during
the 1994-95 term.

Each independent director who received the initial one-time
option grant in 1994, and who was elected tc a new term as a
director in 1995 or is reelected in 1996, shall receive upon
such reelection a grant of an opticn for 5 or 10 options,
respectively. Reelection after 1996 of any independent
director in service as of September 22, 1994, shall entitle
such director to a grant of 15 options.

All options issued under the Directors' Plan are exercisable
at the closing bid price for the date preceding the date of
grant. The options vest over three years and are
exercisable for so long as the optionee continues as an
independent director and for a period of 90 days after the
optionee ceases tc be a director of the Company. The
maximum term of the option is ten years from the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of common stock which
may be issued under the Directors' Plan is 250 shares, of
which options to purchase 145 are ocutstanding as of December
31, 1996.

1996 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

In connection with the acquisition of FII, the Company
adopted the 1996 Equity Incentive Plan (the "1956 Plan"),
pursuant to which the Company will offer shares, and share-
based compensation, to key employees. The 1956 Plan
provides for the grant to eligible employees of stock
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options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
performance shares, and performance units (the "Awards").
The 1996 Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee
of the Company's Board of Directors (the "Compensation
Committee®™). The 1996 Plan provides that not more than
1,500 shares of common stock will be granted under the 199¢
Plan, subject to certain anti-dilutive adjustments. The
exercise price will be set by the Compensation Committee,
but can not be less than the market value of the stock at
date of issuance. Stock appreciation rights may be granted
only in tandem with stock options. Options to purchase
1,478 shares of common stock ware outstanding at Decaember

31, 1996.

SUMMARY ACTIVITY

NUMBER OF WEIGHTED

OFTIONS RANGE AVERAGE
Balance outstanding, January 1, 1994 464 $172-1100 $4 06
Granted 317 325-4 %0 160
Expired (59) 400-55% 543
Exercised (25) 284 by
Balance putstanding, December 31, 1994 697 172-1100 178
Granted 40 4.13 413
Expired (2) 300-572 56
Exercised 2) 228-24 258
Balance outstanding, December 31, 1993 733 172-1100 179
Granted 1,716 413-773 4 50
Expired (32) 438 438
Exercised {218) 172-5% 148
Balance outstanding, December 31, 1996 2,179 $1.72-511 00 $ 437

At December 31, 1996, thaere were 440 options immediately
exercisable at prices ranging from $2 to $11.

The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS
Ne.123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, "
effective for the Company's December 31,1996, financial
statements. The Company appliss APB Opinion No.25 and
related interpretations in accounting for its plans.
Accordingly, compensation cost has been recognized for its
stock plans based on the intrinsic value of the stock cption
at date of grant (i.e., the difference between the exercise
price and the fair value of the Company's stock). Had
compensation cost for the Company's stock-based

compensation plans been determined based on the fair value
at the grant dates for awards under those plans consistent
with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company's net (loss)
income and (loss) earnings per share would have been reduced
to the pro forma amounts indicated below.




1996 1295

Net (loss) inccme available to common shareholders:

As reported $(10,935) S

Pro forma (12,364)
(Loss) earnings per share:

As reported {0.79) 0.

Pro forma (0.90; .

Because the SFAS No. 123 method of accounting has not been
applied to cptions granted prior to January i, 1995, the
resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be
representative of that to be axpected in future years.

The fair value of each option granted was $3.26 per option
and was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions used for grants in 1996 and 1995: risk-
free interest rates of 6.0 percent; no dividend yields:
expected lives of 5 to 10 years; and expected velatilities
of 52 percent.

12, RETIREMENT AND SAVINGS PLAN:

On March 3, 1989, the Company adopted a savings and
retirement plan (the "Plan®), which covers substantially
all of the Company's employees. Participants in the Plan may
elect to make contributions up to a maximum of 20 percent
of their compensation. For each participant, the Company
will make a matching contribution of one-half of the
participant's contributions, up to 5 percent of the
participant's compensation. Matching contributions may be
made in the form of the Company's common stock and are
vested at the rate of 33 percent per year. The Company's
expense relating to the matching contributions was
approximately $609, $199 and $163 for 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively. At December 131, 1996 and 1995, the Plan owned
148 and 134 shares, respectively, of the Company's

common stock.

12. INCOME TAXES:

Under the liabkility method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differances between
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities,
and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that
will be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse.
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Income tax (expenss) benefit consists of the following:

1996 1995 1994
Current:
Federal $ - $(10) $ -
State and local {223} 145) {631
[223) {22) {83}
Deferred:
Federal {560) 10 550
State and local = = =
L380) a8 220

Total (expense) benefit $(783] S(45) £487

The income tax provision for continuing operations differs
from that computed using the statutory Federal income tax
rate of 35 percent in 1996, 1995 and 1994 for the following
reasons.

1996 1993 1994
Computed statutory amount §2,616 S$(340) S(630)
Effect of net operating losses - 285 567
Valuation allowance on net
operating loss tax benefits (3,004) 10 550
Other {398) fd =

$(783) 2 (45) £.487

The following table is a summary of the significant
components of the continuing operations portion of the
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December
31, 1996 and 1995.

DEFERRED (PROVISION)
BENEFIT
1996 1995
Deferred tax assets:
Equity in loss of subsidiary $1,588 104
Accrued expenses not yet tax deductible 5,581 164
NQOL carryforwards 9,156 8,641

16,325 8,909

Deferred tax liabilities:
Asset basis differences-fixed assets (11,008) (1,218}
Asset basis differences-intangible assets
(Goodwill and other intangibles) (1.,373)  (183)
{12.381) (1,401)



Deferred tax asset, net 3,944 7,508

Less- Valuation allowance {3.944) (6,948
Net deferred tax asset $ - $£.560

At December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company recorded net
deferred tax assets of $0 and $560, respectively, and
corresponding valuation allowances of $3,944 and $6,948,
respectively. The valuation allowances were decreased by
$3,004, $439 and 51,418 respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 1996, 1995 and 19%4.

At December 31, 1996, the Company's NOL carryforward for
federal income tax purposes is approximately $23,100,
expiring between 2001 and 2011. NOL's available for state
income tax purposes are less than those for federa purposes
and generally expire earlier. Limitations api.y .. *he use
of NOL's.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
COMMITMENTS

The Company has entered int¢ operating leases for the use of
office facilities and equipment, which expire through 2007.
Certain of the leases are subject to escalations for
increases in real estate taxes and other operating expenses.
Rent expense amounted to approximately $6,093, $2,200 and
$1,856 for the yvyears ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively.

Aggregate approximate future minimum lease payments are as
follows:

OPERATING

LEACES
1997 $5,278
1998 4,807
1999 4,156
2000 3,345
2301 2,674
Thereafter 3,230

223,490

CONTINGENCIES

As a result of the acguisition of FII (the "Merger"), the
Company became liable for all liabilities of FII with
respect to the operations of the former businesses of FII,
including the FII Telecommunications Business and its
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aerospace and industrial fasteners business up to the
effective date of the Merger as well as operations of FII
disposed of prior to the Merger, including

its injection molding business. As a matter cof law, the
Company will not be released from FII's cbligations with
respect to such liabilities.

As a pre-condition of the Merger: (a) FII, its parent RHI,
and RHI's parent, Fairchild and certain other subsidiaries
of Fairchild underwent a recapitalization pursuant to which
FIT divested itself of all assets unrelated to the FII
Telecommunications Business; (b) RHI assumed all liabilities
of FII unrelated to the FII Telecommunications Business
(other than the Retained Liabilities), including but not
limited to the following (collectively, the "Non-
communications Liabilities”): (i) contingent liabilities
related to a dispute with the United States Government under
Government Contract Accounts rules concerning potential
liability arising out of the use of and accounting, for
approximately %50.0 million in excess pension funds
relating to certain government contracts in the discontinued
aerospace business of FII:; (ii} all environmental
liabilities except those related to the FII
Telecommunications Business:; (iii) approximately $50.0
million (at June 30,1995)0f costs associated with post-
retirement healthcare benefits; and (iv) all other accrued
liabilities and any and all other unasserted liabilities
unrelated to the FIl Telecommunications Business; and (c)
pursuant to certain indemnification agreements (the
"Indemnification Agreements"), the Company is indemnified
(1) by Fairchild and RHI jointly and severally with respect
to all Non-communications Liabilities and all tax
liabilities of FII and STFTI resulting from the FII
Recapitalization or otherwise attributable to periods prior
to the Merger and (ii) by Fairchild Holding Corp. (a company
formed in connecticon with the FII Recapitalization) with
respect to the liabjilities that are indemnified for being
herein collectively referred to as the "Indemnified
Liabilities™). The Company believes no taxable gain or loss
was recognized by FII or any of its affiliates on the
transfer of the FII assets and liabilities pursuant to the
FII recapitalization.

In December 1995, a suit was filed against the Company in
U.5. District Court for the Southern District of New York
alleging breach of a letter agreement and seeking an amount
in excess of $2.2% million for a commission allegedly owed
to a vendor as a result of a vendor initiating negotiations
between the Company and FII and negotiating the Merger. A
vendor has alleged that the Company entered into a fee
agreement, whereby the Company agreed to pay tc the vendor
0.75 percent of the value of the transaction as a fee. FII
has denied that FII at any time engaged the vendor for this
transaction. The Company filed an answer in January 1996,
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denying that any commission is owed. This litigation is in
the discovery process. Management balieves, howaver, that
an adverse cutcome, if any, will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company's consolidated

financial statemants.

In January 1994, the Company entered into a consulting
agreement for financial and marketing services, which
expires in November 19596. The agreement provides for the
following compensation; $30 upon signing, $6 per month
retainer, and $150 upon the attainment of a specific
financial ratio, which as of December 31, 1395 had beenr
attained. 1In addition, the consultant was 1ssued a three
year warrant to purchase 300 shares of the Company's common
stock at a purchase price of $5.75 per share and a five year
warrant to purchase 250 shares of the Company's common
stock at a purchase price of $7.00 per share. The
consultant may not compete with the Company during the term
of this agreement and for two years thereafter.

In November 1995, the Company entered into a three year
consulting agreement with a financial advisor requiring
annual compensation of $250.

In December 1995, the Company granted options to employees
of the Company, STC and certain members of the Board of
Directors of the Company and STC, to purchase an aggregate
of 350 shares of STC common stock, held by the Company. The
options are exercisable for five years, at $2.50 per share.

The Company's sales and use tax returns in certain
jurisdictions are currently under examination. Management
believes these examinations will not result in a material
change from liabilities provided.

In additicn teo the above matters, the Company is a party to
various legal actions, the outcome of which, in the opinion
of management, will not have a material adverse effect on
results of operations, cash flows or financial position of
the Company.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

As of December 31, 1993, the company had paid approximately
$288 of life insurance premiums on behalf of an officer of
the Conmpany, which was to be repaid from the proceeds of a
$2,500 face value life insurance peclicy owned by the
president. In January 1994, the beneficiary on the policy
was changed to the Company in order to reduce the premium
payments reguired by the Company. As of December 31, 1996,
the amount due to the Company for premiums paid exceeded the
cash surrender value of the policy by approximately $130C.
Accordingly, the officer has agreed to reimburse the
Company for this amount. The receivable and cash surrender
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value are reflected in other assets in the accoumpanying
consolidated balance sheaets,

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instrunents,” requires disclosures of fair value information
about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in
the balance sheet, for which it is practicakble to estimate
that vaiue. Financial instruments are defined as cash,
evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or a contract
that imposes a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
other financial instruments to the second party. In cases
where quoted market prices are not available, fair values
are based on estimates of future cash flows. In that regard,
the derived fair value sstimates cannot be substantiated by
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could
not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument.
SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all
nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do
not represent the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the
Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for
financial instruments.

CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet
approximates the fair value for cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, advancad billings,
deferred revenue, accrued liabilities and capital lease
cbligations.

LONG-TERM DEBT

There is no active market for the Company's long-term debt
securities, and consequently, no quoted market prices are
available. The Company's long-term debt securities can be
segregated into two distinct categories: variable rate long-
term debt that reprices frequently and fixed rate long-term
debt.

VARIABLE RATE LONG-TERM DEBT ~ The Company's Credit Facility
Tern Loans, Credit Revolving Facility and Bank Revolver
carry a rate of interest which varies in relation to LIBOR
or prime, a common market interest rate. Bacauss these
loans reprice within one to six menths, fluctuations in
market interest rates do not mataerially impact the fair
market value of these obligationa. Therefore, the carrying
value of these financial instruments approximate fair market
value.
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FIXED RATE LONG-TERM DEBT - The fair value of the Company's
Senior Subordinated Discount Notes is estimated using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company's
borrowing cost for similar credit facilities, at December
31, 1996. As minimal changes in the market level of interest
rates occurred since issuance in March 1996, the Company
estimates that carrying value approximates fair market
value, at December 131, 1996,

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

The Company holds interest rate swap agreements with two
commercial banks in order to reduce the impact of potential
interest rate increases on its variable rate debt. At
December 31, 1996, it would have cost appircximately $1,059
tc break the Company's interest rate swap agreements. The
Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of non-
performance by the bbanks, however, such non-performance is
not anticipated.

REDEEMABLE PUT WARRANT

The carrying amount of the redeemable put warrant
approximates fair market value as it is adjusted quarterly
to reflect the Company's liability due to the holder.

REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

The Company estimates the fair market value of the
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock at carrying value
based on the conversion feature and underlying value of
common stock at year end.

The fair market value of the Redeemable Special Preferred
Stock is estimated at carrying cost. Carrying cost reflects
a discount to face value.

This disclosure relates to financial instruments only. The
fair value assumptions were bassd upon subjective estimates
of market conditions and parceived risks of the financial
instruments at a certain point in time.

17. CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The following unaudited statements separately show Shared
Technologies Fairchild Inc. and the subsidjiaries of Shared
Technologies Fairchild Inc. (representing Shared
Technologies Fairchild Communications Corp., and Shared
Technelogies Fairchild Telecommunications Inc., or "STFTI").
These statements ire provided to fulfill reporting
requirements and represent guarantors of the Senior
Subordinated Discount Notes issued by STFCC.




Assels
Cusrent assets-
Cash und cash equovalents
Accounts receavable, met
Onber current assels

Tolal current assets

Equpment-
Property and equupment

Accumuiated deprecuation

Other assets-
Costs 10 excess of pet assets acqured, net
Deferred financing snd debt issuance costs
lovestments w affibates
Investment 10 Subndisnes
Otber

Note reccivable

Total assets
Luabihties and stockholders' aquity
Current Lishbiies-
Current porhon of long- term debt and
capital lease obligations
Accounts pavable
Accrued expensecs
Advanced nilings
Accrued dividends
Total current hatalibes
Long-term debt, less agrrent partion
Redeemable put warrant
Redecmable convertible preferred swock
Redermable special preferred stock

Stockholdery' equuty-
Preferred stock Senes C

STFII

$237
32,520
3829

ne

95,934
(28,169)

67,765

251,29

407
251,736

$360. 227

17,35
9,553

6,915

33,844

134 461

STFCC

8,513

95,421

134,461
238,395

$238.395

$13.576

13,576

233,261

Eliminating
STF1

$ 326
41

o9

12,0513

84,905

96,958

$97.227

435

1,069
25,000

14,167
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Preferred stock Senes D
Common stock
Capial 1n exoess of par value

Accumulated deficit
Intercompany

Total nockholdery’ equty

Total habilities and
stockholdery’ equity

Revenues
Cost of revenues

Gross margin

Selling, general and sdmumstrative expenses

Operaung income
{ MheT (eXpense ) ncome

Equity 1n (loss) earmings of subsidiary and afliliates
Interest expense, net

[ncome (loss) before income Wx provinas and
extraordinary item

Income tax provision

Income (loss) before extrasordinany 1em
Extraordunary 1lem. loss on early retirement
Nel income {joss)

Preferred stock dividends

Net income (loss) applicable 1o comman stock

Cash flows from operstung acuvities

Net loss) income

Adjustments-
Loss on eariy reuranent of dett
Deprecistion snd amortization
Provinion for doubtful accounts
Accretion on 12 1/4% bonds
AccTetion on pul warTant

11.5%6
180,326

191,922
$360.227

STFT1

5152241
81,616

70,625
55329

15296

(9.461)

(9.461)

5,835
(783)
5,052
(311

4,74}

$ 4741

STFT1

14741

31
15,530
2

(13,442)

(13,442)

$218,395
STFCC

(13.442)

(13.442)

(13,442)
{13.442)

(13,442)

$13.442)

STFCC

$(13,442)

11,526

4
63
76,054

(19.474)

56,65]

97,327

Eliminating
STF1

1 5,000
956

4,044

4,044

(11,986)
1%
(11,971)

(7.927)

(7.92M

(7.92N

(2.366)

$(10293)

Eliminating
STF1

s
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Equity in earnings (loss) of affiliste
Stock options and conunon stock iesued

in Liew of compesstion and other
Changes in assets and Liabilities, net of
effect of scquisitions

Accounts reoeivable

Other current assets

Net cash provided by opersting activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of equipment
Acquinition, net of cash sequired
Payments to affiliate
Invesunents i affiliates

Net cash wsed 10 investung activilies

Cash flows froun financing activities.
Repayments of long-term
debt and capital lease obligatims
Proceeds from borrowings-
Credit facility term loams
Revolving credit [acility
Senior subordinated discount nolss
Proceeds from sales of common snd
prefared stock
Preferred siock dividends paid
Deferred financing and debt issuance costs
(Advances to) amounts received from affilistes

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net incrense (decrease) in cash
Cash, beganning of year

Cash, end of yeur

{44)
45
LX)

(427
2261
1203

20,323

(9,702)
(223,924)
(3.407)

(244.033)

(4,912)

230,523

225,611

1,901
476

$23M

(1,750)
120,000

10,000
114,999

(9.416)
(225,917

1,916

11,986

337

(2,804)

(2.804)

3213
(1.46T)

("m)

(2.860)

326

$ 326

(8,059 yerT

3

1 BS
483

83
Sed

r4 277
2261
V203

418
24 3197

(9702,
RN I
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(2. 804,

Jde 83T

11260l
120,000

16,000
114,999

3213

rhAeT)
19418

Il on”
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PART III

Iten 13.
Certain Relationships and ralated Transactions

The Company incorporates by reference items 10, 11,
12 and 13 in its Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on April 30, 1897 (to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April
19, 1997).
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PART IV

iten 14,

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form
10-K

(a) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Public Accountants

Consclidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1996 and
1995.

Consclidated Statements of Operations for the years ended
Decembsr 231, 1996, 1995 and 1994.

Consclidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the
years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow for the years ended
December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994.

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statemants
Financial Statements Schedulas: Schedule VIII
{(b) Reports on Form B8-K

On March 28, 1996 the Company files a Form 8-K Item 2
and 7 detailing the complaetion of the merger of Fairchild
Industries, Inc., with and into tha Company effective March
13, 1996.

On May 9, 1996 the Company filed a Form 8-K Item 2 and
7 detailing that on April 27, 1996 the Company, through its
subsidiary Shared Technologies Cellular, Inc. completed its
acquisition of certain assets of Cellular Glcbal Investments
of Northern California, Inc., Access Cellular Corp., Summit
Assurance Cellular, Inc., Rocad and Show Cellular Arizona,
Road and Show Cellular West, Northstar Cellular Corp. and
Craig A. Marlar.

On May 28, 1996 the Company filed a Form 8-K Item 7 in
which it included audited financial statements of Fairchild
Industries, Inc. and consclidated subsidiaries pursuant to
its March 13, 1996 merger.

On November 22, 1996 the Company filed a Form 8-K Item
4 concerning its change in public accountants from
Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C. to Arthur Andersen LLP.

(c}) Exhibits
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Exhibit No.

1.0

3(Iy.2

3(I).3

3(ii).1

Description of Exhibit

Purchase Agresment dated March 8, 1996
among the Company, the guarantors named
therein and CS First Boston Corporation
and Citicorp USA, Inc. Incorporated by
reference to the Company's Form &8-K filed
on March 27, 1986.

Agreeasnt and Plan of Merger dated as of
Novembsr 9, 1995 among Shared Technologies
Fairchild Inc. (formerly Shared

Technologlies Inc.) ("STFI™), Fairchild
Indusatries, Inc. ("FII™), RHI Holdings, Tnc.
{"RHI") and The Feirchild cCorporation
("TFA®). Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Form B-K filed on March 27, 1996.

First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of
Merger dated aa of February 2, 1996 among
STFI, FII, RHI and TPFC. Incorporated

by reference to the Company's Form 8~K filed
on March 27, 1996.

Second Anendment to Agreement and Plan of
Marger dated as of february 24, 1996 among
STFI, RHI and TFC. Incorporated by
referance to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Third Amendment to Agreement and Plan of
Marger dated as of March 1, 1996 among STFI.
FII, RHI and TFC. Incorporated by

raference to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company. Incorporataed by refersnce to the
Company's Form 8~K filed on March 27, 1996.

Certificate of Merger of STI and FII.
Incorporated by raferance to tha Company's
Form 8-K filed on Merch 27, 1996.

Certificate of Incorporation of Shared
Technologies Fairchild Communications Corp.
("STAFF"). Incorporated by referance to the
Company's Fore 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Anended and Restated By-laws of STI.

Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.
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3¢ii).2

3¢ii).3

10.1

1G.2

Amsendment to Amended and Restated By-laws of
STI. Incorporated by refarance to the
Company's Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

By-laws of the Company. Incorporated by
referance to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Certificate of Designations of Series G 6%
Cumulative convertible Preferred Stock of
STFI. Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Certificate of Designations of Series H
Special Preferred Stock of STFI.
Incorporated by reference to thes Company's
Form 8-K filed on Harch 27, 1996.

Certificate of Designations of Series I &%
Cumulative Convertible Prefarred Stock of
STFI. Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Form 8-K flled on March 27, 1996.

Certificate of Designations of Series J
Special Preferred Stock of STFI.
Incorporated by referance to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Indenturse dated as of March 1, 1996 among the
Company, the guarantors named therein and
United States Trust Company of New York, as
trustee. Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Form 8-~K filed on March 27, 1996.

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of
March 13,1996 among the Company, the
guarantors nased therein and United States
Trust Company of New York, as trustee.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Registration Rights Agreement dated March &,
1996 among the Company, STFI, the guarantors
named therein and CS First Boston Corporation
and Citicorp USA, Inc. Incorporated by
reference to the Company's Form 8~-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13,
1996 among STI, RHI and TFC. Incorporated by
refarence to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Credit Agreement dated as of March 12, 19%§
among the Company, STFI, Credit Suisse,
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Citicorp USA, Inc., NationsBank and the
other lenders named therein. Incorporated by
reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Security Agreement dated as of March 13, 1996
among STAFF, STFI, each subsidiary of STAFF
naped therein and Credit Suisse, as
collateral agent for the secured parties.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Pledge Agresment dated as of March 13, 1996
among STFCC, STFI, each subkaidiary of STFCC
named therein and Credit Suisse, as
collateral agent for the secured parties
Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Parent Guarantes Agreement dated as March 12,
1996 between STI and Credit Suisse, as
collateral agent for the secured parties.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Subsidiary Guarantee Agreement dated as of
March 12, 1996 among the subsidiaries of
STFCC and STFI named therein and Credit
Suisse,as collateral agant for the secured
parties. Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Form B8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Agreement to Exchange 6% Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock and Special
Preferred Stock dated as of March 1, 1996
among STI FII, RHI and TFC.

Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Shareholders' Agreezent dated as of March 13,
1596 among STI, RHI and Anthony D. Autorino.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Form 8-K filed on March 27, 1996.

Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of March 13,
1996 between STI and RHI. Incorporated by
reference to the Company's Form 8-K

filed on March 27, 1996.

Indemnification Agresment datad as of March
13, 1996 between STI and Incorpcrated by
reference to the Company's Form 8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.
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10.

10.

10.

10.

21

27

99

12

13

14

15

Indemnification Agreamant dated as of March
13, 1996 among STI, TFC and RHI. Incorporated
by reference to the Company's Form B-K filed
on March 27, 1996.

Indemnity Subrogation and Contribution
Agresment dated as of March 12, 1996 between
STFCC and Credit Suisse as collateral agent
for the secured parties. Incorporated by
reference to the Company's Form B8-K filed on
March 27, 1996.

Management Agreemsent dated August 1996 by and
among Shared Technologies Fairchild Ine.,

ICS Communications, Inc., Interactive Cable
Systems, Inc. and MCI Telecommunications
Corporation.

Interim Management Agresment dated February
24, 1997 by and among Shared Technologies
Pairchild Inc., GE capital-ResCom, L.P.,
ResCom, Inc. and POTS, Inc.

List of subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Financial Data Schedule

Pursuant to Regulation §-X Rule 3-09 the
Company 1s incorporated by referencea. The
audited consolidated financial statements for
Shared Technologies Cellular, Inc. ("STcC")
included as part of STC's Form 10-K filed on
or before March 31, 1997.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Saection 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by tha
undersigned, thereunto duly authorizad.

(Registrant)

By /(\s/ Anthony D, Autorino
Anthony D. Autorino
Chajirman, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Date: March 27, 1997

By

Vincent DiVincenzo

Senjor Vice President - Finance and
Administration, Treasurer, Chief
Financial Officer and Director

Date: March 27,

1997

Pursuant to the reguirements of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

By /s/ Anthony D, Autorino

Anthony D. Autorino

By
Jeffrey J. Steiner

Chairman, Chief Executive Vice Chairman and
Officer and Director Director
Date: March 27, 1997 March 27, 1997
By /s By
Mel D. Borer, President, Chief Jo McKenzie, Director
Operating Officer and Director March 27, 1997
Date: March 27 1997
By /s By
Natalia Hercot, Director Thomas H. Decker, Director
Date: March 27, 1997 Date: March 27, 1997
By By /s/ Dopald E, Miller
Ajit G. Hutheesing, Director Donald E. Miller,Director
Date: March 27, 1997 Date: March 27, 1997
By /s/ Vincent DiVincenze By
Vincent DiVincenzo, Director William A. DiBella
Date: March 27, 1997 Director
Date: March 27, 19%7
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ltem 1. Financial Statemants

Sharad Technologies Fairchild inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheats

September 30, 1997 snd December 31, 1998
{In thousands}

Assots
Current Assets:

Cash
Accounts recaivable, less allowance for doubtful

sccounts of $300in 1997 and $811 in 19596
Inventories
Other currant sgsets

Total currant assets

Equipment:
Property & Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Other Assets:
Investment in affiliates
Intangible assets
Deferred income taxes
QOther

Total assets

The accompanying nates are sn integral part of these financial statements

-3-

September 30, 1997

December 31 1995

{unaudited)
L 178 ) 2.703
34,185 32,562
4,735 1,876
3,981 1,853
43,029 39,095
105,302 95,924
(37,234) (28,169
68,0088 67,765
754 457
258,076 261,842
3186 407
259,145 262.706
[ ] 370,242 ) 369,566




Shared Technologies Falrchild Inc.
Consolideted Balance Shests

September 30, 1987 and Decermber 31, 1998
{In thousands)

Lisbilities and Stockholdars’ Equity
Curreant Lisbilities:
Current portion of long term debt and
capital lease obligstions
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued dividends
Advanced billings
Total current lizbilities

Long-term debt and capital leass obiigations,
lass current portion

Redeamable put warrant

Convertible preferrad stock
$.01 par value, authorized 250 shares, outstanding 250 shares
in 1997 and 1996

Spaecial preferred stock
$.01 par value, authorized 200 shares, ocutstanding 200 ghares
in 1997 and 1996

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, suthorized 2%,000 shares:

Series C, outstanding, no shares in 1997 and 428 shares

in 1996

Seriss D, outstanding, 58 shares in 1997 and 441 ghares

in 1996
Commaon Stock; $.004 par valua, 50,000 shares suthorized,

outstanding 17,186 shares in 1997 and 15,682 shares in 1996
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Totsl stockholders’ equity

Total habilities and stockholders’ squity

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of thess financis! statements.

- -

Septembaer 30, 1997

December 31, 1596

{unsudited)
] 16,083 ] 13,576
18,364 17.356
7.948 9,558
1,686 435
1,078 6,935
51,059 47,860
239,633 238,261
887 1,069
25,000 25 .000
15,081 14167
- 4
1 4
69 63
78,137 76.054
{39.605) {32,916}
38,802 43,209
) 370,242 ] 369.566




Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc.
Consolidated Statamants of Operations
For the Nine Months Ended

Septembar 30, 1997 and 1996

{In thousands except par share data}
{unaudited}

Revenue:
Shared telecommunications services -
Telecommunications systems

Tota! Revenue

Cost of Revenus:
Shared telecommunications services
Telecornmunications systems

Total Cost of Revenue
Gross margin
Selling, general & administrative sxpenses
Opersting Incoms

Othar tncoma {expense):
Equity in loss of affiliate
Net interest expense

Income {loss} befora income taxes and extraordinary item
Income tax

Income {loss} before extraordinary item

Extraordinary item, loss on early retirement of debt

Neat incomas (loss)

Preferred stock dividends

Mat incomae {loss) applicable to commaon steck

income {loss) per comman share:
Income f{loss) before extraordinary item
Extraordinary itern
Net income (loss)

Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thess financial staterments.

.

Septembar 30, 1987

Saptember 30. 1996

[} 82,539 (] 69,310
59,240 41,585

141,779 110,895

39,272 34.233

31,853 25019

71,126 59,252

70,654 51.643

51,538 39,118

19,118 12,525
{(21Q) {2,009}

(21,894) {15,246)

{21,904) {17.245%)

{2,788) {4,730

(214} (74

{3,000) {4,804)

- (310
{3.000) {5,114;
{3,889} 11,682
.#Magl L {6796
’ (0.42) ] 0 49
- i0 02

¢ {0.42) ¢ 052
16,039 13,316




Shared Technologiss Fairchild Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Thres Months Ended
Septamber 30, 1987 and 19396

{(In thousarkis excapt par share data)
{unaudited)

Revenue:
Shared telecommunications services
Telecommunications systems

Total Reveanue

Cost of Revenue:
Shared telecommunications services
Talecommunications systems

Total Cost of Revenue
Gross margin
Selling, general & administrative sxpsnses
Operating Incomae

Other income (expanse):
Equity in loss of sffiliate
Net interest expense

Income {loss) before incomae taxes and sxtraordinary item
Income tex

Income {ioss) befors extraordinary item

Extraordinary item, loss on sarly retirement of debt

Net incoma {loss}

Praferred stock dividends

Nat income (loss) applicable to common stock

Incoma (ioss) par common share:
Income {loss} before extraordinary item
Extraordinary itam
MNat incomaea {lose)

Waighted Average Sheres Outstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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September 30, 1897

September 30, 1996

] 28,937 ’ 27,384
19,224 19,739

46,161 47,123

13,081 13,143

11,434 11,301

24,495 24 444

21,8668 22,679

17,202 16,262

4,464 6,417

{24) {310

{7,214} (6,99%5)

{7,238} {7.30%)

(2,774} (888)

(B} {34}

(2.780) (922

(2,780} (922

(1,380) {1,081

[ 4,170) [ {2,003
’ {0.28) [ {0.13)
) {0.2%) [ 013
16,531 15,066




Shared Technologles Fairchild Inc.
Consclidated Statemants of Cash Flows
For tha Nine Months Ended
September 30, 1997 and 1996
{in thousands}
{unaudited)
September 30, 1697 September 30, 19956

Cash Fiows Used In Operating Activitien:
Net Income {loss) ’ {3,000} ’ {5,114}
Adjustments:

Extraordinary lass on early retirement of debt - - 310
Depreciation & amortization 14,294 11,625
Accreton of put warrant (182} -
Equity in loss of affiliate 210 2,009
Accretion on 12 1/4% bonds 11,782 7.803
Amoprtization of discount on note 14
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,502) {1,031
Inventory 2,768) -
Other current assets {2,389) 627}
Crther assets 1,018 1,732
Accounts payable 1,038 646
Accrued expenses (490 2,039
Advanced billings 144 (47 2)
Nat cash provided by oparsting activitias 18,092 18,834
Cash Flows Used in Invasting Activities:
Purchases of equipment {8,388) (7.092)
Investments in affdiates {807) {1.494)
Aguisitions, net of cash aquired (1,240} (4,011
Nst cash used In Investing sctivities {11,118) 112,597,
Cash Flows From Finsncing Activitiea:
Preferred stock dividends {3.885] {1,007,
Repayments of notes payabie, long-term debt
and capital lease obhgations 9,903) {192,004)
Borrowings under notes payable and long-term debt 2,000 244,999
Payments to atflate - {8.407)
Deferred finance ¢osts (888) {9,416}
Proceeds from sales of common stock 2,082 373
Repayment of Fil preferred stock 804 (40,706)
Net cash provided by {used In} financing ectivities {9,602} {8,168
Net increase (decrease) In cash (2.526) 63
Cash, Beginning of Pariod 2,703 476
Cash, End of Parlod ] 178 L B45
Supplemantel Discioswres of Cash Flow information:
Cash paid during the periad for -
Interest ’ 12,088 . R 100
income taxes 214 119
Non cash transactions -
Issuance of commaon stock to acquire Fli - 27,7150
Issuance of preferred stock to acquire Fil - 3B.269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financis! statements.
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Shared Technsiegies Fairchild Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders” Equity
For the periew ended Septamber 30, 1997

ln thousands) .
Saeries C Serles ;) Addiviensl Total
Prederred Stoch Prolerred Stech Commen Stock Peidin  Accumwisted Steckhalders
Shwes Ameount Shaw Ameuni Shees Amount  Capltal o=l Eaqualty
Balance, Jonmary 1, 1387 428 4 441 & 4 16,882 ¢ 63 ¢ 76,054 ¢ {32,916} ¢ 43,209
Preferred stock dividends {12,796} {2,.796)
Dividend accretion of specisl preferred stock 1894) 894)
Excercse of commmon stock options and wamants . 124 3 1,498 1,601
hsuance of comsmon stock for 401k plan match 82 - 580 580
Prelered stock converted to comman sto 42e) 4} 383) (K] 698 3 6 1
Net Loss _ | 13.000) 3.000}
Balance, September 30, 1997 L '- 68 ¢ 1 17,186 69 ¢ 78,137 {$39.606) ¢ 238,602

The accompanyng notes e an integral part ol these lnancial statements




Shared Technologims Fairchild Ine.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 19%%7

{In thousands}

(Unaudited)

l. Basis of Presentation:

The consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by Shared
Technclogies Fairchild Inc. (the Company) pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect all adjustments, consisting only of nz:r-..
recurring adjustments, which are, in the opinlon of managemant, necessary to present a
fair statement of the results for interim periods. Certain information and footnote
disclosures have been omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations, although the Cocrja-,
believes that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not
misleadirg. It 1s suggested that these consolidated financial -tatements be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto includec

the Company's December 31, 1996 report on Form 10-K.

2. Investment 1n Unconsciidated Subsidiary

The Company's investment 1n 1ts unconsolidated subsidiary, Shaied Technologies Cellular,
Inc. (STC}, 1s acceunted for under the equity method. Pricr to December 19%9%5, STC was a
majority-owned s.bsidiary and was included on a consolidated basis. During December [&%-°,
STC issued approximately 53,000 in voting preferred stock to third parties. Although '«
Company's ownership percentage of approximately 508 did not change, the voting righ=s
assigned to the preferred stock reduced the Company's voting lnterest in STC, result:on; .-
the Company's loss of voting contrel of STC. Accordingly, S5TC has been accounted for -
the equity method since 1996. At September 30, 1997 the Company had an ownership inteces:
of approximately 25.4% in 5TC. Summarized balance sheet and statement of operations
information for STC as ¢f, and for the nine months ended, September 30, 1397 1s as
follows:

Summarized Balanca Sheet

Current assets $ 3,379
Property and equipment, mnet 1,844
Qther assets 9,614
Total assets -1 7
Current liabilities $ 9,45%7
Note payable 1,193
Total liasbilities 10, 659
Stcckholders' egquity 4,187

Total liabilities and stockhoclders' equity § 14,837

Sumtarized Statement of Operations

fevenues H 19,089
Gross margin 8,430
Cperating loss (471)
Net loss {670}

In August 1996 the Company reached an agreement with STC to purchase $2,53500 1n 3TC
preferred stcck. This investment was financad through the conversion of existing advan-e:
cwed by STC to the Company in the amount of $1,200 and & cash payment of $1,300. The 577
preferred stock was convertible into 833 shares of common steck at the Company’'s opticr

!n addivion, upen conversion of such STC preferred stock, the Compary would receive a
warzant to pu.rchase an additional 833 shares of STC common stock, subject to adjustimer:
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Subsequently, in Auﬁult 1997, the Company sold such preferred stock to a third party
investor for $250 and recorded a gain of §$20.

3. Acguisitions:

On March 13, 199¢, the Company's stockholders approved and the Company consummated its
merger with Fairzhild Industries, Inc.("FII"), following a reorganization transferring a..
non-communication assets to FII's parent, RHI Holding, Inc. ("RHI"}. The Company charnje=:
its name to Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc.("STFI"). Pursuant to the merger agreeme:-.
STFI issued to RHI, 6,000 shares of common stock, 250 shares of convertible prefarred
stock with a $25,000 liquidation preference and 20 shares of special preferred stock w.:-
a 520,000 initial liquidation prefsrence. In mddition the Company raised in the capita.
market approximately $111,000 after offering expensas, through the issuance of 12 1/4-
Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2006 and approximately $125,000 (of ar available $14%,07°

in loans from a credit facility with financial institutions. The funds ware used
primarily for the retirement of certain liabilities assumed from FII in connection witr
the merger, and the retirement of the Company's existing credit facility. 1In connect:--
with the merger, the Company entered into two year employment agreements with key
employees for initial annual compensation aggregating 51,230, and adopted the 1996 Ec_.+
Incentive Plan. The merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. 7Tre
total purchase consideration of approximately $71,56]1 was allccated to the net tangikble
and intangible assets of FII based upon their respective fair market values as follow:

Assets
Cash $ 1,551
Accounts receivable 24, 7147
Other current assets 2,572
Equipment $1,5%32
Goodwill 248,008
Total Asserts 328,410

Liabilities ard stockholders' equity
Capital lease obligations $ {262)
Accounts payable (11,3577
Accrued expenses (6,901}
Advanced billings {6,102}
Due toc affiliated company (8,407
Long term debt (182, 794)
FII preferred stock (40,706)
Net purchase price $ 71,581

The following unaudited pro forma statements of operations for the nine months ended
September 30, 19%€ give effect to the above acquisitions and the change in reporting c!
S5TC to the equity method (Note 2) and the pro forma effect of STC acquisitions, as Lf t'e,
cccurred on January 1, 19%6:

16%6

Revenues S 138,178
Cost of revenues 70,966

Gross margin €7,211

Selling, general and

administrative expanses 50,310

Operatlng income 16,501

Equity 1n loss of subsidiary {2,009

Interest expense, net (20,594)

Loss before income tax expense

and extraordinary item (5,702

Income taxes {64}
Extracordinary item. loss on early

retirement of debt {332)

Net Loss {6,098)
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Preferred stock'dividends (2,19¢
ii 254

)

Loss applicable to common stock L)

Net loss per common share S [ 96]
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding 14,049

4. Contingencies:

In December 1995, a suit was filed against the Company alleging a breach of a letter
agreement and seeking an amount in excess of $§2,250 for a commission allegedly owed in
connection with the merger with FII (Note 3). The Company denies that the claimant at any
time was engaged in connection with the merger. The Company filed an answer in January
1996, denying that any commission is owed. This litigation is schedulas for trial in
December 19%7. While any litigation contains an elemsnt of uncertainty, management is of
the opinion that the ultimate resolution of this matter should not have a material adverse
effect upon results of operations, cash flows or financlal position of the Company.

On July 31, 1997 the Company was served with a purported shareholder class action
complaint in an action commenced in the Delaware Chancery Court in New Castle County.
Company and its directors are named as defendants. The complaint seeks injunctive relie?,
costs ind attorneys' fees with respect to the proposed merger of the Company and Tel-Save
Holdings, Inc. which was announced on July 17, 1997 (See Note 9).

-
The

As of Qctcber 27, 1997, an agreement in principal had been reached betwsen the Company ancz
counsel for the plaintiff class, which agreement, subject to court approval, would resul:
in dismissal of the Complaint with prejudice and release of all claims of the plaintiff

class relating to the merger.

The Company's sales and use tax returns in certain jurisdictions are currently under
examination. Management believes these examinations will not result in a material charnje
from liabilities provided.

In addition to the above matters, the Company is a party to various legal actions, the
outcome of which, i1n tne opinion of management, will not have a material adverse effect crn
results of operezions, cash flows or financial position of the Company.

5. Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS"} No. 108, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"” which requires an asset and liability
approach teo financial reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are computed annually for differences between financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the
future, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the
differences are expected to effect taxable income. Valuation sllowances are established,
when necessary, tc reduce the deferred income tax sssets to the amount expected toc be
trealized.

6. Extracrdinary Item:

At June 30, 1896, the Company recorded an extraordinary loss of $310 relating to the early
retirement of a §5,000 credit facility. The early retiremant took place as a result of
fequirements in the merger agreement with FII (Note 3).

7. Earnings per Share:

Staterent of Financla. Accounting Standards Neo. 128, “Earnings per Share” changes the
[eporting reguirements for earnings per share ("EPS"| for publicly traded comparnies by
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replacing primary EPS with basic EPS and changing the disclosures associated with this

change. The Company is required to adopt this standard for its December 31,

and 15 currently evaluating the impact of this standazd.

§. Conscolidating Financial Statements:

1997 year-end

The following unaudited statements sepazately show Shared Technologies Falrchild Inc. and

the subsidiaries of Shared Technologlies Fairchild Inc.

fulfi1ll SEC reporting requirements.
Notes due 2006.

Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc
Scpterober 30, 1997

Asscty
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivabie, net
lnventones
Qther current assets
Total current assets
Equipmest:
Property & Equipment
Accumulated deprecustion
Net Property & Equipment
Other Assels:
Investment in affiliates
Intangible assets
Note Receivable
Intercompeany Receivable
Deferted uicome axes
Other
Total Other Assets
Total assets

Lisbitities and Stockholders' Equity
Currept Ligbilities:
Cuwrent poruon of long term debt and capital lease
obligations
Accounts payahle
Accrued expenses
Accrued dividends
Advanced billngs
Towl cwtent habiliues
Long-term debt, sod current lease obligations
less current portion
Redeemable put warrsat
Convertible preferred stock
Special preferred stock
Stockhotders' equity:
Preferred Stock, Senes C
Preferred Stock, Series D
Common Stock
Addinonal paid-wo captial
Accumulated deficit

Intercompany
Total stockholdery equiry
Tolal Labilites and stockholders equity

These statements are provided tc

All of Shared Technologies Fairchild Inc.'s
subsidiaries are wholly owned and are full guarantors ¢n the 12 1/4% Senicr Subordinated

Eliminating Coasolidated

STFT1 STFCC STF1 Latries STF1

H 150 3 28 178
33,766 385 M. 155
4733 4135
3,961 3,961
42,612 0 417 0 43,029
104,302 105,302
(372 (34112)
68,063 0 0 (8] 68,068
i} ] 47,540 55,174 (102,342) 754
7627 250,448 158,075
144,173 (144,173) .

143,322 128,866 (372,188)
36 316
144,020 428 206 305,622 (618,701) 259,145
s 254,700 S 428206 § 346019 8 (618703) § 370242
$ 16,083 16,083
18,394 18,394
7,488 460 7,948
1,588 1,588
7.079 7079
32,961 16,083 2,018 0 51,059
144,173 239,613 (144,171) 239,63}
87 887
25,000 25,000
15,061 15,061
1 1
i 1 69 (2) 69
47,538 54,802 78,137 (102,340} 78,137
30,027 (23,635) (41,997) (39,605
143,322 218 866 (372,188) -
77,566 172,49 261,076 (474,330) 38,602
H 254700 $ 428206 § 306039 3 (618,703) § 3?0,242.

=-12=-




Shared Technologies Falrchild Inc
Consolidated Financial Siatements

(contnued)
STFTI STFCC STF1 Entries ST
REVENUE
Tole] revenue 131,980 9,799 141,779
Tota! cost of revenue - 71,125 71,125
Gross margin 60,835 - 9,799 - 70,654
Grots margio % 46.11% 100% 49.83%
Selling, genersl & sdminlstrative expenses 45541 5598 51,536
Operating lncome 14914 - 4204 - 19,118
Other income (e1pense):
Equity in loss of affiliate (11,806) 11,596 (219)
interest expense, net (9,712) (12,192) 210 (21,694)
{(9.712) {12,192 {11,596) 11,596 {21,904)
Iocome (loss) before Income taxes and
extraordipary Item $202 {12,192 {7,392} 11,596 (2,786;
Income tax (214) (214)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item 4,988 (12,192) (7.392)) 11,596 (3,000}
Extrmordinary item, loss oo early retirement of debt - - - - -
Ner income (loss) 4,988 (12,192) (7.392) 11,596 (3,000}
Preferred stock dividends (3,689) (1,689)
Income (loss) spplicable to common stock 4 988 12192y (11 081) 11 396 6 689
9. Merger Agreement. on July 16, 1997, the Company, Tel-Ssve Holdings Inc. ("Tel-
Save";, and TS5HCoc, Inc. ("Merger Sub”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tel-Save, enterec
into an Agreement and Plan of Merger {the "Merger Agreement™). Pursuant to the Merge:r

Agreement the Company shall be merged (the "Merger®”) with and inte Merger Sub and each
common stock holder of the Company shall receive for each share of the Company's common
stock $11.25 worth of shares of common stock of Tel-Save based upon the average closing
price of Tel-Save common stock for the 15 trading days ending on the third business day
prior to the closing of the Merger. Holders of Series C and Series D preferred stock of
the Company will receive prefarred stock in Tel-3ave with substantially identical terms t:
the series C and D preferred stock of the Company. The Merger is intended to be a tax-
free exchange of shares and is expected to qualify for pooling of interests accounting
treatment. The Merger is subject to approval of stockholders of both companies and other
customary closing conditions.

In connection with the Merger Agreement, the Company has entered into a Stock Option
Agreement with Tel-Save pursuant to which Tel-Save has the option (the "Option™} to
acquire 3,000,000 shares of common stock of the Company upon the termination of the
Merger Agreement under certain circumstances {a "Purchase Event”™}. The Option expires orn
the earlier of (a! consummation of the Merger, (b} January 15, 1998 or (c)] the terminat.on
of the Merger Ag:eement other than pursuant to a Purchase Event (as such term is definecl
in the Stock Option Agreement). In addition, the Company has sntered into a Voting
Agreement with Daniel Borislow, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Tel-Save,
pursuant to which Mr. Borislow has agreed to vote his shares of Tel-Save common stock .o
favor of the Merger and the Merger Agreement.

On Octcber 30, 1997, the Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. and Shared Technologlies Fairchild Inc.
Joint Proxy Statement was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commuissicn glving nct.
cf eaczr company’'s special meeting of stockholders to be held on Dacemuer 1, 1997.

e
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Item 2.

Management's Discussion and Analyais of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 1997 compared to September 30, 1996

Pevenues

STFI's revenues rose to $141.68 millien in 1997, an increase of 27.8% over 1996 revenues of
$110.9 mullion. This increase was principally due to the March 13, 1996 merger with
Fairchild Industries, Inc., ("FII"). Shared Telecommunications Service ("STS") revenue
increased 513,2 million, or 19.1%, and Telecommunications Systems {(“Systems") revepue
‘ncreased $17.6 million, or 42.58.

sproximately $7.0 million of the incresse in the Systems revenue was due to the inclus:icn
of management fees from ICS Communications, Inc. ("ICS"} and GE Capital-ResCom, L.P.
("ResCom"). During this period, the Company operated as the manager of each of these
businesses. These management agreements terminated during the third quarter of 1997,

Gross Margin

Gross margiln increased to 49.8% of revenues for 1997, from 46.6% for 1996, The change :=n
gross margin was malnly the result of changes in sales mix and the merger with FII. 1In
addition, the revenues generated from the management agreements with ICS and ResCom were
included in Systems revenue. Since the associated cost for this revenue of approximately
$9.0 million was in selling, general and administrative expense, it had no material
adverse effect on Systems gross margin. The following table sets forth the components of
the Company's overall gross margin (GM) for the nine months ended September 30, 1597 as a
facter of sales percentage and gross margin percentage per line of business:

Welighted
C.vision Sales GM GM
57S $8.28 $2.4% 30.5%%
Systems 41.0% 416.2% 19.3%
Comparny Total 100,08 43.8¢

As shown above, the 1997 gross margin was & mix of STS gross margin of 52.4% and Systems
gross margin of 46.28. In 1996, the Company's gross margin was a combination of STS gross
margin of 31.1% and Systems gross margin of 14.9%.

Selling, general and administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrstive (SG&A) axpenses increased $12.4 million to $51.5
million, due entilrely to the merger with FII and the associated increased headcount,
goodwill amortizaticn and other general overhead expenses. 35G&A as a percentage of

revenue increased from 35.38% Iln 1996 to 36.3% in 1997.

Cperating Income

Operat:ng income increased by $6.6 million to $19.1 million in 1997 from $12.5 million 17
1996. The increase was mainly the result of the FII merger mentioned earlier.
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Interest Expense ~

Interest expense net of interest income increased by 5$6.5 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 1997 cover the nine months ended Septamber 30, 1996. This was
attributable to the addition of approximately $245 million in new debt on March 13, 1596
in connection with the FII merger.

Net Income .Loss)

As a result of the factors listed above, net loss for the nine months ended September 37,
1557 decreased $2.1 million to $3.0 million, compared to a net loss of $5.1 million i1rn thre
nire months ended September 30, 1996,

Three Months Ended Septembaer 30, 1997 Compared to Septembar 30, 1996

Revenues

STFI's revenues decreased to $546.2 million in 1997, a decreass of Z.0% compared to 19%¢
revenues of 547.1 million. STS revenue decreasad $.5 million from 5§27.4 million in tre
three months ended September 30, 19%6 to $26.9 in the three months ended September 30,
158%7. This slight decrease was due to the increasing competition in the
telecommunications marketplace. Systems revenuae decreased $.5 million in 1997 over L5%5¢€.

Gress Margin

Gross margin decreased to 46.9% of revenues for 1997, from 48.1% for 1996. The follow:rj
table sets forth the components of the Company's overall gross margin ("GM™) for the t!rer
months ended September 30, 1997 as a factor of sales percentage and gross margin
percentage per line of business:

Weighted
Division Sales M oM
STS SB.4% 31.5% 10.1%
Systems 41.6% 40.5% 16.8%
Company Total 100,086 46.9%

As shown above, the 1997 gross margin was a mix of the 5T5 grosa margin of 51.5% ang
Systems gross margan of 40.5%., In 1996, the Company's gross marglin was & combinaticnr ¢!
STS gross margin of 30.2%, and Systems gross margin of 17.9%., The gross margin decrease
was due to the increasing competition in the telecommunications market place.

Sel..ng, Genera. and Administrative Expansas

S5Geh as 4 percentage of revenue incressed to 37.3% in the three months ended September 30,
1997 compared to 34.5% for the three months ended September 30, 1996.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased to 54.5 million in 1997 from $6.4 million in 1996.

Interest Expense

Interest expense net of interest income had a slight increass of §$.2 million for the r!res
menths ended September 10, 1997 over the threa montha ended Jeptember 10, 1996.
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Net Income

As a result of the factors listed above, a net loss for the three months ended September
30, 1997 of $2.8 million was recorded, compared te a net loss of §.9 million for the three
months ended September 30, 1996,

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Due to the merger with FII and the associated borrowings of §245 million, the Company's
liquidity and capital resources were significantly changed. At September 30, 1997 the
Company had %5370 million in assets, $256 million in various long and short-term deb: arnc:
capital lease obligaticns, and $40.1 million in recently issued preferred stock. The
balance sheet at September 30, 1997 showed & working capital deficit of $8.0 million,
compared to a deficit of $22.7 million at September 30, 1996, As of September 30, 1697 e
Company had available for future borrowings aspproximately $11 milli-n on a credit
facility. <Cash provided by operations was $18.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 1997, compared to §$12.1 millien for the nine months ended September 3C,

1996.

The Company invested $9.4 million in equipment purcheaes in the nine months ended
Seprember 30, 1997, compared to $7.1 million in the nine months ended September 30, 1%5%¢
These expenditures were used to grow additional business and sustain the Company's
underlying revenue stream.

Finarcing activities for the period ended Ssptember 30, 1997 involved principal payment:s
on the Company's debt of $9.9 million, offset by a $2.0 million take down on the Compar, s
revclver avallacility. Subsequent to quarter end, the Company has drawn down an
additicnal $5 mullion on i1ts revolver bringing it to $17 million and leaving $6 mill:i:r
st1ll available i(net of cash set aside for letters of creadit;.

Cash requirements for 1997 have been significant due to the acquisition of FII and
associated new debt mentioned earlier. The Company anticipates tc continue repaying these
borrowings and providing cash for operations and capital expenditures through casn frecr

operations.
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PART II. ) OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In December 1995, a sult was filed against the Company alleging a breach of a letter
agreement and seeking an amcunt in excess of $2,250 for a comnission allegedly owed in
connection with the merger with FII (Note 3). The Company denies that the claimant at an,
time was engaged in connection with the merger. The Company filed an answer in January
1996, denying that any commission is owed. This litigation is scheduled for trial in
December 1997. While any litigation contains an element of uncertainty, management 1s c?
the cpinion that the ultimate resolution of this matter should not have & materisl adverse
effect upon results of operations, cash flows or financial position of the Company.

On July 31, 1997 the Company was served with a purported sharehoclder class action
complaint in an action commenced in the Delaware Chancery Court in New Castle County. The
Company and its directors are named as defendants. The complaint <seks injunctive rel.ef,
costs and attorneys' fees with respact to the proposaed merger of the Company and Tel-Save
Heldings, Inc. which was announced on July 17, 19%7.

As of October 27, 1597, an agreament in principal had been reached between the Company arn:
counsel for the plaintiff class, which agreemant, aubject to court approval, would resu.t
in dismissal of the Complaint with prejudice and release of all claims of the plalntitf?

class relating to the Merger.

The Company's sales and use tax returns in certain jurisdictions are currently under
examination. Management believes these sxaminations will not result in & material charge

from liabilities provided.

Ir addition to the above mattars, the Company is a party %o various legal acticns, the
cutcome of which, in the opinion of management, will not have a material adverse effe~: cr.
results of operations, cash flows or financial positicon of the Company.

Item 5. Cther Information

On Ncvember 13, 1997 the Company signed an agreement whereby Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. w:il.
become the exclus:ve provider of i1ts long-distance services. The rates to be paid by the
Company under this contract are significantly lower than rates currently paid to 1its
existing long-distance providers.

item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form B-X:
(a} Exhibits

10.1 Agreemeant and Plan of Merger by and among
Shared Technologies Tairchild Inc., Tel-Save
Holdings Inc., and TSHCo, Inc., dated July 16,
1997. Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Torm 8-X filed on July 21, 19%7.

10.2 3Stock Option Agresmant betwean Shared
Technologies Fairchild Inc. and Tel-Sava
Holdings Inc. dated July 16, 1997. Incorporated
by reference tc the Company's Form 8-XK filed on
July 21, 1997.

10.3 Voting Agreemsnt batween Shared
Technologies Falrchild Inc. and Daniel Borislow
dated July 16, 1997. Incorporated by reference
tc the Conmpany's Form B-K filed on Jaly 21,
1997.
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10.4 Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. and Shared
Technologies Fairchild Inc. Joint Proxy
Statement filed as part of S-4 registration of
Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. (Reg # 333-38943)
incorporated hersby by referencs.

27 Financial Data Schedule

99 Press Release dated July 17, 1997.
Incorporated by reference to the Company's Form
B-K filed July 21, 1997.

99 Complaint filed by Bernard ticharman
dated July 1997. Incorporsted by reference to
the Company's Form 8-K filed on Xugust 4, 1%97.

99 Press Release dated August 1, 1997.
Incorporated by reference te the Company's Form
B-K filed on August 4, 1997,

(4 -3] Reports on Form 8-K

on July 21, 1997 the Company filed a Form

8-K, date of report July 16, 19897, in

which the Company disclosed that the Company, , Tel-
Save Moldings, Inc, and TSHCo, Inc., a wholly owmned
subsidiary of Tel-Save Holdings, Inc. had entered irtc
an Agreement and Plan of Merger.

On August 4, 1997, the Company filed a
Form 8-K, date of report July 31, 1957, in
which the Company disclcsed that is was
served with a purported sharehclder clasa
action complaint in an action commenced in
the Delaware Chancery Court in New Castle
County.
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N SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirementa of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registran-
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto c..y
authorized.

SHARED TECHNOLOGIES FAJRCHILD INC.

By: /s/ Vincent DiVincenze
Vincent DivVincenz»
Senior Vice Fresident-Finance
and Administration, Treasurer,
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 14, 1997

-19-






PRE-TRANSFER OF CONTROL

Intermedia .
Communications, Inc. Shared Tecnnologies
Fairchisd IncC.

Shared Technologies
Fairchild Communications

Corp

Moonlight
Acquisition Corp. '
Access Network
Services ncC.

« puwerpniihughb pptenng




TRANSFER OF CONTROL

Intermedia
Communications, Inc.

Moonlight

Acquisition Corp.

¢ poseapatihughb pplgenng s

Shared Technologies
Fairchild, Inc.

Shared Technologies
Fairchild Communications
Corp.

Access Network
Services, Inc.




POST-TRANSFER OF CONTROL

Intermedia
Communications, Inc.

Shared Technologies
Fairchild, Inc.

Shared Technologies
Fairchild Communications
Corp.

Access Network
Services, Inc.

o pescrpnbhughib pprioese















The Company believes that a significant portion of business and government cuslomers prefer a sihgle
source teiecommumications provider that dehivers a full range of efficient and cost effective solutions 11 thear
telecommunications needs. These customers require maximum reliabilny, hgh guality. bread geographic
coverage. end-loend service, solutions-oniented customer service and the umely ntroduction of new and
imnovative services The Company s well positioned to sausfy such customer requirements duc 1o i il
speciatized sales and senvice approach employing engineenng and sales professionals wha design and implement
antettectse  telecommunicauons  solutions, ) the ongoing development and integraon ot new
telecommumications services, () its localflong distance voice switch and transmisvion network deplosoien
program. <+ the implementauon of 89 enhanced data switches and over 200 nctwork 1o network inlerfaces
1 NNIs 7y tor trame relay data transrmission throughout the continental Unsted States and v+ 1ty interconnestion
vo-camer agreements with six JLECs

The Company v certified av a CLEC in 13 siates and the Distnct of Columbia. sllowing the Company
provide local exchange senaces in those markets. and has CLEC certification applications pending in 22 tates
In addion 1CT s cerihed as a long distance camer in 4} states and the Distnct of Columbia The Compans has
nine digital. nber ophe networks in service and one under development As of December Vi 1994 1hie
infrastructure was comprised of 24,122 fiber miles and 655 route mties and was connected 1o 487 huildings A
ot December 0 1996 ICI had invested $241 5 mullion (or 67% of s total invested capitali n pross plan,
properiy and equipment. pnncipally telecommunications equipment IC1 expects 10 continue 1o grow s netwarks
and has identthed exvpansion opponunities 1n other selected markets Management believes thal this expanvion
will enable the Company to 1 increase the size of its addressable market and reach a signincant number ! new
potential customers o achieve economies of scale in network operations and sales and muarketing and v more
clleciinels semvice aistomers that have & presence in multiple metropolitan areas  The € ompany bas aio
undertabhen o magor expansion of bty antercity network, pnncipally o satsty the growany demand o
interexchanee sersices ancluding enhanced dala services such as frame relay networking services A~ el

frame relas todes hase grewn trom o approamately 2,300 nodes. semvng customer locations tp S0 Cnge e ot
Diecember -0 1995 1o approvimatels @ 500 nodes, serving customer focations 1in 2 MRE Glhes s ol Do orong,
LI RVIVTY

Fnhiansed data services such as those provided on the Company s frame relay netwatk are speciansesd
serfvices ot cusiomers that need o ransport large amounts of data among multiple locations According b
ndusine sources the frame relay services market 1s projected to grow trom $753 anllion in 1995 16 327 Ml
in P9YY however there van be no assurance that such market growth will be realized or that the avsumptions
anderbvaty such projections are rehable While the Company has voncentrated it trame relay sales inthe casien:
Lall o1 the Uated States 10 1 s currently the titth largest nationai provider of frame felas nelworbing seivioes
hased o number of podess after AT&T, Inc o AT&T 5. MCT Communicanons Corporanion « MCOT 0 Spnint
Carporation s Spans oand YorldCom, Inc ¢ WorldCom™) In order 1o sty s customers desire tor end Lo
e framie relay sersices from s single prosider, the Company has deployed ity netwaork and made arrangements
with other frame relay service provaders 1o otfer national and intermational serviee

TCT tounded the | raSPANGC) comsoriium in 1994 with three other camiers to enable the Company i
provide end teoend frame relas servaces throughout the United States and Canada Because vl ihe bigh solume
Dlelecomtmutocations rathic between [CL s targel markets and venam Latin American markels the € ompans

T eniered onto ciermnationgl trame relay operating agreements with ImpSat oF Columbia S A Treston,
Internatiingd Telecom Holdings Panama and Amencatel Corporavon for the prosivion of trame relas setsviees o
atnd fronet clumteg Puerto Koo Panema, Chile & Costa Rica 1C] plans e pursue simular arrangement oenier
aher Latin Amenican markets The Company has pioneered the interconnection of ats trame relas neiwork with
Hiose of the I ECS Ghowing pervasive cost-ethoent termunauon fof sty customers (hver 2000 such NN e
pecromipremented ot JelNouth Telecommumicabions Ine o BellSouth v Sprint GTE Corporanen - il

BRI B Vo Bon svoam sand Southern Sew b ogland Tede aimuamateen © g 50T




The Company belhieves that st can #ffectively utihze its competitzve advaniages as a provider ol enhancel
data services lo communicalions intensive customers 1n order to acquire and retain these customers as local
exchange and long distance customers throughout its markets As ICI contnues the deployment of locallong
distance voice switches, it will make more efficient use of its intercity network Combining long distance voie
truthe between such switches with the intercity data raffic increases the overall amsunt of voice and data trathe
Ihat remains completels on the Company’'s network. The Company 1s developing additional applications and
Aepaoomg technolopies that will provide even greater efficiencigs tn the use of i intercats network

The € ompuny has Jdeveloped and intends to inuoduce a voice product over 1 enhanced data network w.ach
will provide o compeutive svervice offenng 1o customen seclung 8 lower cost allemative (o voie sefvices
currently provided over tradihional circwit switched telecommunications networks The Company believes tha
packet swiched data networks, such as the Company’s, will displace & sigmficant poruon of the estimated 5130
hillion telecommunications market which 1s currently provided over tradiuonal curcunt swiched networks The
Company believes this proposed new service offenng will accelerale its penetration of the traditional o
semaces market

The Company has developed operating strategics, important components of which are descnbed below 1o
Invtcase market share and operaung margins

Customer Strategy

Prov fe Single-Source Telecommunications Services  The Company's service portfoho includes ol
e hange. enhanced data e frame relas and ATM. Internet and Intranet). intereachanye fong Jdistance
integration and pnivate hine services Management behieves that s ability to deliver ali of these services procade.
signinicant advantages for both the customer and for the Company Not only does thee capabilinn addres
cuslemners complex requirements assoclated with integraton of diverse networks and technoloies st cane
lowatieons, but it alse reduces customers” adrmunistrative burdens associated with service charges hilling netaord
tionitonng, mplementatnon. coordination and maintenance [Cl also believes that by atfening cvpandess e
~ourer semvices through existing netwaorks and customer connecthions. it can leserage the stenilicant o aja. -
inherent inats dagital networks

Fovus om Businews and Government Customers  The Company's portfohio of service offerings cusiomes
wnvce approas i bighly teliabie netwaorks, broad geographic coverage and integration capabibities are well e
1o oserse the demands ot lelecommunicshions-intensive business and government customers  [he Compam
cvisung business customer base represents a broad range of industnes. including hrms an the retal financi.
services. Intemnet. healthcare merchandising. manufactunng and other industry segments {CT hay o dedicaied
sdies and engineenng suppont group focused exclusively on providing service to govemment agenaier The
Company has Inng term contracts with the Swates of Flonda and New York pursuant (o swhich the € ompan

prosvaides sanous elecommumastions seraces, including frame relay and other data services 1as well oy certain
Lonee services under the New York contract)

Dieselop interexchanee Currier and Vulue-Added Reselier Relanonships  As 8 resuil of recent chan gz o
~tale and federal regulation which have provided [LECs with mandates that foster Jocal exchange compention
[T b acceierated 1ts entmy snto the loval eachange services markel As nterenchange camers o [N enuer
the inal exchange bustness the Compans believes that they will seek 0 gain access to the bxal exchaney

servioes marker by cither Jeseloping local network capacity or by purchasing such capacity from aliematine
service providers The Company believes that these developments are hikely to make JC a candidate ter e
ventures and preterred sendor arrangements with [XCs ILECs and other telecommunications refaied compare

S oaharrangemenis would benchit the Company by enabling 101 to more capidly recover it capital insestiment «.
~witches and other fetw ork antrastructure by increasing the trathe through s networks These INC reianonships
“epically began with the Company providing special access services on behait ot these IXCs and have recenth
¢ otved toonclude local access transpon and local exchange services These arangements should enabie 101

dutieve greates markct share and reach new market segments maore rapadly than o could otherwise The ¢ o,










1996 Acquisitions

Dunng 1996, the Company completed three corporate acquisitions. In June 1996, the Company acquired
the telecommunicauons division of EMI Communicatons Corp. ('EMI'). a company serving customer
pnmanly in the Northeast with aggregate telecommunications revenues of approximately $53.7 mullion for the
vear ended December 31, 1996, of which $27.8 million was included 1n the Company's revenue for 1996 1CI
purchased EMI’s telecommunications division in exchange for 937.500 newly 1ssued shares of ICl's common
stack, par value $.01 per share (the “‘Commeon Stock'), issued to Newhouse Brosdcasung Corporauon, the
pareni corporation of EMI (**Newhouse''). The number of shares of Common Stock payable to Newhouse was
hased upon a purchase pnce of $15,000,000 divided by the average trading pnce per share of the Common Stock
during the tweniv-one day penod ending on February 14, 1996 (which was equal 10 $16.00) As of June 24,
1996, the closing date of the acquisition. the EMI Shares were valued a1 approximately $16.9 nullion With this
acquisihon, the Company substantially expanded its frame relay presence into the Northeast and acquired both
addiional customers (including & major contract with the Stnte of New York) and a number of tughly shulled
personnel

In December 1996, the Company acquired Universal Telecom Inc (“'UTT™'), a provider of interexchange
services 1o approximately 1000 business customers in the St. Lows area with annuahized monthly
tetecommunicauons revenues of approximately $5.4 mullion. The purchase pnce was $2.9 mulbon, including
assumed liabilities and shares of Common Stock. The UTT acquisiuon was strategically significant because ol
the near compleuon of construction of ICT's St. Lows metropolitan arca fiber opuic network

In December 1996, the Company also scquired the network wansport business of NetSolve Incorporated
¢ ‘NetSolve ") for approximately $12 8 milhon in cash. With this acqusition the Company gained 63U multi-site
business customers and network faciliues (transpont and switching) which extended the Compansy s anterain
network inti: Texas and provided facilities into incremental markets in the eastern halt ot the United State-
NetSolve's network transport business generaled appromimalely $16 0 mulhop ot annuanzed monthly
telecommunications revenues for December 1996

IC1 w4« incorporated 1n the Swuate of Delaware on November 9. 1987, as the soccessor (o o Flonda
curporation that was founded 1n 1986 The Company's pnncipal offices are located at 3625 Queen Palny Dinnve
Tumpas. Flonda 33619, and s telephone number 15 (813) 829-001 1



Services Provided and Markets

Local Exchange Services.

Telephone services that connect a customer's telephone or PBX 10 the pubin

network These local services also provide the customer with access to long distance services, operator and
directory assistance services, 911 service and enhanced local features, which are descnbed by exampie below

Service or Feature
PBX Trunk

Business Access Line

ISDN

Voice Mail

Enhanced Dara Services

Description
Connects a customer PBX to the public
nerwork, shared by multple users
connected to the PBX, for making or
receiving local (and long distance) calis

Connects a business customer’s
teiephone to the public network. for
making and completing local (and long
distance) calls.

A specialized digital switching
technology that allows voice and data to
share a digital channel

A service offered by IC1's swich,
providing full, personahzed answering
service for a business customer

Typical Application
24 trunks for both incommng and
outgoing calls — allow a call 1o be
directed 1o a specific user connected 10
the PBX (known as direct inward dial, or
DID service)

A small sales office vtilizes 5 business
lines, each with » umique telephone
number, connected to five telephones in
the office

A sma:l office vulizes a single I5DN
line 10 simulancously transport data ar
64 kbps and talk 10 another location with
& stmular service

A business cusiomer uscs [Cl's
voicermnal service o avoud the cost and
upkeep on an answenng machine in then
office

Swuiching and vanspon of digitized data (or voice) over a scamless netwaork

designed to provide highiy rehable. flexible service and support of many data transmussion protoculs 107 -
enhanced data services are provided over s network of frame relay and ATM data swiiches, locaizd throughow
its service termitory Examples of these services are Jisted below

Service or Festure

Frame Refay Network

Description

Connection of data communications

devices at numerous locatons over ICH's

enhanced data network.

Typical Appiication

A firm has several data networks tone
for point of szle, one for finance and
accounting. one for LAN to LAN
connection} that all consist of a larpe
“‘host’’ site and numerous remuole sites
currently connected by a large number o
dedicated pnvate hines It 1s converted 1
ICI's frame relay network. with 3 singie
connection (o each locauon. and the
multiple networks operaung over this
stagle connection

A small. multi-location Airm has LANS a1
cach locauon. but has not been abic t
provide company -wide email and itle
access. without uving dial up
connections The establishment ut 4
frame relay network allows an aftordable
means to inlerconnect all ofhces. for full
tme access 10 company -wide efmual! anid
shared hlex




Internet and Iniranet Services.  1C1 offers access to the Internet and provides additional services that uulize
the Tnterne: via 1ts frame retay network. Examples of these services are listed below:

Service or Feature Deacripdon

Dedicated Intermnet Access  Connection to the Internet via ICI's
frame relay network.

Hosted [nternet Senvice ICI provides a World Wide Web
presence for a customer, establishing
and maptaining the customer's web
page on ICI's platform.

Intranet Service Private equivaient of the Internet

Typical Application
An enisung ICI frame relay customner
utlizes an existng physical connecuon
1o access other computers on the
Internet, using a ~“web browser

A business wishes to have a world wide
web presence. but lacks the expertise.
computing platform. and technical
resources Lo design. implement. and
muintain their web presence 1C]
provides the tumkey service

IC1 provides a large corporation with
"‘pnvate’’ equivalents of the Internet

allowing secure, losed user access to
the company’s prisale web sites. hle

transfer capabi!ines. eic

Long Distan ¢ Services  The ongination and termunauon of telephone calls berween users in ditterent
ciues or exchanges The Company provides these services on a usage basis. utthzing s locallong distance
swilches its intercity petwork and services provided by other camers Examples are histed below

Service or Feature Description

Outbound Long Distance Completion of long distance calls
onginated by [Cl customers

Inbound Long Distance 800" or “'8B8"" number service

Calling Card Nauonwide iong distance calling
without ¢cash

i

Typical Application

An [Cl customer ol local exchiange
services mahes a 1+ call domeste o
internauonal, which is processed and
delivered to ifs destinavon by the [ ]
network 45 part ot an integrated
iocalflong distance service packag=

an IC! customer recerves toll tree
valls. handled over 1CI-prosvided
dedicated lincs to the customer or over
the customer’'s ICl focal exchange
service hines

An ICI customer dials 3 natnwide X0
aumber. and completes i long distance
call using the 1CT calling card ilhing
aggregaied with the customer ~ other
services



Private Line Services Dedicated channels connecung discreet end points, These non-switched sersices
can be provided to two locations withun the same city, or between locations in dufferent ciues (intercxchange
pnvate Lnesi Exampies are listed beiow:

Service or Festure m Ty A tion
Special Access An intra-City private line that An IXC customer of ICI orders a special

connects a customer to an I1XC for the access circuit 1o one of 1ts customers 1n
purpose of delivering long distance an ICT city.

calls 1o the IXC—does not carry local

traffic

Interexchange Private Line  An inter-city pnivate hine, for voice or  An ICI customer needs a | 544 Mbps
daia. of a fixed bandwidth, connecung connection between {wo compulers in

10 two locauons of the same Miamu and Boston The full | 544 Mhp.
customer is used consuanily

IXC End Office Transpon Connecung an [XC 10 the End Office  An [XC customer of ICl needs circunis
of an [LEC or CLEC to the end office =f a LEC. 10 allow the

[XC's customers to obtain "1+ long
distance dialing from that IXC

ltegration Servwes  Provision and custom configuration of network devices. normalty [ocated @ the
customer’s location. which may include any special engineenng. installation, or service function pravided by
IC] Examples are listed below

Service or Feature Descripton Typicsl Application
CPE Integrauon Provision, configuration, installation.  1C1 designs o router based data netword
and monnonng of specialized telecom  {or 3 customer. procures onhgures
equipment installs and maintains both hardw are anid

software for the customer packaged 1inn.
a single service invuice

Campus LAN Construction of a pnvate fiber IC1 designs, constructs and optinnails
network monitors a prisate iber Cloop built on
a campus of buldings
Design Senae Provision of engineenng senices in ICI provides hardware and software
support of a customer applicauon CNEINEErINE SETVICEs (O support 4

customer's Internet  web  siic
















In addison, the Company has undertaken & sigmificant network cxpansion to sausfy the demands of the
Company’s market dnven growth in interexchange date and voice offenngs. The Company has deplosved
resources, primanly switchung equipment. to develop an extensive netwerk to provide these services. Excess
capacity on thus pnmanly leased netwerk can be used to provide incremental telecommurucauons services such
as nterexchange long distance services.

The Company has recently undertaken the deployment of ATM networking technology in s intercity
network, allowing the network capacity to be efficientty shared between multiple platforms Often. the Compans
viters interexchange services 1o geographuc markets where 1t has not depioyed its own fiber optic nevwork by
leasing faciiues from a vanety of enuues, including [LECs, utlities, IXCs, local governments, cable companies
and vanous ransivhighway authonues. In many cases, such capacity 1s oblained through the capital lease or
puichase of “‘dark hber ' The combination of the Company's cuty-based networks and 1s sntercity capacits
compnse the scamless network platform which the Company uulizes to offer 1ts broad ammay  of
telecommunications services to its customers. The Company also has agreements with certain third parties and
the camers 1n the UmiSPAN(C) consoniium to deliver enhanced data services nationwide or internationalls
through a scamnless data network

The Company » telecommunications equipment vendors acuvely parucipate in planming and developing
elecuonic equipment for use 1n ICI's networks The Company does nol believe 1t 1s dependent on any single
vendor for equipment Because the Company uses existing ttlecommumcations technology rather than
devetoping 1t ICHs research and development expenditures are not matenal

Competition
The Compans faces intense compenion 1n each of s three service categones—Ilocal serices enhanced
wrvices and long Jdistance senvices

The Company believes that vanous legislative initiauves, including the recentls enacted 199 At and
certain state imtiatives, will result n the removal of the remamming regulatory bamers 0 Jowal exchance
competunon While the Company currently competes with AT&T. MCI and others .n the interexchange seroes
market the 1996 Act also permits the RBOCs 10 provide interexchange semices upon meetiny cerfun
requirements desenbed in the 1996 Act When the RBOCs begin to provide such services. they wifl be ina
posttion to ofter mingle source service simular to that being offered by 1C1 In additon. Spnnt and GTE otter and
vanous [LECs and 1XCs, including BellSouth. have announced their intent 1o offer. integrated telecommunication
senvices (n areas currently served by ICI AT&T and MCI have begun to enter the local exchange semices
marker The Company cannot predict the number of competitors that will emerge as a resuit of existing and ans
new tederal and state reguiatory or legistauve actions Compeution from integraled relecommunicaions services
provided by the RBOCs, AT&T MCI. Spnnt. WorldCom and others could have a matenal adverse ctfect on the
Company s business

¢ smpetinon an each of the service categones provided by the Company. as well as for systems integration
whictas common Lo all marker segments, 15 discussed below

local Senicey Inocach of s geographic markets. the Company faces signihoant competition b the Lo
wervices at offers from RBOCs and other ILECs. which currently dominate their local telecommuni, ation.
markets These compames all have long-standing relationshups with their customers and have financial personse:
ancttechnical resources substantiathy greater than those of ICI

The Company also faces competiion in most markets in which 1t operates trom one or more €L HC -
IC°Ps uperating tiber optic networks Uther local service providers have operalions Or are :nitialing oprahion
within nne or more of the Company s service areas 1C] expects WorldCom., MCIL. Teleport Communic stions
Croip fne o Telepont and certain cahle television providers many of which are substanuails larger and have

Avantiallv ereaer finangl resources than the Compans 1o enter some or all of the markets that the Lo

|t















In most states. the Company 15 required to file wnffs setung forth the terms. conditions and prices for
services that are classified as intrastate (iocal. toll and enhanced) Meost states require the Company to hist the
services provided and the specific rate for each service. Under different forms of regulatory flexihility  the
Company may be allowed to set pnce ranges for specific services, and 1n some cases, pnces may he set on an
indrvidual customer basis The Company is not subject to price cap or rate of rerurm regulation in aay state in
which it s currently ceruficated to provide local exchange service

As the Company evpands its operations into olher states. 1t may become subject 10 the junsdiction ol thesr
respective public service commussions for cerain services offered by ICI The Company doss not believe that 1t
relatonship with Latin Amencan or other intermational service providers currently subjects 1 to tor will subyecy
it e regulanon outside the United States.

Local Government Authorizations.  The Company may be requured to obtain from municipal authontics
strees opeming and construction permits 10 install and expand its fiber optic networks 1n certain citiey In some
ciies, local partners or subcontractors rmay already possess the requisite suthonzaions [0 construct Hr ¢xpand
the Company s neiworks

In some of the arcas where the Company provides service. It may be subject to municipai trandhise
requirements and may be required to pay license or franchise fees based on a percent of gross revenue There are
ne assurances that certain mumicipahiies that do nol currently impose fees will not seek 10 impose tees in the
tuture, nor I~ there any assurance that. following the expiration of exisung franchises, fees will remain at therr
current levels In many markets. other compames providing local welecommunicauons services. particularhy the
ILECs. currently are excused from paying license or franchise fees or pav fees that are matenally lower than
thuse required to be paid by the Company The 1996 Act requires mumcipalities to charge nondiscrimnston
fees o all telecommunicauons providers, but it 15 uncenain how quickly this requirement will be implemenied
by parucular municipahites in which the Company operates or plans to operate or whether it w il be inplemente!
without a legas challenge imtiated by the Company or another ICP or CLEC

1 any of the Company « existing network agreements were termunated pnor to thar expiraton date snd the
Campany wds torced to remase 1ts fiber oplic cables from the ytreets or abandon s netwark 10 place csen wnh
compensatieon such termination could have o matenal adverse effect on the C ompany

The Company aivo must chtain hicenses 1o attach facilines to utiliny poles 1n order w build and cxpand
tucihues Because wuhines that are owned by cooperauves or mumcipalities are not subject 1o federal pole
allachment regulation, there 1s no assurance that the Company will be able 10 obtain pole attachment from these
utthiies at reasonable rates. terms and conditions

Agreements

Interconnection Cu-carrier Agreements  The Company has recently entered into interconnection coyarmier
agreements with BellSouth. NYNEX. SBC. GTE. Spnnt and Bell Atlanuc. and 1s in the process of negotiatng »
stmilar apreement with Amentech Each of these agreements, among other things, provides tor mutual aod
reciprocal compensation. tocal interconnection. resale of local exchange semvices, access 10 unbundled network
etements. senvice provider number portability and access to operator service. direclory service and Y11 sernic
av provided for in the 1996 Act The agreements further provide that additonal terms and conditions will be st
by negotiauon between the parties relaung to issues which anse that were not ongimnally contemplated by the
agreements These agreements were executed within the past year and have lerms ranging from (s 1o e

LR T

Setword Agreemennn The Company has bwilt its drgiial hber optic networks pursuant to vanous nghts of
wav Londun and Jark nber Jeases. utilits poie attachment agreements and purchase arrangements teallectinveis
the  “erwork Agreements’ | Substanually all of the Network Agreements tother than uniity pole aiachment
agreements which tvpically can be termunated on Y days notice) are for a jong-term and inulude renesa
aplions

Atthough none of the Network Agreements are exclusive, the Company believes that conduit space hber
avafabrhits and other phyvsical constraints make it unhkels that the lessors under the vanous Network
Agreements could cusis make wimilar arrangements avadable 1w others The Company believes thar o



relationships with 1ts lessors are sausfactory. Certaun of the Network Agreements require ECI to make revenuc
shanng payments or. 10 some cascs, lo provide a fixed price alternative or dark fiber (o the lessor withour an
additional charge In addiion. the Company has various other performance obligations under its Network
Agrecments. the breach of which could result in the terminaton of such agreements Further. actions by
gmernmental regulatory bodies could. in certain inswances. also result in the termunation of certamn Network
ayreements The cancellauon of any of the matenal Network Agreements could matenally adversely atfect the
Compans s business in the affected metropohitan area. See "*Risk Factors—Rusk of Cancellation or Non-Renewal
ol Network Agreements, Licenses and Permuts.”’

Inierexchange Agreements  ICL from ume to ume. enters 1nto purchase agreements with interexchange
camers for the wransport and/or ternunation of long distance calls outside of its temtory These contracts are
typically wo years 1n durauton and customanly include munimum purchase amounts

UniSPAN(C  In order to provide end-to-end connecuvity and interoperability throughout the United
States 10 1ts enhanced data services customers, ICl entered nto a frame relay service agreement (the "UniSPAN
Agreement’ 1 in September 1994 with EMI (since acquired by ICI) PacNet, Inc . Integrated Network Services
Inc and MRC Telecommunucations, Inc In September 1995, Telemedia Internavonal. Inc . an intemauonai
telccommunwcations «ompany. became a party to the UmSPAN Agreemem Pursuant to the ['mSPAN
Agreement. each of the paries agreed to (1} provide frame relay services on s networks to each of the other
parties subsect to avarlahle capacity and agreement as to certain terms including price and access to facilities
and t11y use reasonabie efforts to utilize the services of the other parties in the event that such parts reguires
frame refay serices in 3 geographic location not served by its own networks The UmiSPAN Agreement has an
initial three vear term wath successive one year rene wal penods until terminated by a majonty sote of the paries
However uny parts may withdraw from the agreement as of the expiration of amy 1erm by giving 60 Javs pnor
written notice ther=o! Throughout the term of the UniSPAN Agreement and for one vear therealter. or tor o
period of ome svear atter the withdrawal of any party, none of the paries mav solicit provision of frame relay
services Teowustomers which were brought in to the UmSPAN(C) program by another pants or for which frame
relas servives were requested by another party

Employees

Aol December 31 19964 1CT emploved a total of 8§74 full-nme emplovees The Company anticipates that
the number of emplinees will increase significantly throughout 1997 The Company behicves that s tuture
sucuess wiib Jepend 1n large pan un its continued ability to atiract and retain mghly skilled and qualihed
personnei 1CT has nondisciosure agreements with all of us employees The Company also regularly uses the
serices of contract techmicians tor the installation and maintenance of 1ts networks None of [CI's emplovees i«
represented by u collective bargaining agreement [Cl believes that its relations with 1ts empluyees are good

Risk Factors

Limited Cperanons of Certain Services. History of Net Losses The Company s business commenced in
1987 Substanually ali of the Company’s revenues are denved from local exchange senvices. enhanced Jats
services, lonp distance services, integration services and centain jocal network services Many of these servicer
hasve oals recently been initiated or thesr avadability only recently expanded in new market areas The Compuny
v eapecting to subsiantially increase the size of us operations in the near future Given the Company ~ imited
eperating history, there v no assurance that it will be able 10 compete successfully 0 the twelecommunications

business

The devclopment of the Compans s business and the expansion of s networks reguire signihcant capial
operational and administraiye expenditures, a substanual portion of which are incurred betore the realization ol
resenues  These capuar cxpenditures will result in negative cash flow unt! an adeguate customer hase 1
estublished  Although 11 revenues have increased in cach of the last three vears, [CT has incumed sipmihcant
iNoreases 10 ¢ penses assenonated wath the insiallanon of localflong distance voice ssatches and expansion of -
nher optic aetworks servees and costomer hase KT reported net losses of approsemaiciy S84 mudlen S0
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rullion and $57 2 mlhion for the years ended December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1996, respecuvely The Company
anticipates having a signaficant net loss in 1997 that 15 expected to be substanually greater than the loss in 1996
and expects net losses to continue for the next several years. In addition. the Company expects to have negauve
EBITDA 1n 1997. There can be no assurance that 1C] will achieve or sustain profitability or positive EBITDA in
the future

Sigruficant Capital Reguirements and Need for Additional Financing. Expansion of the Company's
exasting networks and services and the development of new networks and services require signihcant capital
expendiures ICH expects to fund 1ts capital requirements through exisung r-sources, joint ventures. debt or
equity inancing. and internaltly generated funds. The Company expects that to continue to expand its business
will require raising substanuat addiuonal equity and/or debt capital after 1998. The Company’'s outstanding debt
instrumnents do not permit the incurrence of an amount of indebledness sufficient w fund s anucipated tuture
capital requirements. Accordingly. the Company will need to oblain waivers or consents from its debthoiders or
raise equity capital. There can be no assurance, however, that 1C] will be successful 1b rusing sufficient debt or
equity capital on terms that 1t witl consider acceptable. In additson, the Company’s future capital requirements
will depend upon a number of factors, including marketing expenses, suffing levels and customer growth, as
wel] as other factors that are not within the Company's control, such as competiive conditions, government
regulation and capital costs Failure to generate sufficient funds may require ICl to delav ©r abandon some of 1ts
toreign expansion or expenditure. which would have a matenal adverse effeci on 1ts growth and ns abihity 1o
compete in the telecommunicauons mdustry.

Expansion Risk The Company 15 expenencing a penod of rapid expansion which management expects
wtll increase in the near future This growth has increased the operating complexity of the Company as well as
the level of responsibility tor both existing and new management personnel The Company ‘s abilits 10 manage
its expansion effecuvely will require 1l to continue to implement and :mprove its operational 4nd hnancial
~vstems and to expand. train and manage its employee base The Company's mability w elfectinely monage it
capansion could have s matenal adverse effect on its business

a4 poruon of the Compans’s expansion may occur through acquistions as an altermative tw diredt
investments 10 the assets required to implement the expansion No assurance can be given that suitabie
acgusitions ¢an be idenufied. hnanced and completed on acceptable temms. or that the Company « tuture
acquisitions. 1f any. will be successful or will not impair the Company’'s ability to service 11y vutstanding
obligations

Risis of [mplementation. Need 1 Obiain Permus and Rights of Way  The Company v conunuing 1o
cxpand its existing networks The Company has identified other expansion opportunities in the castern halt ot
the United States and o currently extending the reach of its networks to pursue such opportunities There can he
no dssurance that the Company will be able 1o expand its existing networks or CONSINUCL OF aCQUITE NCW NCIW OTk
45 curmentls planned on a umely basis The expansion of the Company’'s existing networks and its construcion
or acquisiuon of new networks will be dependent. among other things, on its ability to acquire nghts-of-w.ay and
any required permuts on satisfactory terms and condiuons and on its ability 1o hinance such expansion, scquisition
and construcuon [n addimon. the Company may require pole atachment agreements with utthines and 1 FCs 1o
operate enisting and future networks, and there can be no assurance that such agreements will be oblained o
nhtainable on reasonabie terms These tactors and others could adverselv affect the expansion of the Company -
suslemer base on s enisiing networks and commencement of operauons on new networks 1 the Compans
nut able 1o expand. acquire or construct 1(s networks in accordance with its plans. the growth of iis business
would be matenally adversely atfected

Comperifion  In each of s markets the Company faces sigmficant competition for the Leal nevwotd
services ancluding local exchange sermaces. at otfers from [LECs, which currently dominate their boca!
felecommunicatens markets [LEC S have long-standing relavonships with their customers which relationstups
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the Company as the provider of such new lelecommur cations technology No assurance can be given that such
acceptance will occur: the lack of such acceplance could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company

Rupid Technological Changes  The telecommumcations industry s subject 1o rapid and signihcant
changes n technology While [C] believes that. for the foreseeable future, these changes w)ll neither matenally
affect the continued use of its fiber oplic networks nor matenally hunder its abibity 1o acquire necessan
technologies. the effect on the business of [Cl of technological changes such as changes relaung W emerging
wireline and wireless wansmussion technologies. including software protocols. cannot be predicted

Dependence on Key Personnei The Company’s business s managed by a small number of ke
management and operating personnel. the toss of certain of whom could have a material adverse impact on the
Company's business The Company behieves that ts future success will depend in large part on ity contnued
amlity to attract and anain highly skulled and qualified personnel None of the Company's key executives. other
than David C Ruberg, President. Chief Executive Officer and Chatrman of the Board. 15 a party 1o a long-term
emplovment agreement with the Company

Risk of Cancellation or Non-Renewa! of Network Agreements, Licenses and Pe.mits The Compans hae
lease and/or purchase agreements for nghts-of-way, unlity pole attachments. condu:t and dark fiber for 11s tiber
opuc networks  Although the Company does not believe thar any of these agreements will be cancelled n the
near future cancellation or non-renewal of certain of such agreements could matenally adversely affect the
Company s business in the affected metropolitan 2rea [n addition, the Company has certain hicenses and permuns
from local government authonties The 1996 Act requires that local govemment authontes treat
lelecommunications carmers in a competitively neutral, non-discnmunatory manner. and that most otilities
ircluding maost ILeCs and electne companies. afford altermative camers access (o their poles conduits and
nghts-of-way al reasonable rates on non-discnminatory terms and conditions There can be no assurance that the
Compans will be able 10 maintain e evsting franchises. permuts and nghts or will be able 1o abtyn and mantie
the uther tranchises permits and nghrs needed 1o implement 1ts strategy on acceptable torme

Dependence on Buviness from [XC1 For the year ended December 31, 1996, approximately 107 ot the

{ ompans '~ consolidated revenues were attnbutable to access services provided to 1XCs The Joss of access

revenues trom IACs in general could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business  Sec
Business--Customer Sturategy

In addivon. the Company’s growth strategy assumes increased revenues from IXCs from the deplovmient o
lwalflong Jdistance voice switches on s networks and the provision of switched access onginanon and
termination services There 1s no assurance that the [XCs wiil continue to increase theur ubilization of the
Company s services. or will not reduce or cease therr wtilizanon of the Company s semvices which would have o
matenal adverse effect on the Company

Business Combnarions Chunge of Conrrol The Company has from ume 10 tme held. and continues t.
held. preliminany discussions with 110 potennal strategic investors who have expressed an interest 10 making 4n
insvestment in or acquinng the Company and (1) potential joint venture panners lookung toward the formation of
strategre alliances that would expand the reach of the Company s networks or services withoul necessanly
requinng an sdditional tnvestment an the Company  In addiion 10 providing additional growth apual
management belicves that an alhance with an approprale strategic investor would provide operating syvnergs to

and enhance the competitive positons ol both [CT and the investor within the rapdiy  consohdating
telecommuni, abons industrs - There van be no assurance that agreements for any of the foregomg will he
reached  An maestment business combinanon or strategic alliance could constitute a change of comrol The

rermis of the Compans « Busung Senior Notes ras defined: and Senes A Preterred Stock cas dehnedi provide
hat g vhange of control would require the © ompans (o repas the indebiedness and redeem the Series A Pretered
Sooce ouistanding under suchonstruments [P g change of control does occur, there v no ussurance Tt the







scquired and capial leases assumed in business acgquisitions, since January 1. 1992 were as follows un

thousands)
Year Ended December M. A mount
1992 . e $ 96387
1993 e 10.767
1994 N e 18.289
1995 . S e 34873
1996 - . e R 13] 466

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

Legal Proceedings

The Company 1s not a party 1o any pending legal proceedings except for vanous claims and lawsuils ansing
in the normal course of bustness The Company does not believe that these normal course of business clums or
law suits will have a matenal effect on the Company s financial condiuon or results of operatons

Item 4. Submission of Maniers 1o a Yote of Security Holders

None

PART 11
ltem 5. Market Price for Registrani's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Maiters

The Common Skxck s listed for rading on the Nasdaq Nauonal Market under the symbol “ICIN A o
March 19 1997 based wpon 77 holders of record of the Common Stock and an esumate o the number o
ndividual parmicipants represented by securnity posion listings. there are approximately 3,200 benehicial holders
ot the Common Stock The approaimate high and low bed prices for the Common Stock tabulated below are s
reported by the Nasdag Nanonal Market and represent inter-dealer quotanons which do not include retast murk
ups. mark-downs or commiussions Such pnces do not necessanly represent actual transactions

Bid Prce

Quanter l-llh ﬂ
1998

First S L . . 15 L1

Second . .o 13 8

Thard P . o [7v 10

Fourth o 17t |1
1596

First (94 117

Second . Igle 17

Thurd . R g, 2

Fourth o . 35 21

Helders ot shares of Common Stock are entitled 1o dividends. when and 1f declared by the Board o
Directors out ol tunds legally ovailable theretor ICI has never declared or paid cash dividends onaty Commoen
Stowh [CT iAends o retain ity earmangs 1t any. 1o hnance the development and expansion of v business and
therefore does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future In addition. the terms of 1 the
Company & [V 2% Senes B Semor Notes due 2005 ithe “Sentor Notes' ). (i) the Company 1272 Senior
[hscount Noteo due 2006 ithe "Discount Notes™ ™ and together with the Senior Notes. the " Eusting Senieor
Soies o and o the Compary s Series A Prelerted Stock restniet the payment of dividends When sach
fottctoms e donger et the devisnns whether o pay dividends will be niade by the Hoard of Dheecoes o




light of conditions then exisung, including the Company's results of operauons, financial condition and capital
requirements, busimess conditions and other factors The payment of dividends on the Common Stock 1s also
subject to the preference apphicabie to the outstanding shares of the Company's Senes A Preferred Stock and 10
the prefercnce thal may be applicable 10 any additional outstanding shares of the Company's Preferred Siock

On June 28. 1996. ICI purchased EMI's welecommunications division 1n exchange for 937,500 newly and
vahdly 1ssued. fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock (the "EMI Shares™), tssued by [C] 0
Newhouse. the parent corporatton of EMI. The number of EMI Shares payable to Newhouse was based upon 4
purchase price ot $15.000.000 divided by the average unding pnce per share of the Common Stock dunng the
twenty-one day penod ending on February 14, 1996 (which was equal to $16.00) As of June 28, 1996, the
closing date of acquimition. the EMI Shares were valued al approximately $16.9 mullion. The EMI Shares were
transferred to Newhouse pursuant 10 an exemption from registration provided for under Secuon 42y of the
Secunues Act of 1933, as amended (the “*Act’’}. Prior to the issuance of the EMI Shares, Newhouse represented
to IC1. among other things, that. (1) 1115 acquinng the EMI Shares for its own account for snvestment and withous
any view (o any distnbunen thereof, (1)) it understands that it must bear the economuc nsk of its IRvestment 1
the EM! Shares tor an indefinte penod of ume. and (ihi) it is aware of the Company's business atfairy and
nnanaal condinion and has acquired sufficient informauon aboul the Company 1o reach an informed and
knowicdgeable decision to acquire the EMI Shares

On December 6. 1996, the Company acquired centan assets of UTT for a purchase pnce of $2 9 mallion,
including assumed liabilities and 31,380 unregistered shares of Common Stock (the "UTT Sharev’': The UTT
Shares were 1ssued by ICTto UTT pursuant to an exemption from registrauon provided for under Section 470 o
the Act Prior te the 1ssuance of the UTT Shares. UTT represented to 1C1. among other things that ot s
acquintng the UTT Shares {or s own account for wvestment purposes and without any view to distnhunion o1
thereo! «n 1t understands that it must bear the economuc nisk of s investment in the UTT Shares tor un
indehinite persd of time. @nd cun) 1t s aware of the Company's business affairs and hnancial condition and has
acguired sufhcier - intormation about the Company to reach an informed and knowledgeable decivion o s quite
the UTT Shares

On March 7. 1997 ICT consummated a pnivate placement (the *"Private Placement’ "1 of WL shares ot it
1127 Senes A Redeemable Exchangeable Preferred Stock due 2009. hiquidation preference S1O.00 per share
ithe "Senes A Preterred Stock” 1. 10 qualified nsututional buyers™ (as defined in Rule 144A under the
Secunties Actof 1931 4. amended 1the “"Act™")) (the '*Purchasers’ ) to generate gross proceeds to the Compans
of $300.000.000. including an aggregate of $11,115,000 of underwnting discounts and commissions The shares
ot Senev A Preterred Stowk were sssued 1o the Purchasers pursuant to anp exempion from registration prosided
by Rube 143A under the Act In connecuon wath the Privale Placement. the Purchasers and the Company entered
it g Regustration Rights Agreements. whereby the Company agreed (o file a registration statement with respedt
toan ofter 1o exchange the Senes A Preferred Stock for a new issue of preferred stock of the Company registered
under the Act, with terms substantially 1dentical to those of the Senes A Preterred Siock Each of the Purchuasers
represenied to the Company. among other things. that it 15 a quaiified institutional buver and iv aware *hal the
sale et v being miade in rehiance on Rule 144A. and that o is acquinng the Senes A Preferred 7wk for 1is
Swn acenunt of for the account of another qualified institubonal buver

ltem 6. Selected Financral and Other Operaring Data

The selected hinancial data and balance sheet data presented befow us of and tur the hve years in the periosd
ended December 31 1996 have been denved from the consolidated financial statements of the Company which
frianciai staterments have been audited by Emst & Young LLP. independent certined public accountants

The operuting resubts of EMI are included in the Company’s consolidated operstung results conunenaing
fuls 1199t The operating results of UTT and NetSolve ase included in the Company '« consolidated vpetating
results commenaing December | 1996 The pro forma operating intormation gives effect to the EMI UTT and
NerSoive dajuisitions as ! thes oceumed on Januwary | 1996 The tollowing hnancial information ~hould be eead
mcomuncuon with "Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuils of Operationy

Buuness  und the Consohdated Finanaial Statements of the Company and the “otes therelo ngluded
v here motdo o repon
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1Amounts in thousands, except per share and Ratistical dats)

Pro bormat 1

Y ear bnded
3, b
Year Ended December 11 mber 11
1991 1993 1994 1995 199 1996
welected Finuncial Data:
Rewvenue $ 7030 3829 $14271 S WaeY Si0V WY L TANI
Expenses
Facilities sdmunesirauan and manienance and hne costs 1.760 1.84) 5,396 21989 LRI 121 w0t
Selling. general and adminisirative 1007 1,893 G412 14,991 LI IT ARG
[depreciation and amortizahns 2,190 3020 5112 1} | 9 IR RN RN
6557 975 1694 AR 178 10 S8y PN
Operaung income rloss) 471 (l4b4)  (2.668) 19547 15 AR
{Jther tNCoMme | CApENse )
Interest expense (1.031) (B4d) (1,218 113,767 (3 20% (RN
Intcrest and other :ncome 23 234 819 4 060 12 1ok HANE ]
Income lax benetit _ — — 97
Lirss hetare extraordinany 1iem (2135 12074 MRTY W IAT 8T e
Extraordinar toss an earis exunguishment of et - 11,392,
Nt s $ 123 W2074) S(YO06Ty %20 T49r 3457 1wy L TN
ot geer e o -
L vna bebote exipaordinan nem $ (I 8 (M % My e Y dok [ SN
Eatraordinan foss — — — oy
et oy $ 1oy % (2 0% (MY O S dom, { RLETE
W righted uverage number of shares vutstanding 4797 7077 89%  lomin 40 T
Pro Forma 1y
Year F nded
Year Ended December 31, December V1.
1992 1993 1994 1998 199 1994
)ther Data:
Larmings betore interest income faaes Jepreoidti n and amonizatnm
EBITDA w1 $2661 3 1556 5 J464 5 Ay Fe0d n ol
Coapta eapenditure s nonding soger b 1 Bganeses nenl ot cash
Vel SHHIE 310488 13T St Siaeean AP Y
December M.
1992 1993 1994 1998 [9%96
Network Datand;
Buuding~ connecied i6l AT i LR T
Rowte miles 2t 114 1 A e
Finer mutes 6 183 1 249 R A T
Ssumber ol ity -based netwarks 1 seriee 4 N lad K E
Enhanced Data Services:td)
SNonden S — 1 T METE 1) w him
Toafies. t — it 1in LLE Dl
Lwn he — 4 1 i .
Fmploveesid: 449 AL Y N LI

December 3,

1991 1993 1994 1995 L9494
Halands “hevi Duta
S bl b eguroatents T [ L T S L ST PR T S S TP e AL 1
Weore oy apeal H 99 M Y LRk Ta1en Tiweo T
Tola aaeels 6174 w21y T4 LKA Do LT
Long term obligabien ang redeemable prefermed sha b afi luding curtenl maturiies) 11.742 TR I [hY Sas e S
Towgr s khedders cgunl - 21287 PR LRATRR FITIRAN] N

The pe fommy aperarig otormation g eftet boabe EMI LU TT and NetSolve scquisiions. which occurred effective June e 1990 [ecember |
Ce el [recember L re reapeitine s g ol fhey wurmed on Januars 11996

Seel s g share on YNNI Ras Been intcased L Tefed pretenmed stock disidends

PBITEA Consasy of armings betore intere s income faves depreciation and amorization [n sddinon. (999 EBITDA e v ludes unenifuntimars o aiyr
SR renated e the earhy extinguishanean af detn FBITDIA (v prosided i ine Summary of Financial and Other dperaie p Data onee 0 o messoe
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Amounts as refleciad 1n the Lable are based ypod wifomuaton conuuned 1 the Company s opersting rew onds

Amount represents an individual poant of ongin and termunaaon of daty served by the Company s enhanced network in the spinon of
management of the Company. all pade numbers are spproprsie

Represents te number of discrewe postal cites 0 winch enhanced dats services are provaded by the Company

Cash and cash equivalents excludes investments of $20.954 and 326,675 0 1995 and 1996 respecuvely restncied under the tenms ot
vanous notes and other agreements

Working caprial includes te rewncted investments referred to in Note 7, sbove
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the audited Consohidated Financial
Staternents and the Notes thereto appeanng eisewhere in this report.

Overview

Since 1ts inception 1in 1987, the Company has experienced substantial growth. Building from 1ts onginal
base 1n Flonda, ICI s now a provider of integrated ielecommunications services to customers that have a
presence tn the eastern half of the United States. The Company currently has mine digital. fiber optic networks in
service and one under development [n addition, the Company's frame relay network serves customers in
approximately 2,200 ciues and provides end-to-end connectivity throughout the United States and many
internationat markels  As us networks and service offenngs have eapanded. the Company has expenenced
significant vear to year growth in revenues and customers.

IC1 competes with the ILECs and [XCs in its service temtory and offers a fult range of voice and daiz
wlecommunications services ICI's customers include a broad range of business and government end users and
IXCs The Company delivers local network services, including local exchange service. pnmanly over digital
hber opuic tel:communications networks that 1t cither owns or leases. In some circumstances. leasing facihues
cnahles the Company to more rapidly 1nitiate service to customers, reduces the risk of network construction or
acquisiion and potentially ymproves cash flow due to the reduction or deferment of capitul expenditures The
Company aiso offers enhanced data services 1o its customers on an extensive intercity network that connects its
customers. either through 1ty own network or through ather carners, to locations throughout the countrv and
internationally  This intercity network combined with the Company's local/long distance voice switches allows
the Company 10 provide interexchange long distance service domestically and intemanionally

Atats incepuion, ICT provided special access and pnvate Line services to IXC's In 1988, ICl was the first
telecommunmications senvce provider in Flonda to begin providing special access and pnrate hine rervices to
business customers In 1991, IC] began oflering integration services in response 10 customers  nceds and i 19492
ICL mtroduced s~ hirst enhanced data services 1o provide flexible capacity and highly rehable end-1o-end data
service for s business and government customers The Company began offenng interexchange long distance
seivive 10 December 1994, Internet services tn 1995 and local exchange services in 1996 The pace with which
the Company has snroduced new service offenngs has enabied 11 to achueve substantial growth. improve s mix
of customers and diversifs ts sources of revenue. The Company believes that business and govemment
customers wiil contnue o account for 2 substantial share of its revenues over the next several years. because of
ICT ~ abihty W otfer such customers integraied. cost-effective telecommunications solunons The Company
behieves that dunng the tirst few years of local exchange competinon. the 1XCs may enter the market hy
he.oming reseiiers of the Company’s local senvices If the IXCs pursue a reseller strategy. the amount of revenue
the Compans realizes from camers may increase dunng this penod

From {992 through 995 the Company had achieved posittve EBITDA and increased its revenue base
substantialis  However. as a result of signihcant invesiments 1n resources necessany (o launch local exchange
~servives and expand enhanced data services. EBITDA decreased as a percentage of revenue and the Campany «
EBITDA was negative tor 1996 This was due to the significant up front expenses related to the development of
v networks and leased faciliies the revenue from which 15 expected 1o be realized in later penods The
development of the ( ompans « business and the installation and expansion of its networks have resulted 1n
substantial capital expenditures and net losses dunng this penod of its operations Procurement of nghts-of-way
admiunistration and maintenance of facilines. deprecianion of network capitel expendstures and sales. general and
admunustrative costs will continue o represent a large poruon of the Company's expenses dunng 1ts ramd
expansion [n addition the { ompany 18 expenencing rapid growth in marketing and selling expenses consivient
with the add:tion of new customers and an increased level of selhing and marketung acuvity All of the markeung
and selling expenses assodialed with the acquisiton of new customers are expensed as they are incurred cven
though these customers are expected 10 generate recumng revenue for the Company for several vears The
~ortinued evpansion ol ine Company s networks 10 anbctpation of new customers and the marketing of serves
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level of demand-dnven capital spending necessary to more rapidly exploit the market opponunity tn e local
exchange market, The Company expects to expend substantial amounts to upgrade 1ts existing networks 10 order
to swiich traffic within the local service area in those states where it 15 currently permitted to provide such
senvices The Company is cerufied as a CLEC :n 13 states and the Dhsinct of Columbia, allowing the Company
to provide local exchange services in those markets, and has CLEC ceruficauion apphications pending 1 21 states

In addition. the Compans expects to expend capital toward the further development of the Company s enhanced
data service and imterchange service offerings

The Company currently esumates that it will require approxtmately $190 muliion to fund anticipated capital
requirements dunng 1997, which it expects to fund from its avaiiable cash. including the proceeds ol the Prnivate
Placement descnibed 1o the next paragraph

On March 7. 1997, the Company sold 30.000 shares (aggregate Liquidation preference $300.000.00)) of the
Series A Preterred Stock in o pmhate placement vansaction. Net proceeds to the Company amounted 1o
approximaltels $288.875.0000 Dividends on the Senes A Preferred Stock accumulate at a rate of 13'25 ot the
aggregale hiquidation prelerence thereo! and are payable quanerly. in arrears Dividends arc payable in ash or
at the Compans '~ option, by the issuance of additional shares of Senes A Preferred Stock having an aggrepate
liquidabon preterence equal 1o the amount of such dividends. The Senes A Preferred Stuck iy subject 1o
mandatory redemption at its hguidation preference of $10,000 per share, pius accumulated wid unpaid dividend.
vn March 31, 2(6% The Senes A Preferred Stock will be redeemable at the opuon of the Company at any ume
atter March 11 2K02 ar rates commencing with 106.75% . dechimng to 100% on March 31, 2007

The Company mav. at s apuon. exchange some or all shares of the Series A Preferred Stoch tor the
Company s 132 Semor Suhordinated Debentures. due 2009 (the “"Eachange Debentuiess The Exchange
Debentures mature on March 31 2004 Interest on the Exchange Debentures 1s payable semi annuaily - and mas
he pawd in the torm of aldibonal Exchinge Debentures at the Company's opion Excbange Debentures will be
tedeemable by the Company at any ume after March 31, 2002 at rates commencing with 106 78 dechining o
b on March 30 2007

The Cumpansy expects that (ts asalable cash, including proceeds from the Private Placement. will be
suthuient to tund tts acveleraled and expanded capital deployment plan through 1998 The Company expedts 1o
reguire additional ftnancine to conninue ds capital deployment plan beyond 1998 The Compans may obtain
additional tunding through the sale ol public or pnivate debt andfor equity secunties or through secunng 4 bank
credit tacihty There can be no assurance as to the availability or the terms upon which such hnancing might be
avatlable Mureover. the Existing Senor Notes and the Series A Preferred Stock impose ceftain restnctions upoen
the Compans s abihiny o incur addiional indebtedness or 1ssue additional preferred stoch

The Compant has trom e 1o ime held. and conunues (o hold. preliminary discussions with vy potential
stralegic nvestors i e ansesturs in the same or a related business) who have expressed an interest in making an
mmvestment in or acquinng the Company (1) potential joint venture pariners looking loward lormation of
strategi alltances that would eapand the reach of the Company’s network or services witoul necessanlh
teguiting an additional anvestment in the Company and (u) compamies that represent palemtial avguisition
opportunitic Tor the Compans There can be ne assurance that any agreement with any potential strategi.
Ifvestor M senture pantner or acquisiton target will be reached nor does management belicve thal uny such
apreement i necessan 1o succesulls implement its strategic plans

Impact of taflation

Inflation has et had s sigmneant impact on the Company 's operations over the past (bree years

ltem 8.  Financwal Siatements and Supplementary Data

The findntal staee st aed m lem 13 ae loand 120 are included in this repuer r'k_'}l”u”n_._' aHT Papd Pl
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lem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounsing and Financial Disclosure

None

PART II1
ltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The ntormantion required by this Item 10 1s incorporated by reference from the infurmation Captioned
“Proposal (Une Elecuon of Directors™ and “"Executive Officers’™ to be included in the Compans ~ prov.
statement (0 be filed in connection with the annual meeung of stockholders. to be held on May 22 17 ithe
“Proxy Statement’)

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The intormaten required by this Item 11 is incorporated by reference from the nturmaton aptione.d
‘Executive Compensanion™ and '“Comparative Stock Performance * to be included 1n the Proxy Statement

ltem 12.  Secunity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managem.ni

The information required by this Item 12 1s incorporated by reference from the intormation caphioned
‘Benehcial Gunership’” to be included in the Proxy Statement

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The intormation required by this Bem 13 15 incorporated by reference tram the intormation yaphioric:d
“Certan Transactions " 1o be included in the Proxy Statemem

PART IA
Item 14.  FExhewbus. Financial Siatement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
tantiand 2y kFinancial Statements and Financial Statement Scheduies

The tollowing «onsolidated Anancial statements of the Company and the notes thereto, the related reports
thereon of the independent certthed public accountants. and hnancial statement schedules, are filed under [tem =
of this Repon

ta t1 Financial Statements
Repen of Independent Certified Pubhic Accountants Foi

Consolidated Baiance Sheets at December 31, 1995 and 1996 I
Conselidated Statements of Operauons for the years ended December 11 1994
and 1996 . . I
Consohidated Statements of Stackholders’ Equity for the vears ended December 31
1994 1995 and 1996 ‘
Consolsdated Statements of Cash Flo..s for the years ended December 11, 1994 1995
and 1946
Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements

2 kinanaial Statermnent Schedules
Sohedule f1- Valuguon and Qualifying Accounty I

149 S

All other tinanciai statement schedules for which provivion s made ia the applicable accounting regutatnon
GEthe Secunues and Fachanpe Commission ithe Commussion ) are not reguired under the snstructions to diem

o sre N oappacable and theselore hase been omaticd
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Exhabit
Indenture. dated as of June 2, 1995, between the Company and SunBank National Association,
as trustee Exhibit 4 1 to the Company's Regisiration Sistement on Form 5-4 fled with the
Secunities and Exchange Commussion on June 20. 1995 (No. 33-93622) (the ""Form $-4"") 1s
incoporated herein by reference

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of Apnl 26, 1996, governing the Company's 13 %
Series B Sentor Notes due 2005, between the Company and SunTrust Bank, Central Flonda,
Natwonal Assocration, as trustee. Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Repont on Form 8-K
fiied with the Commussion on Apnl 29, 1996 15 incorporated here:n by reference.

Regivtration Rights Agreement. dated as of June 2. 1995 among the Company, Bear, Steamns,
& Co. Inc and Morgan Swunley & Co.. as imual purchasers. Exhibit 4.3 10 the Form 54 35
incorporated herein by reference.

Rights Agreement dated as of March 7. 1996, between Intermedia Communicauons of Flonda,
inc . and Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company Extubat 4.1 to the Company’'s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Comerussion on March 12, 1996 15 incorporated herein by
reterence

Amendment 10 Rights Agreement, dated as of February 20. 1997 between Intermedia
Communications Inc. and Conunental Stock Transfer & Trust Company

W oarrant Agreement. dated as of February 18, 1988, between ICI and centain of ns stockholders
Exhibit 100 16 1o the Company’s Form S-1 is incorporated herein by reference

MWoarrant Agreement. dated as of June 5. 1991, between ICI and New York Life Insurance
Company Eshibi 10 17 1o the Company's Form S-1 1s incorporated herein by reference

Form of Warrani Agreement. dated as of March 4. 1992, between IC! and ceramn of ins
~tow kholders | dubit 1018 to the Company’s Form S-1 1s incorporated herein by reference

Iideature duted as of May 14, 1996, between the Company and SunTrust Bank. Central
Flonda, Nanonal Associauon, as trustee Exhibit 4 | (0o Amendment No 1 to the Company's
Registraton Statement on Form 8.3 (Commussion File No  13-34738) fled with the
{ommission on Apnl 18, 1996 1s incorporated herein by reference

t eruhcate of Destignation of the Companv's 134% Senes A and Senes B Redeemable
t \changeable Preterred Stock due 2009 is contained in the Company's Restated Certificate of
Incarporation, as amended. filed as Exlibi 3 1 1o tus repont

Registranon Rights Agreeement. dated as of March 7, 1997, by and among the Company and
Bear Steams & Co Inc . Morgan Stanley & Co Incorporated and Salomon Brothers Inc, as

the inilial puichasers

Ceruhiate of Designation. as amended. of the Company ‘s Senes C Preferred Stock 13 contained
in the Company - Restated Cenificate of Incorporaton, as amended. filed as Exhibit 11 10 this
reporn

14 Stock Option Plan Extubic [0 to the Form S-1 1s incorporated herein by reference

Amendment v £992 Stock Option Plan dated May 20, 1993 Extubit 10 1th) to the Form $ |
s ancomporated herein by reference
Lo Term Inceniive Plan Exhibir 10 Lic) to the Company ‘s 1995 Form 10-K s incorporaied

herean baoreferenge

11200 € Rubere Bmpliyment Agreement. dated May | 1993, berween David © Ruberg and
FOLfahime 10 2 o the Company < 1998 Form 10-K v incorporated herein by relerence
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(:lossary

Accrsy Charges—The charges paid by an interexchange camer to a LEC for the onginauon or iermination
of the IXC '~ customer s long distance calls

Aicess Line—A circunt that connects a telephone user (customer) to the public switched telephone network
The avcess ine usually connects to a telephone at the customer’s end.

1o est Node —A Norel switching device, which extends the presence of the DMS-500 switch to a remote
ate such s an O Net buitding The Access Node provides interfaces for line connecuons to the neiwork. and
provides concentration ot hines back to the DMS-500 swich

Access Trunk—A circunt that connects a telephone user's PBX or other inielligent device 1o the public
swiiched telephone network An access trunk ts designed to carry more raffic than an access line, since 11 14
aceessible o number of users

ATM (Asvnchronous Transfer Mode)—A modem information transfer standard that allows packetized
volce and data to share a transmission circuit. ATM provides much greater efficiency than typical channelized
transmission media

Bandw dth—The range of analog frequencies or the bit rate of digital signals that can be supporied by 4
circult or device The bandwidth of a particular eircuit 1s generally determined by the medium uself (wire. fiber
optic cable et 1 and the device that ransmuts the signal to the transmission medium (laser. audso ampliher. ctc

Bedi Saveeen The name given o the large, single entity that compnsed what are today AT&T and the
RBOCS inciuding Bell Laboratones and other subsidianes.

CAF Competive Access Provider)—A name for a category of local service provider that appeared in the
late TYKU « who competed with focal telephone companies by placing its own fiber optic cables in o ity and
~old vanous privale bine lelecommunications services tn direct competnion to the local telephone company

CENTREN A Central ofhice based business telephone service that roughly provides the user with the same
services as o PBX. without the capnial investment of the PBX Centrex services inciude station 1o station dialing
2 throuph 5 digirs), custermized long distance call handhing. and user-input authonzation codes

CLEC 1Competiive Local Exchange Camer)—A category of telephone service provider (camer) tha
otfers services simifar to the former monopoly local telephone company. as recently allowed by changes in
telecommunications law and regulanon A CLEC may also provide other types of telecommunications services

dtong distance et

i A emshiannn Gramed hy a state pubhic service commussion or public uttiity commussien. thes
Ao Lo teies omununecations senvices provaider the legal standing 1o ofter local exchange telephone servives in
Jdirect compettion with the incumbent LEC and other CLECs Such cernheanons are granted on s state by stawe

[REVIN

e emral Otheer - The swatching center andf/or central carcull termanating tacility ot a loval eiephane

Oy

Commimunationy At of 1934 The—The first major federai legisiation that established rules tor brogdoas
and non broadeast communications, both wareless and wired telephony

Conne ted Burlding- -A building that 1s connected 10 a camer’s network via a non-switched circut thar 1~
Managed and Mumtored by that camer

Deddtcuted Accesv- - A circunt that connects a customer (e a camer’s network. not shared amongst meliiple

CUsEOMer -






LATA (Local Access and Transport Area)—A geographic area inside of which a LEC can offer switched
telecommunications services, even long distance (known as local toll). There are 161 LATAs in the continental
US The LATA boundanes were established at the Divestiture of the regional Bell operating companses

L. FC iLocal Exchange Carrier}—Any telephone service provider offering local exchange services

Lix i Exchanee—An area inside of which telephone calls are generally completed without any toll. or long
distance charges Local exchange areas are defined by the state regulator of telephone services

Locul Exchange Services—Telephone services thal are provided withun a local exchange These usually
refer 10 Jocal calling services {(dial tone services.) Business local exchange services include Centrex. access hines
and trunks, and 1ISDN

POP (Point ot Presence)—A locauon where a camer, vsually an [XC. has located transmission and
terminating cquipment W connect sts network 10 the networks of other camers. or 10 customers

RAEIC tRegional Bell Operaung Company)—One of the Leeks crested by the Divestiture of the [kl
exthange business by AT&T These include BellSouth, NYNEX, Bell Atlanuic. Amentech, US West, SBU. und
PacTel

SONET Svinchronous Opuical NETwork)}—A transmussion technology that 1s used by camers in both lowa
and long Jistance telecommumnications networks to provide efficient, highly reliable communications channels

Specra! Accesy Semces—Prvate, non-switched connecuons between an IXC and a customer. tor the
purmese o connecting the customer ' s long distance calls to the IXC's network. without having to pas the LEC -«

docres harges
S Jiieeranion—The provision of specialized skills and equipment 1o meet speciic customer need.

Va4 overs Small Aperture Termmnal)p—A satellite communication system that compnses sinall dumeter
rapprovimatels | meter in diameter) antennae and electronics to establish a communications terminal. use muostiy
tor data M SAT neiworks compete with other, landline based networks such as private lines and frame relay
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant nas duly caused this report to be signed on its behall by the undersigned, thereunto duly
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this repor. has been signed
helow by the following persons on behalfl of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN >
December 11, 1996

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Business

Intermedia Communicatuons Inc. (IC1 or the Company). formerly Intermedia Communications ot Flonda
Inc through May 29, (996, is an integrated communications services provider offenng a full suite of local, lony
distance and enhanced data services to business and government end users Services include daa and  de
telecommunications services, frame relay. Internet access services, local exchange services. long Jdistan. -
services and telecommunications equipment. The Company offers 1ts full product package of weiecommunic ation.
services 10 customers in {5 metropolitan statistical areas in the eastern half of the Unied States

Principles of Consolidanon

The consohdated financial statements include the accounts of Intermerua Commumications Ine anad 1t
subsidianes. all of which are wholly owned. All signficant intercompany transsctions and halances hase been

elimunated 1n consolidation

{ se of Estimates

The preparanion of hinancial statements in conformaty with generally accepied accounting pringiples regquine
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reponted in the hnancul statements an
accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash Equnvalenty

The Company considers all highly Liquid investments with a maturiiv of three months or des wlhics
purchased e be cash equivalents

NMhort-Term [frivestments

Shon-term nvestments consist of certficates of deposit with maturtues of more than three months whep
purchased and are stated at cosl

Resiricied Investments

Restncted investments consist of U'S Treasury Notes which are restncted tor the repayment ol inteiest on
veriwin debt and are stated at amortized cost Management designated these investments as held-to marun
secunties 1n accordance with the provisions of Stalement of Financial Accounung Standards No 115, A0 cntiny
tor Certwin [nvestmenis in Lrebt and Equin Securies.

Fedeovemmun ations Equipment

Delecommunicanons equipment s stated ot cost Depreciation expense 1s valoulated using the straicht hine
method vver the extimated usetul lives of the assets as follows

Telecommunications equipment © Thears
Fiber opud cable 20 veans
YT e

Fur-mture and hivtures




INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued!

Leasehold improvements are amostized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the (erm of the
lease or the esumated useful life of the improvements.

Intangibie Asiers

Intangible assets are stated at cost and include purchased customer lists, deferred debt 1vvuance costs and
goodwill Customer lists are amoruzed using the straight-hine method over thetr estimated uselul lives ot ¢ight
vears Goodwill 1s amoruzed using the straight-line method over penods of eight 1o forty vears

As more fully discussed 1n Note 2. dunng December 1996, the Company acquired Universal Teloom End
and NetSolve. Inc in ransactions accounted for using the purchase method The excess ol the respective
purchase pnces over the farr value of tangible net assets acquired have been prelimimanly clasaned 1ot
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as intangible assets The final allocation (o identufiabic 1ot it
assets 1s currently underway by management. The preliminary intangible assets not allocaied to osdent.habe
tangible and intangible assets will be recorded as goodwll

Deterred debt issuance costs refate 1o the jssuance of debt and are amoruzed using the cffectine mtere
method aover the term of the debt agreements. The related amortization 1+ included as a component ot intere
expense 1n the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Revenue Recognipion

The Company recognizes revenue n the penod the service 18 provided or the goods are shepped o
equipment product sales Unhilled revenues represent revenues eamed for telecommunicalions senaces provided
which will e hilled n the succeeding month and totaied $636.257 and $2.403,584 and as of December +] jvus
and 1996 respectinely  Unbilled revenues are included as a component of accounts recesvable ot
svvompanying consohdated balance sheets. The Company invoices customers one month in advance ot
recurmng senaces resalting in advance billings at December 31, 1995 and 1996 of $1.747 EO0 and S5 [ <7 oewe
respectivels

I ome Taves

['he Company has apphed the provisions of Sustement of Financial Accounting Standards Moo Do
A counnng for Income Taxes, which requires an asset and hability approach in accounting for income tave- T
all vears presented Deferred income taxes are provided for in the consohdaied hnancial statements sl
prncipally relate to net operating losses and basis differences for customer Lists and telecommunications

cyuiprment

farvy Per Shar(

l s per share v based on the weighted average shares outstanding Common stock equisalents are o
cansdered an the Company’s calculation of loss per share as all are antdilutive and wouid have no impact on

the resuits

Comcentrdtioms 0 { redit Rivk

The € oampany - tnanogl struments that are exposed to concentranons of credit sk as delined e
Stalement o binang il Accounting Standards No 105, Disclasure of Informanton Abour Fonanciai Teatraeon:
wothi ot Boaance Mice Risk and Finaactal Instraments with Comcentranons of Credu Risk are pnimann. ot

and castoequivalents and accounts receivable
















INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— Continued)

6. Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The carmying amounts and far values of the Company's financial instruments at Decernber 11 are as

tollows

1995 199%
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fulr Value Amount Fair Value
A58y
Cash and cash equivalents . ... S 50996919 § 50996919 $189.545939 SRy SIS 4y
Shor term invesiments L — —_ 6.041.000 k] KD
Restnled ynvestments, current and
noncurtent A L 51.823.016 52,064,050 37,156,189 36.920.39?
Accounts receivable ‘ . ‘ 7,954,194 7,954,194 19271769 19271 704
Laabihues .
Accounts payable R . % 4810075 % 4810175 0§ 20H95.001 8 29.H9S06]
Long-term debt .
13 5% Semor Notes S 158.983,840 179.200.000  1S9.115240 |82 KtH)aKN)
12 5% Semor Discount Nolexs . — — 194 223 7R} 26975 (HN)
Other notes payahie . 3231143 323143 165 046 IS (K6

The tollowing methods and assumptions are used in esumating farr values for hnancial instrumenis

Cush and «ash equivaiernts  The camying amount repened in the consalidated balance sheets tor cash and
<ash equisalents appronimates s far value

Imvesuneniy As of December 31, 1996, these investments are classified as held-to matunty, m accordanee
with SFAS 119 Accounnng for Certain Investments in Debt and Equin Securities The fr value ol these
investments i~ estimated from quoted markel pnces

Accounts recevable and accounts pasvable  The carmying amouats reported 1n the consolidared balance
aheels for au ounts recervable and accounts payable approxsmate their fair value

Lone term and shori-term debt  The esumated fair value of the Company's bormowing o based on
negoliated trades for the secunties as provided by the Company ‘s investment banker or hy using discounted v ash
flows at the Company s incremental borrowing rate

7.  Stockholders’ Equity

Stk Cipriony The Company has a 1992 Stock Opuon Plan and a 1996 Long Term Incentive Plan rihe
Planst under swhich options U soguire an dggregate of 1,346,000 shares and | 800004 shares respectively ol
comimon stk may be pranted o empioyees, ofheers, directors and consultants of the { ompany The Plane
authonze the Board of Direciors «the Board) o issue ncentive stock options (IS0 s dehned 1o S
+22A1h of the [nternal Revenue Code. and stock options that do not conform to the requirements of Hhat L onde
section dNon ISEn 0 The Badrd has discretionary guthonty (o determine the (ypes of stock options 1o he i
the persanis ¢ nong those ~ligib:= o whom options will be granied. the number of shares th be subjedt f0 such
cpuans, and the erms of the stock oplon agreements Opions may be exercised 10 the manncr and al sacti times
av tted byothe Board, but mas not be crercised atter the tenth anmisersary of the grant ol such ophoi

bool







INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— Continued )

Stock Award Plans Dunng 1996, the Company entered nto restncted share agreements with three
executive ofhcers that provide stock award incentives. Pursuant to the agreements. up 1o an aggregate ot 255 (00
restneted shares of common stock are awarded 1o the respective officers upon the atainment ol certain ok
price miiestones ranging from $20 10 $40. Shares awarded under these arrangements vest over a penod nf e
vears following the award Dunng 1996, 200,000 shares were awarded with a fair value of $4 999 99% which
amount will be amoruzed over the vesting penod

Stock Warrants Al Decenber 31, 1996, warrants 10 purchase the following shares of the { ompans s
common sloch were outstanding

Shares Price per share Expirstion date
6.282 $42 March 4. |97

117 46{) 420 June 2 1947

TS0 300 10 86 Jupe | 20k

A turther discussed in Note 5. the Company 1ssued warrants expiring in 200 to acquire V50 4K shure
common stock in connection with the issuance of the Senor Notes The Compans slso has wartants oulstandiy
that had been 1ssued tor consuling services

Nharehodder Righty Plan On March 7. 1996, the Board of Directory adopied 2 Shareholder Rights Plan
and dedlared o dividend of ane common stock Purchase Right {a Right) {or each vutstanding share of commint
stock to sharcholders of record on March 18, 1996 Such Rights only beconic exercisable. or transterahic apar
trom the commaon stock. ten business days afler a person or group tan Acguinng FPervont auguites benoto
ownership ot 7 commences o ieader ur exchange offer tor, 15% or more of the Compans ~ comimuon stock

Fach Right then may be cxercised 1o acquire 1/1000th of a share of the Company ~ Senies O pretencd ~than
at an exervise price al 385 Thereatier. upon the occurrence of cenamn evenis. the Kights entile halders athe:
than the Acquinng Person w acquire the enisung Company s preferred stock or commuon stock af the survaag
compant having o value of twice the exercise pnce of the Rights

The Rights mav be redeemed by the Company at a redemption pnce of $ 01 per Kight at any e unnl the
TUth business day following puhlic announcement that a 15% position has been acquired of fen husiness davs
after commencement ol a tender or exchange offer

Awtnried Sharey On May 240 1996, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the nuniber of share.
ot aathonzed common stuck from 20.000.000 10 50,000,000










INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued)

13.  Subsequent Event

On March 7. 1997, the Company sold 30,000 shares {aggregate liquidation preference $300.000.0003 vt 1t
13 % Senes A Redeemabie Exchangeable Preferred Stock. due 2009. (the '"Preferred Stock’ ) i a private
placement transaction Net proceeds to the Company amounted to approximately $288.875.000 Dividends on
the Preferred Stock accumulate at a rate of 13¥% of the aggregate hiquidaton preference and are pavable
quarterly, in arrears Dividends are payable in cash or. at the Company's option, by the issuance ot addinional
shares of Preferred Stock having an aggregate ligmidation preference equal to the amount of such dividends The
Preterred Stock 15 subject 10 mandatory redempuon at its hquidanon preference of $10.000 per share. plus
#ccumulated and unpaid dividends on March 31, 2009 The Preferred Stock will be redeemable at the option of
the Company at any ume after March 31, 2002 at rates commencing with 106, 75%, dechining to 100% on March

L2007

The Company may. al its option, exchange some or all shares of the Preferred Stock for the Company -
13i2¢% Senior Subordinated Debentures, due 2009 (the *‘Exchange Debentures’ ') The Exchange Debentures
malure on March 31, 2009 [nterest on the exchange debentures 1s payable sem.-annually. and may be paid in
the torm of addinional Exchange Debentures at the Company's option. Exchange uebentures will be redeemuble
by the Company 2t any nme after March 3i. 2002 at rates commencing with 106 75% . dechiming to 140 on

March ¥ 2007




INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.

SCHEDULE H—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions

Balsnce st Charged to o Balance at
Begnnlng of Casts and End of
Description ertod Expenses Accounts Deductions Pertod
Fur the vear ended December 31, 1994
Deducted from asset accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts ... § $3.793 § 80222 $527.320¢1) § 1159352y § 545300
For the year ended December 31, 1995
Deducled from assetl accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts . $545.300 $ 856,055 — $ 5324552 % Rey KN
For the vear ended December 31, 1996
Deducted from aswel accounts
Allowance for duubttol accounts $R69 000 $2.284.502 — £ 807500 Sl_"it:_()ﬂ(l

‘11 Amount represents allowance for doubtful accounts acquired in connection wit: the December 10 19493

acquisition of all the outstanding common stock of Phone One. Inc
120 Uneollectble accounts wntten off net of recovenes
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Iteen 1. Financial Statemenss

INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{(Unaudited)
(Is thousands, except share data)

Thwer Months Eaded MNine Masths Eaded
Septamber 20, 1997 Soptwaber 30, 199 _September 36, 1997 _September 30, 19%
Revemoes:
Local network services’ 311,814 b2l - 25457 19.67%
Enharced dana servces 30,50 10,244 54,031 19.493
interexchange services n.6%7 19 209 0T 31,806
intrgrance services 52 o7 4,152 3364
71,246 1% 165,317 64,313
Expenses:
Network operstons 49,082 13,003 116,295 41554
Facilicies sdmimistration apd matienance 9.98% 2413 21,409 48
Cost of goods sald 503 L 1.5 3174
Sclling, geacral and sdministrative 25,004 10,174 4,941 13,884
Deprecistion and amortirastion 16,100 3285 274 12,069
Churpe for w-process RAD 60,000 - 60,000 .
160,624 43 404 209,498 M T
Loss from operations I (9,454) {134,181) (20,664
Odier wcome (expense)
lnzrreg expense (17.609 (10,774) 09.895) as.1m
Other income 4,736 5T 16 691 9.201
Loss before cxtraordinary itens €100,331) (14,505) (157.345) 05,647,
Extraordusary lots oo carly extinguishment of debx N ) - {9,54) :
Net oy {144,165 (14,305 01219 (15.642)
Preferred sock dividends and accrotions 1), - 21,118 -
Net loas agribusails © comenos sockbaolders ms.og_ sagga M S.647
Loss before extraondioary iem. inchading
peeferred mock dividends and accresions Gs.an (30.90) auay 3269
Extrasordinary boss 22 0.00 eg] 000
Net boss per common share 2“‘ Qﬂ el!ﬂ (3269
Weigtied avernge mumber of chares gursnding ulm"m lilluiﬂl 16,462,731 13.242 546




Currenu Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-lerm investmenls
Restricted investments

INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Unsudited)

{Iln thousands, except share information)

Accounts receivable, kess allowance for
doubtful sccounts of $3,873 in 1997 and $1,346 in 1996
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Telecommunications equiptent
Less sccumulated depreciation
Telecommunications equipment, net

Inangible assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

Liabflities, Preferred Stock and Stockbolders' Equity

Current Liabilities:

Accounts paysble
Other accrued expenses

Current portion of koag term debt and capital lease obligation

Tota! current Liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations

Tota! Liabilis

Serics B redeemable exchangeable preferred stock and accrued dividends, §.10

par value; 600,000 chares suthorized in 1997; 323,499 shares ouestanding o 1997

Series D junior convertible preferred stock and sccruod dividends, §1.00

par value; 69,000 shares suthorized in 1997, 69,000 shares outstanding in 1997

Stackholders” equity (deficit):

Common stock, $.0] par value; 50,000,000 shares ssthorized o
both 1997 and 1996; 17,087,429 and 16,285,340 shares ssued and
outstanding o 1997 and (996, respectivety

Additiona]l paid-tn capital

Accumulated defict

Deferred compensation
Tow! sockholders' equity (deficit)

Tota! lishilities, preferred stock and sockholders’ oquity (defich)

September 30, 1997

December 31, 1996

#7101 $189,546
491 6.041

6.351 26,675
46,855 19,272
4,316 5,230
$29,114 246,764

- 10,48}

453,545 241 481
_— (65,731 (37.574)
e 203,907
162,610 48,397
6,647 3,391
$1,086,185 $517,%40
$47,325 £29,895
28,258 10,307
3,882 532
79,465 40,734
615,380 357,975
694,845 198,709

312,002
170,109

171 163
237,34 212,811
0319,478) @1,141)
(8.798) {7.602)
{90.771) 114,231
$1,086,135 $512.940




INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(1a Thousands)

Nioe month period ended
September 3J, 1997 September 30, 1996

Operating activities
Net loss ($201.219) (535,642)
Adjustipents to reconcile net 1043 to pet cath
{(used in) provided by operating activities:

Exoaordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt, noncash portion 5,869 -
Depreciation and amortization, including loan costs 35,514 12,178
Gaip oa sale of telecommunications equipment (12) -
Amortization of deferred compeasation 1,093 501
Accretion of discount on potes 21,712 8,583
Provisioa for doubtful accounts ’ 3.8 T14
Charge for in-process R&D 60,000 -
Changes in operating asscts and lisbilirles:
Accounts recetvable (25,648) (14,879)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,483) (2,258)
Accounts payable 8,71 11,932
Other accrued cxpenses 3,685 8,523
Net cash used in operating sctivities (81,876) (10,348)
Lovesting activities
Purchase of ghort-term investients - (10,291)
Purchasc of business, net of cash acquired (150.085) -
Maturities of shont-term investments 5,550 -
Maturities of restricted investments 30,805 9.481
Proceeds from sale of telecommunications equipment “ -
Purchase of iclecommunications equipment (178,776) {(80,810)
Net cash used in investing activities (292,462) (81,620)
Financing activities
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock, net of
issuance costy 454,992 -
Proceeds from issuance of senior discount notes 362,993 171,226
Proceeds from sale of common stock - 112,086
Proceeds from exercise of stock warrants and options 2,861 -
Principal payments on long-term debt and capital lease obiigation (164,953) _(980)
Net cash provided by financing activities 655,893 282,332
Increase in cash and cash equivalenrs 281,555 150,364
Cash and cash equivalents ar beginning of period 189,546 50,997
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $471,101 $241,361
Suppiemental dlsclosures of cash Nlow lnformation
loterest paid $11,759 $16,675

See accompanying notes
5



INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC,
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

Note 1

Basis of P .

The accompanying unaudited condensed cousolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with geocrally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to
Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation 5-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of nonmnal recurring sccruals) necestary to present faisly
the information set forth therein have been included. The accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements should be read in copjunction with the consclidated financial statements and footnotes included
the Company's Anmal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996.

Operating results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 1997 are not pecessarily an
indication of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 1997.

Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the oume.s: year presentation.

Recery Pronouncements

Earniogs per Share

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Sutement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share® ("FASB 128"), which cstablishes standards for computing and
presenting earnings per share. FASB 128 replaces the prescotation of primary and fully diluied eamnings
per share with basic and diluted earnings per share, respectively. Basic eamnings per share arc computed by
dividing income available 1© common sockholders by the weighted average pumber of common thares
outstanding for the period. Diluted earpings per share are computed similarly to fully diluted earnings per
share. The standard is effective for financis] statements for periods ending after December 15, 1997, with
earlier application not permitted. For the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 1997 and
Septewber 30, 1996, earnings per share, under FASB 128, would oot have been impacted.

S¢Ements

lo June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprisc and Related Information® (“FASB
1317), which supersodes Financial Acoounting Standards No. 14. FASB 131 uses s management approach
w report financial and descriptive information about & Company's operating segments. Operating segments
arc revenue-producing components of the enterprise for which separate financial information is produced
internally for the Company’s management. FASB 131 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 1997. .

Comprehensive lacome

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board lssued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehenstve Income™ (*FASB 130°). FASB 130 requires that total
comprebensive income and comprehensive income per share be disclosed with equal prominence as net
income and earnings per share. Comprehensive income is defined as all changes in stockbolders’ equity
exclusive of transactions with owners such as capital contributions and dividends. FASB 130 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997.



Note 2 Deby

On July 9, 1997, concwrently with the sale of the §,000,000 Series D Depositary Shares, (as defined in
Note 3), the Company sold $606 million principal amount at maturity of 11 % % Senior Discount Notes dye
2007 (the 11 % % Notes™) in a private placement (ransaction. Subsequent thereio, the over-atlotment
option with respect to the 11 % % Notes was exercised and the Company sold an additional $43 milliop
principal amount af maturity of 11 % % Notes. The issue price of the 11 4 % Notes was $577.48 per
$1,000 principal amount at maturity of the 11 W % Notes. Net proceeds to the Company amounted to
approximately $365 million. Cash interest will pot accrue on the 11 % % Notes prior 1o July 15, 2002
Commencing January 15, 2003, cash interest on the 11 % % Notes will be paysble semi-annually 1o arrears
on July 15 and Jaouary 15 at s rate of 11 W% per annum. The 11 % % Notes will be redeemable, at the
Company’s option at any time on or after July 15, 2002, and are pari passu with all other senior
indebtedness.

The Company used a portios of the proceeds of the 11 % % Notes 1o retire or defeasg (the*Retiremen: *)
Iniermedia’s outstanding 13 2% Senior Notes due 2005 (the “13 ¥ % Notes®). The Retirement resuited in
an extraordinary loss, as shown in the accompanying coasolidated statement of operations, of approximately
$44 million in the third quarter of 1997.

Also see note 5, Subsequent Events, for information regarding an additional issuance of dett securities
subsequent to September 30, 1997.

Note 3 Preferyed Stock

Oun March 7, 1997, the Company sold 30,000 shares (aggregate liquidation preference $300 million) of its
Serics A Redecmable Exchangeable Preferred Stock, due 2009, (the "Series A Preferred Stock”™) in a
private placement transaction. Net proceeds to the Company amounted to approximately $288 million. On
June 6, 1997, the Company issued 300,000 shares (aggrepate liquidation prefereace 3300 miltion) of its 13
¥4 % Series B Redeemable Exchangeable Preferred Stock due 2009 (the “Series B Preferred Stock ™), which
were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in exchange for all outstanding ghares of the
Serics A Preferred Stock pursusnt 1o a regisiered exchange offer. Dividends on the Series B Preferred
Stock accumulate at a rate of 13 1 % of the aggregate liquidation prefercace thereof and are payable
quarterly, ic arrears. Dividends are payable in cash or, at the Company's option, by the issuance of
additional shares of Series B Preferred Stock baving an aggregate liquidation preference equal 10 the
amount of yuch dividends. The Series B Preferred Stock is subject to mandatory redemption at its
liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends oa March 31, 2009.
The Series B Preferred Stock will be redeemabie at the optio of the Company st any time after March 11,
2002 at rates commencing with 106.75%, declining 1o 100% oo March 31, 2007.

The Company may, al its, option, exchange some or all shares of the Series B Preferred Stock for the
Company's 13 1% Senior Subordinsted Debentures, due 2009 (the “Exchange Debentures®). The
Exchange Debentyres mature oo March 31, 2009, loterest on the Exchange Debentures is pryable semi-
snoually, and may be paid in the form of additions] Exchange Debentures at the Company's option.
Exchange Debentures will be redeemable by the Company a agy time after March 31, 2002 at rates
commencing with 106.75%, declining t0 100% oo March 31, 2007.

The Company is accreting the Series B Preferred Stock to s liquidation preference through the duc date of
the Serics B Preferted Stock. The accretion for the three and nine month periods ended September 30,
1997 was $226 thousand and $512 thousand, respectively.

The Company elected to lsrue approximately 13,000 additional abares of Scries B Preferred Stock, in hieu
of cash, with an aggregaie liquidation preference of $12.9 million in June 1997, in payment of the first
quarterly dividend (accumiated from March 7, 1997 through Junae 30, 1997). Io September 1997, the
Company clected to issue approximazely 11,000 additional shares of Series B Preferred Stock, in licu of
cash, with an aggregate Liquidation preference of $10.6 milllon, in payment of the second quarterly
divideod (accumulated from July 1, 1997 through Sepiember 30, 1997).



Ouo July 9, 1997, the Company sald 6,000,000 Depositary Shares (the “Series D Depositary Shares”)
(aggregate liquidation preference $150,000,000) each representing a one-huadredih interest in & share of the
Company's 7% Series D Junior Convertible Preferred Stock, (the “Series D Preferred Stock ™), n a private
placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allounent opiion with respect 1o the Senes D
Depositary Shares was exercised and the Compaay sold an additiooal 900,000 Series D Depositary Shares
(aggregate liquidation preference of $22,500,000). Net proceeds to the Company amounted 1o
approximately $167 million. Dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock will accumulate at & rate of 7% of
the aggregate liquidation preference thereof and are payable quartecly, In arvears. Dividends are payable in
cash or, at the Company’s option, by the issuance of shares of Common Stock of the Company. The
Series D Preferred Stock will be redeemable at the option of the Company a1 any time on or after July 19,
2000 at rates commencing with 104 %, declining to 100% on July 19, 2004,

The Series D Preferred Stock is convertible, st the option of the holder, into Common Siock of the
Company a1 a conversion price of $38.90 per share of Common Stock, subject 1o certain adjustments

The Company is accreting the Series D Depositary Shares to its liquidation preference through the due date
of the Series D Preferred Stock. The accretion for the three and nine month periods eaded September 30,
1997 was $357 thousand.

Also see pote 3, Subsequent Events, for information regarding an additional issuance of preferred stock
subsequent to September 30, 1997.

Note 4 Acquisitions

During June 1996, the Company acquired the Telecommunications Division of EMI Communications
Corporation ("EMI ") in exchange for 937,500 shares of the Company's common stock, valued at
approximately $16.9 million. The scquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting,
with the purchate price allocated to the fair values of assets acquired, principally telecommunications
equipment. EMI’s telecommunications division, headquartered in Syracuse, New York, is a provider of
frame relay based network services and interexchange private line services primarily in the portheastemn
United States. EMI operates owned and leased microwave and fiber optic digital network capaciry in New
York, Massachusetts, Vermont, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New Jersey, Peonsylvania, Maryland and the
District of Columbia and maintains POPs in maost major cities in these states.

Puring December 1996, the Company acquired, in two scparate transactions, certain assets and the related
businesses of Universal Teleom, Inc. (*UTT ") and NetSolve, Incorporated {(“NetSolve®). The purchase
price for UTT inchuded 31,380 shares of the Company's common stock, valued st spproximately $.9
million, and the ssrumption of spproximately $2 million of UTT's labilities. NetSolve was purchased for
cash of $12.8 millica. The acquisitions are accounted for by the purchase method of accounting, with the
purchase price allocated o the falr value of assets acquired, principally. goodwill.. The goodwill, including
an additonal §.2 million for legal expenses, for these acquisitions has been adjusted during the first quarter
of 1997 due to the finalization of the purchase price allocation.

On June 24, 1997, the Companry purchased from Telco Communications Group, Inc. {*Telco ™) five long
distance voice switches and ancillary petwork equipment locaizd in Atlanta, Chicago, Dallas, Loz Angeles
and New York (the “Telco Acquisition”). Three of these switches will be upgraded W local/long distance
voice switches, consistent with the Coopany’s planned deployment of at beast fifisen local/long distance

voice switches by the end of 1997. As pant of the Teko Acquisition, the Company also soquired ceruaio

nctwork transport services for a thiree year period. The aggregate purchase price of the Telco Acquisition
was approximately $3§ million. The company belicves that the Telco Acquisition will allow the Company
to more rapidly deploy local/long distance voice switches in these markets and 1o do 50 at a lower ovenall
cost. In addition, the transport services acquired as part of the Telco Acquisition will permit the Company
to accelerate its deployment of ATM in its intercity and intractty networks. Lmplementation of ATM will
facilitate additional enbanced dats and voice services and nerwork efficiencies.

During July 1997, Inermedia acquired DIGEX, Incorporated (*DIGEX "),  lead ing oationwide business
Internet services provider. Aggregate cash consideration for the acquisition was approximately $155




million and was funded with the Company's existing cash reserves. The acquisition was accounted for by
the purchase method of accounting, with the purchase price allocated to the fair value of asseus acquured and
liabuities assumed. For purpose of the financial statements as of September 30, 1997 and for the penods
then ended, cerwin aspects of the purchase price allocation, related to duplicate network facihities and
differing lcase market rates, were sccounted for on a preliminary basis pending the receipt by the Company
of additional information and the performance of certain evaluations. Such information and evaluations are
anticipated to be completed in the fourth quarter. In addition, the Company obtained an independent
valuation related to fixed assets, developed and in-process technology, and other identifiable intangible
assets. Based upon this valuation, the amount allocated to purchased research and development (360
million) is recorded as a one-time charge to earnings in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

The following unaudited pro forma results of operations presents the consolidated results of operations as if
the acquisition of UTT, NetSotve und EMI had occurred on Japuary 1, 1996, and DIGEX on January 1.
1997. These proforma results do oot purport to be indicative .of the results that sctuafly would have
occurred if the companies had been acquired as of that date or of results which may occur in the furure.

Nine Months Ended September 30,

(In thousands) 1997 1996

Revenuc $184,963 $90,215

Net loss (123.355) {36,873)

Net loss atributable 1o common stockholders (250,473) (36,873)

Net loss per common share (15.21) (2.78)
Note 5 Subsequept Events

On Ocober 30, 1957, the Company sold 7,000,000 Depositary Shares (the *Series E Depositary Shares )
(aggregate liquidation preference $175,000,000) each representing a one-hundredth: interest in 8 share of the
Company's 7% Setics E Iunjor Coavertible Preferred Stock, (the "Seties E Preferred Stock ®). in a pnvate
placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allottoent option with respect to the Series E
Depositary Shares was exercised and the Company sold an additional 1,000,000 Series E Depositary Shares
(aggregate liquidaton preference of $25,000,0000). Net proceeds to the Company amounted to
approximately $193.8 million. Dividends on the Series E Preferred Stock will accumulate at 4 rate of 7%
of the aggregate liquidation preference thereof and are payable quarterly, in arrears. Dividends are payable
in cash or, at the Company's option, by the issuance of shares of Commoo Stock of the Company. The
Series E Preferred Stock will be redecmable st the option of the Compary at agy time oo or afier October
18, 2000 at rates commencing with 104 %, declining to 100% on October 18, 2004.

The Serics E Depositary Shares will be convertible a1 any time afier December 29, 1997, at the optioo of
the holder into Common Stock of the Company at & conversion price of $60.47 per thare of Common
Stock, subject to certain adjustments.

Concurrently with the sale of the Series E Depogitary Shares, the Company sold $250 millios principal
amount of 8 7/8% Senior Notes due 2007 (the “8 7/8% Noiss ™) in & peivate placement transaction. Net
proceeds to the Company amounsed & approximately $243 million. Cash inserest oo the 8 7/8% Notes will
be payable semi-annually in arrears oo Msy | and November | a1 a rate of 8 7/8% per aonum. The B
7/8% Notes will be redoemabie, s the Company’s option at any time oa or afier November 1, 2002, and
arc pari passu with all other senlor tndebtedness.

The proceeds of the Series E Deposttary Shares will be used to finance the continned expantion of the
Company’s tclecommunications networks, including but oot limited w0, network electronics, such as
local/long distance voice and dats switches, and for general corporate purposes, including workiog capital
The net proceads from the offering of the 8 7/8% Notes will be used to fund up to 80% of the cost of
acquisition or construction by the Company of t2lecommunications-related assets




The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto included herewith, and with the Company's Managemest's Discussico and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and sudited consolidated financial statements and potes thereto included o the
Company's anoual report oo Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Overview

Intermedia Communications loc. (*Intermedia” or the “Compagy "), formerly Intermedia Communications
of Florida, lnc. through May 29, 1996, Is a rapldly growing provider of integrated telecommunications solutions for
business, government, and the ielecommunications industry. Headquartered in Tampa, Florida, Intermedia is the
thud largest (based on annualized telecommunications revenues) among providers referred 0 as Competitive Local
Exchange Carriers (*CLECs™). Intermedia offers a full suite of local, long-distance and enhanced data
telecommunications services 1o business and government end user customers, long disiance carriens, Internet service
providers, rescliers, and wireless communications companies serving customers from 43 sales offices located
throughout the easterh United States. Intermedia also provides cobanced data/ATM and Luerner services in
approximaitely 3,787 citics natioawide, offering customers seamless end-to-end connectivity virtually anywhere 1o
the world.

Since its inception ln 1997, the Company has experieaced substantial growth. Building from its original
base in Florida, Intermedia is now & provider of integrated welecommunications services W cusiomers that have a
presence in the eastern United States. The Company currently has ten digital fiber optic networks and provides end-
to-end connectivity throughout the United States and many international markets. As its networks and service
offerings have expanded, the Company has experienced significant year 10 year growth in revenues and customers

Intermedia competes with the Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers ("ILECs ") and [ntercxchange Camners
("IXCs™) in i's service werritory and offers a full range of voice and dats telecommunications services. lotermedia’s
customers include a broad range of business and government end users and IXC's. The Compagy delivers local
network services, including local exchange service, primarily over digital fiber optic telscommunications networks
that it either owns or leases. [n some circumstances, leasing facilities enables the Company 10 more rap:dly initiate
service W customers, reduces the risk of network construction or acquisition and potentially improves cash flow due
to the reduction or deferment of capita) expenditures. The Company also offers enhanced data services 1o its
customers on an extensive intercity network that connects its customen, elther through lts own network or trough
other carriers, to locations throughout the country and internatiopally. This intercity oetwork combined with the
Company's local/long distance voice switches allows the Company W provide interexchange long distance scrvice
domestically and internationally,

Al its inception, Intermedia provided special access and private Line services to [XC's. In 1988, Intermedia
was the first telecommunications provider in Flarids o begin providing special acocss and private line scrvices 1o
business customers. In 1991, Intermedia began offering integration scrvices in response to customer's noeds and in
1992, Intermedia introduced i3 first enhanced data services to provide flexible capacity and highly reliabie end-to-
end data service for its business and government customers. The Company began offering interexchange long
distsnce service io December 1994, Internet services i 1995 and local exchapge services in 1996. The pace with
which the Company has introduced new service offerings bas-enablad it to achieve substantial growth, improve ius
mix of cusiomers and diversify its sources of revenus. The Compamy belicves that business and government
customers will contimae to sccount for a sabetantial share of its revenue over the next several years, because of
lotermedia‘s ability w offer such customers integrated, cost-<ffective telocommunications solutions. Tbe Company
belicves that during the first few years of local exchange competition, the [XC's may enter the markrt by becoming
reszliers of the Company's local services. If the [XC's pursne a reseller srategy, the amownt of revenmue the
Company realizes from carriers mey increase during this period.

From 1992 through 1995, the Company had achieved positive EBITDA and locreased its revenus base
substantially However, as a result of significant investments In resources necessary W launch local exchange
scrvices and expand eohanced data services, EBITDA decreased as a percentage of revenue and the Company's
EBITDA was pegative for 1996 and the first three quarters of 1997, This was due to the significant up front
expenses related 1o the development of hs networks and leased facilities. the revenue from which is expecied to be
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reahized ip later periods. The deveiopment of the Company's business and the instalistion and expansion of 18
petworks have resulted in substantial capital expenditures and net losses during this period of i operations.
Procurernent of rights-of-way, administration and maintenance of facilities, depreciation of network capilal
expenditures and sales, general and administrative costs will coalioue to represent a large portion of the Company's
expenses during its rapid expansion. [n addition, the Company is experiencing rapid growth in marketing and
selling expenses consistent with the addition of new customers and an increased level of selling and marketing
activity. All of the marketing and selling expenses associated with the acquisition of new customers are expensed as
they are incurred even though these customers are expecied to genetate recurring revesue {or the Company for
several years. The coantinued cxpansion of the Company's networks in anticipation of new customers and the
markeung of services to new and existing customers is therefore adversely impacting EBITDA of the Compaay in
the oear term. The Company anticipates, but there can be oo assurance, that as its customer base grows,
incremental revenues will be greater than incremental operating expenses.

On June 24, 1997, the Company purchased from Telco Communications Group, inc. (*Telco™) five long
distance voice switches and ancillary network equipment located in Atlanta, Chicago, Dallas, Los Angeles and New
York (the “Telco Acquisition”). Three of these switches will be upgraded 1o local/long distance voice switches,
consisient with the Compary's planned deployment of at least fifteen local/long distance voice switches by the end
of 1997. As pant of the Telco Acquisition, the Company also acquired certain network ansport services for a three
year period. The aggregate purchase price of the Telco Aoquisition was approximutely $38 million, which was
substantially included in the Company’s planned expenditures for 1997. The company helieves that the Telco
Acquisition will aliow the Company to more rapidly deploy local/long distance voice mwiiches In these paarkets and
to do £0 a1 a lower overall cost. In sddition, the transport services acquired as part of the Telco Acquisition will
permit the Company to acceierate its deployment of ATM in its intercity and intracity networks. Emplementation of
ATM will facilitate additional enhanced data and voice services and network efficiencies.

On July 11, 1997, Intermedia’s wholly owned subsidiary, Daylight Acquisition Corp., completed a merger
(the “Merger”) with DIGEX, Incorporated (“DIGEX "), a leading natioowide business Internet services provider.
The aggregate cash consideration for the acquisition was spproximately $155 million and was funded with the
Company’s existing cash reserves in July 1997,

During the remainder of 1997 and beyond, the Company believes that is growth will be balanced among its
local exchange, long distance and enhanced data services. Based on the Company's anslysis of FCC data and its
knowledge of the industry, the Company estimates that the market for local exchange, long distance and data
services was approximately $25 billion in 1996 in the Company’s service territory. As a result of the Company's
planned expansion in 1997, the Company expects to be positioned 10 provide these services in markets with a total
opportunity of approximately $34 billion by the end of 1997, exclusive of the opportunities provided by the DIGEX
acquisition.

In order to develop its business more rapidly and efficienily utilize its capital resources, lotermedia plans to
use the cxisting fiber optic infrastructure of other providens In addition 1o using Its existing networks. While the
Company will use significant amounts of capital w deploy enhanced data and voice switches on & dernand driven
basis in selected markets, Intermedia believes that its substantial existing network capacity should enable it to add
new customens and provide additional services that will result in increased revenucs with lower incremental costs
and, correspondingly, over time improve its EBITDA. Por example, sclling additdonal services, such as local
exchange services, 10 cxisting or new customers allows the Company to utilize unused portions of the capacity
inherent in its existing fiber optic networks. This operatng leverage increases the wtilization of the network with
Limited additional capital expenditures. The Company's srategy to offer a full complement of telecommunications
services is designed (o enable the Company to take advantage of the operating leverage of its nerworks.




Results of Operations

The following table presents, for the periods indicated, certain information derived from the Company's
Coondensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, expressed in percentages of reveoue:

Three Months Ended Sept. 30, Nine Months Ended Sept. 390,

vy 1296 1997 1996
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
Revenues:
Local metwork services 166 % 9.7 % 154 % 150 %
Enhanced data services 43.3 3.6 3312 30.3
Interexchange services 8.8 56.6 43.9 49.5
Integration services 1.3 2.1 2.5 5.2
100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Expenses:
Network operations 68.8 73.6 7.3 64.6
Facilities administration and mainienance 14.0 7.1 13.0 6.7
Cost of goods sold 7 1.7 1.5 4.9
Selling, general and administrative k L 7% BN 29.9 »3 ni
Depreciation and amortization .6 15.5 20.7 18.8
Charge for in-process R&D 84.2 . 36.3 -
Loss from operations (125.4) 27.8) (81.2) a.n
Other income (expense):
Interest expense 24.8) 3aLmn (24.1) (31.6)
Other income 9.5 16.8 10.1 14.3
Loss before extraordinary items (140.7) 2.7 (95.2) (55.4)
Extraordinary item {61.5) - {26.5) -
Net Loss (202.2) 42.7) (121.7) (55.4)
Preferred stock dividends and accretions (19.5) - {16.4) -
Ner loss atributable to common stockbolders  (21.7% 42.% (138.1)% (55.4)%

The following table sets forth other statistical data derived from the Company's operating records:

Sept, 30,1997  Sept, 30, 1996

Transpart services:
Buildings connected 2,703 429
Route miles 162 647
Fiber optic miles 33,801 23,763
Network cities
in operation 10 9
Enhanced data services:
Data switches installed 130 76
Frame rclay clites 3,187 1,134
Nodes in service 17,286 8,462
NNI connections 356 219
Local xnd Long Disuance Services:
Voice switches in operation 13 4
Long distance billable minutes 111,049,341 61,549,894
Access lioe equivalents 50,740 .
Employees 1,820 724




Quarter Ended September 30, 1997 Compared to Quarter Ended September 30, 1996
Revenue

Total revenue increased 109.7% to $71.3 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared {0 $34.0 mulliog
for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the acquisition of DIGEX, the introducton of
new services and the increased focus of the Company's sales force on offering a full suite of welecommunications
services to an expanding market. A portion of the increase, was attributable 1o the inclusion of DIGEX's operating
results for the third quarter of 1997.

Local nerwork services revenus increased 259.3% (o $11.8 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared
10 $3.2 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the continued rollout of local
cxchange services into additional markets. The Company has recelved CLEC certification in 28 states plus the
District of Columbia as of the end of the third quarter of 1997.

Enhanced data services revenue Increased 187.0% to $30.8 miliion for the third quarter of 1997 compared
to $10.7 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the-expansion of the Company's
cohanced data network by 54 switches and 8,824 pew frame relsy nodes since July 1, 1996. In addition, the pumber
of frame relay cities has increased by 2,653 during the same time period. Of the revenue increase, & significant
portion was atoibutable to the inclusion of DIGEX's operating resulta for the third quarter of 1997.

Inserexchange services revenue increased 43.6% tw $27.6 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to
$19.2 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulied from strong growth in long distance
switched revenue and steady growth in interLATA transport.

Iruegration services revenue increased 36.6% tw $1.0 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared w0 §.7
million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulied from the Company's increased focus on
providing a otal service package for the customer.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 269.8% to $160.6 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to
$43.4 million for the same period in 1996. The increase primarily resulted from the costs associated with the
significant cxpansion of the Company's owned and leased networlas and the continved expansion in personnel (o
sustain and support the Company’s growth. Of the increase, $60 million resulted from the charge for in-process
research and development and the inclusion of DIGEX's operating results for the third quarter of 1997.

Network operations expenses increased 96.1% to $49.0 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared W
$25.0 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulied from the increases in leased perwork
capacity that is associated with the growth of local network service, enhanced data service and interexchange service
revenues. A portion of the increase, was atributable to the inchusion of DIGEX's operating results for the third
quarter of 1997

Facilities adminisrration and maintenance expenses increased 313.8% 1o $10.0 million for the third quarter
of 1997 compared 10 $2.4 million for the same period tn 1996. A portion of the increase, was attributable 1o the
inclusion of DIGEX's operating results for the third quarter of 1997. In addition, the increase resulied from the
expansion of the Company's owned and leased network capacity, increases in maintenance ¢xpense due w0 the
network expansion and increased payrotl expenses related w0 hiring additional engincering and operations staff 10
support and service the expanding petwork.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 145.8% 1o $25.0 million for the third quarter of
1997 compared to $10.2 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the Company's
continucd growth and represented a major increase o the sales, marketing, management information services and
customer service personnel, one time expenditures for employee recruitment, relocation, training and increased
commissions relating 1o the rse in revenues for these periods. A porton of the increase, was atributable Lo the
toclusion of DIGEX ‘s operating results for the third quarter of 1997.



Depreciation and amortizarion expenses increased 206.4% to $16. | million for the third quarter of 1997
compared 1o $5.3 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from additions to
telecommumcations equipment placed in service during 1996 and the first nine moaths of 1997, relaung to ongowg
nerwork expansion. A portion of the increase, was atributsble to the inclusion of DIGEX's operasting results for the
turd quarter of 1997.

Charge for in-process Research & Development of 360 million represents the amount of the purchased w-
process research and development associated with the purchase of DIGEX. This cost is recorded as a ope-time
charge to earnings in the third quarter of 1997.

Interest Expenge

Interest expense increased 64.2% w $17.7 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to $10.8 million
for (he same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from interest expense oo the My 1996 issuance of
$330 million pripcipal amount at maturity of the Company’s 12 Vi % Senlor Discount Notea due 2006 (the “12 % %
Notes™) and the July 1997 issuance of $649 million, including the over-allotment option, principal amount at
maturity of the Company's 11 % % Notes.

Other Income

Onber income increased 17.7% (o $6.7 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to $5.7 million for
the same period in 1996. This increase ways primarily the result of interest earned oo e cash availabie from the
excess proceeds relating to the May 1996 issuance of the 12 ¥4 % Notes, the May 1996 issuance of 4,674,503
common shares, par value $.01 per share, a2 $26.00 per share, the March 1997 issuance of 30,000 shares of the
Company's Series A Preferred Stock, which was subsequestly exchanged for the Series B Preferred Stock, the July
1997 issuance of the 11 % % Notes and the July 1997 issuance of 6,900,000 Series D Depositary Shares.

Extraordinary Loss of $43.8 million for the third quarer of 1997 consisied of pre-payment penaltics
relating to certain indebtedaess which was repaid from the proceeds of the offering of the 11 % % Notes and the
write-off of the unamortized deferred financing costs associated with the indebtedness repaid.

Net Loss

Net joss increased 893.8% w0 $144.2 million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to $14.5 million for
the same period in 1996. This increase was due primarily to the increased operating expenses resulting from the
expansion of the petwork, increased selling geoeral and administrative costs, the charge for in-process rescarch &
development, increased interest costs and the extraordinary tems.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Accretions

Preferred stock dividends and accretions of $13.9 million resulied from the March 1997 issuance of 30,000
shares of the Company's Series A Preferrod Stock, which was subsequently exchanged for the Series B Preferred
Stock, and the July 1997 issuance of 6,900,000 Series D Depositary Shares.

EBITDA

EBITDA decreased 216.2% to $(13.3) million for the third quarter of 1997 compared to ${4.2) million for
the same period in 1996. This declioe was the result of the acceleration in the deployment of latermedia’s capital

expansion plap which significantly increased growth oriented expenses, such as network expenses, increases in sales,
customer service and marke! development costs, prior to realizing revemes associsted with these expenditures
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 1997 Compared to Nine Moaths Ended September 30, 1996
Revenue

Toral revenue increased 156.9% to $165.3 million for the pine months ended September 30, 1997 compared
to $64 3 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the acquisitions of EM! and
DIGEX, the introduction of new services and the increased focus of the Company's sales force on offering a full
suite of telecommunications services to an expanding market. A pottion of the increase, was atributable to the
inclusion of EMI and DIGEX's operating results for the nine mooths ended Septezber 30, 1997.

Local network services revenue increased 163.3% 1o $25.5 million for the nine months epded September
30, 1997 compared to 59.7 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the continued
roliout of Jocal exchange services into additional markets. The Company has received CLEC certification in 28
states plus the District of Columbis as of the end of the third quarter of 1997.

Erhanced data services revenue increased 181.3% to $54.8 millioo for the nine moaths ended Sepiember
31, 1997 compared 10 $19.5 million for the same period in 1996, This increase primarily resulted from the
expansion of the Company's enhanced data network by 54 switches and 8,824 pew frame relay nodes since July |,
1996. 1o sddidon, the oumber of frame relay cities has increased by 2,653 during the same tim* period. A porton
of the revenue increase, was anributable 1o the inclusion of EMI and DIGEX's operating results for the nine months
ended September 30, 1997.

Iruerexchange services revenue increased 154 3% to $80.9 million for the nine moaths ended September
30, 1997 compared o $31.8 million for the same period in 1996, This increase primarily resulted from strong
growth in long distance switched revenue and steady growth in interLATA transport. A portion of the increase, was
attributable to the inclusion of EMI's operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 1997.

fruegration services revenie increased 23 4% o $4.2 millioa for the nine moaths ended September 30,
1997 compared to $3.4 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulted from the Company's
increased focus on providing a total tervice package for the customer.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses locreased 252.4% 10 $299.5 milllon for the nine months ended September 30,
1997 compared to $85 millioa for the same period in 1996. The increase primarily resulied from the costs
associated with the significant expansion of the Company's owned and lessed petworks and the continued expansion
in personnel to sustain and support the Compeny's growth. Of the increase, $60 million resulted from the charge for
in-process research and development and the Inclusion of EMI and DIGEX's operating results for the nine months
ended September 30, 1997. .

Nerwork operarions expenses increased 179.9% o $116.3 million for the nine months ended September 30,
1997 compared 10 $41.6 million for the same period in 1996. This increase primarlly resulted from the increases in
leased network capacity that is associated with the growth of local network service, enhanced data service and
interexchange service revenues. A portion of the increase, was attributable 1o the inclusion of EMI and DIGEX s
operating results for the nine mouths eaded September 30, 1997.

Facilifies administration and maintenance expenses increased 396.0% to $21.4 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 1997 compared to $4.3 millioa for the same period in 1996. A portion of the Increase, was
atributable o the inclusion of EMI and DIGEX's operating results for the nine mooths ended September 30, 1997
1o sddition, the incresse resulted from the expansion of the Company's owned and Jeased network capacity,
inCTeases in mainiepance expense due 1o the network expansion and increased payroll expenses related 1o hiring
additional engineering and operations staff to suppon and service the expanding network.

Selling. general and administranive expenses increased 172.1% 1o $63 million for the nine moaths cnded
September 30, 1997 compared 1o $23.9 million for e same period in 1996. This increase primarily resulied (rom
the Company's continued growth and represented a major ihcrease in the sales, marketing, management information
scrvices and customer service personnel, one time expenditures for employee recruitment, relocation, trainiog and
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wncreased commissions relating to the rise in revenues for these periods. A poruon of the increase, was annbutable
1o the wnclusion of EMI and DIGEX's operating resulu for the nine months ended September 30, 1997

Deprecianon and amortizanon expendes increased 184.0% to $34.3 million for the wne months eoded
Sepiermber 30, 1997 compared to $12. 1 million for the same period io 1996. This increase primarily resulted from
addinons 1o 1elecommunjeations equipment placed in service during 1996 and the first nine months of 1997, relaung
to ongoung aetwork expansion. A portion of the increase, was antributable to the inclusion of DIGEX 's operating
results for the third quarter of 1997.

Charge for in-process Research & Development of $60 million represents the amount of the purchased 1n-
process research and development associated with the purchase of DIGEX. This cos! is recorded as & obe-ume
charge to earnings in the third quaner of 1997.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased 65.0% to $39.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1997 comparcd
to $24.2 millioa for the same period io 1996. This increase primarily resulied from interest expense on the May
1996 issuance of $330 millioa principal amount at maturity of the Company's 12 ¥2% Notes and the July 1997
issuance of $549 million, including the over-allotment option, principal amount at maturity of the Company's 11
%% Notes.

Other Income

Other income increased §1.4% w $16.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1997 compared
to $%.2 million for the same period in 1996. This increase was primarily the result of interest carned on the cash
available from the excess proceeds relating lo the May 1996 issuance of the 12 s % Nctrs, the May 1996 issuance
of 4,674,503 comumon shares, par value $.0] per share, at $26.00 per share, the March 1997 issuance of 30,000
shares of the Company's Series A Preferred Stock, which was subsequently exchanged for the Series B Preferred
Stock, the July 1997 issuance of the 11 % % Notes and the July 1997 issuance of 6,900,000 Series D Depositary
Shares.

Exraordinary Loss of $43.8 million for the third quarter of 1997 consisied of pre-payment penaltics
relating to certain icdebiedness which was repaid from the proceeds of the offering of the 11 % % Notes and the
wrile-off of the unamortized deferred financing costs assoclated with the indebtedness repaid.

Net Losy

Net loss increased 464.6% (o $201.2 million for the nine months ended Septezuber 30, 1997 compared o
$35.6 million for the same period in 1996. This increase was due primarily 1o the increased operating expenses
resulting from the expansion of the nerwork, increased selling general and administrative costs, the charge for in-
process rescarch & development, increased interest costs and the extraordinary iiems.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Accretions

Preferred stock dividends and accretions of $27.1 millioo resulted from the March 1997 issusnce of 30,000
shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which was subsequently exchanged for the Series B Preferted Siock, and the
July 1997 issuance of 6,900,000 Series D Depositary Shares.

EBITDA

EBITDA decreased 364.3% 10 $(39.9) millioa for the nine months ended September 30, 1997 compared to
$(8.6) million for the same period in 1996. This docline was the result of the acceleration in the deployment of
Intermedia’s capital expansion plan which significantly increased growth oriented expenses, such as perwork
cxpenses, increases in sales, customer service and market development coss, prior 1o realizing reveaues associated
with these expenditures.
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Liquid o

The Company's operations have required substantial capital investment for the purchase of
lejecommunications equipment and the design, construction and developmen: of the Company 's petworks  Capital
expendirures for the Company were $179 million and $81 million for the nine months ended Sepiember 30, 1997
and 1996, respectively. The Company expects that it will continue to have substantial capital requirements i1n
connection with the (i} expansion and improvemeat of the Company's existing networks, (i1) desian, constry 1o,
and development of new networks, (iii) connection of additional buildings and customers to the Company ‘s
nerworks, (iv) purchase of switches necessary for local exchange services and expansion of interexchange services
and (v) development of the Company's enhanced data services. In addition, the Company utilized approximately
$155 million of its available cash to complete the acquisition of DIGEX in July 1997

The Company has funded a substantial portion of thess expenditures through the public eale of debt ar i
equity securities and 10 & lesser extent, privately placed debt. From incepton through December 31, 1996, the
Company raised approximately $212.6 millico from the sale of Common Stock, including Common Stock issued 1n
connection with the acquisitions of FiberNet, Phooe One, EMI and UTT, and $324.6 million from he sale of senior
debt.

The substantial capital investment required to bulld the Company's network has resulted in negative cash
flow from operations after consideration of investing activities over the last five year period. This negative cash
flow after investing activities was a result of the requirement to build a substantial jortion of the Company’s
nctwork in anticipation of connecling revenue generating customers. The Company expects Lo continue to produce
negative cash flow after investing activities for the next several years due to the expansion activitics associated with
the development of the Company's nerworks. Until sufficient cath flow afier investing activities is generated from
operalions, the Company will be required to utilize its current and future capital resources 1o meet ju cash flow
requirements, including the issuance of additional debt and/or equity securites.

Io response 1o the pew pro-competitive telecommunications environment, the Company bas acceierated and
expanded iis capital deployment plan o allow for an increased level of demand-driven spending necessary to more
rapidly exploit the market opportunity in the local exchange market. The Company expects o expend substantial
amounts to upgrade its existing aetworla in order to swich traffic within the local service area in those states where
it is currently permitied to provide such services. The Company is certified as 8 CLEC in 28 states and the District
of Columbia, allowing the Compamy 10 provide local exchange services in those markets. In additon, the Company
cxpects 10 expend capital toward the further development of the Company's enbanced data service and interchange
service offerings.

The Company curreauly estimates that it will require approximately $45 millico to fund anticipated capital
requirements during the remainder of 1997, which it expects to fund from its available cash. The Company does not
believe tbat the acquisition of DIGEX will have a material impact on its capital expenditure requirements.

On March 7, 1997, the Company sold 30,000 shares (aggregate liquidation preference $300,000,000) of
Series A Preferred Stock in s private placement transaction. Net proceeds to the Company amounied to
approximately $288 million. On June 6, 1997, the company tssued 300,000 shares (aggregatc liquidation preference
$300 million) of its Series B Preferred Stock, which were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
in exchange for all outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to a registered exchange offer.
Dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock accumulate at a rate of 13 %% of the aggregaie liquidation preference
thereof and are payable quarterly, in arrears. Dividends are payable in cazh or, at the Company's option, by the
issuance of additional shares of Series B Preferred Stock having an aggregate Liquidation preference equal to the
amount of such divideads. The Series B Preferred Stock is subject to mandatory redemption af its liquidation
preference of $1,000 per thare, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends on March 31, 2009. The Series B Preferred
Stock will be redecmable at the option of the Company al any time after March 31, 2002 at rates commencing with
106.75%, declining 1o 100% oo March 31, 2007.

The Company may, at ils, option, exchange some or all shares of the Series B Preferred Stock for the

Company's Exchange Debentures. The Exchange Debentures mature on March 31, 2009. Interest on the Exchange
Debentures is payable semi-annually, and oy be paid in the form of additonal Exchange Debentures at the
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Company's option. Exchange Debentures will be redeemahble by the Company at any lifme after March 31, 2002 a
rates commencing with 106.75%, declining to 100% on March 31, 2007,

On July 11, 1997, Intermedia's wholly owned subsidiary, Daylight Acquisitioo Corp., completed a merger
with DIGEX, a leading nationwide business Internet services provider. The aggregate cash consideration for the
acquisition was approximately $155 million and was funded with the Company's existing cash reserves in July 1997

On July 9, 1997, the Company sold 6,000,000 Series D Depositary Shares (aggregate liquidation
preference $150,000,000) each representing a one-hundredih interest in a share of the Company's Series D
Preferred Stock, wn a private placement transaction. Subsequeat thereto, the over-allotment option with respect to
the Series D Depositary Shares was exercised and the Company sold an additional 900,000 Series D Depositary
Shares {aggregate liquidation prefereace of $22,500,000). Net proceeds 1o the Company amounted 1o approximately
$167 million. Dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock will accumulate af a rate of 7% of the aggregate
liquidation preference thereof and are payable quanerly, in arrears. Dividends are payabie in cash or, af the
Company's option, by the issuance of shares of Common Stock of the Companry. The Series D Preferred Stock will
be redecmable at the option of the Company at any time on or after July 19, 2000 at rates commencing with 104 %,
declining o 100% od July 19, 2004.

The Series D Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the bolder, into Commaon Stock of the
Company at a conversion price of $38.90 per share of Common Stock, subject to certain adfustmens,

Concurrently with the sale of the Series D Depositary Shares, the Company sold $600 million principal
amoun! at maturity of 11 % % Notes in a private placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allotment
option with respect to e 11 % % Notes was exercised and the Company sold an addirional $43 million principal
amount st maturity of 11 % % Noies. The issue price of the 11 % % Nows was $577.48 per $1,000 principal
amount a! maturity of the 11 % % Notes. Net proceeds o the Company amounted to spproximately $365 million.
Cash interest will not accruc on the 11 ¥ % Notes prior 10 July 15, 2002. Commencing January 15, 2003, cash
interest on the 11 ¥ % Notes will be payable seml-annually in arrears oo July 15 and January 15 atarate of 11 ¥ %
per anoum. The 11 % % Notes will be redeemable, at the Company's option at any time on or after July 15, 2002,
and are pari passu with all other senior indebtedness.

The Company used & portiou of the proceeds of the private offering of the 11 % % Notes to retire or
defease Intermedia’s ouwstanding 13 4% Notes. The Retirement resulied in an extraordinary loss, as shown in we
accompanying consolidated stateroent of operations, of epproximately $44 million in the third quarter of 1997.

On October 30, 1997, the Company sold 7,000,000 Series E Depositary Shares (aggregate liquidation
preference $175,000,000) each representing a one-hundredth interest in a share of the Company's Series E Preferred
Stock, in & private placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allotment option with respect 1o the Series E
Depositary Shares was exercised and the Company sold an additional 1,000,000 Series E Depositary Shares
(aggregate liquidation preference of $25,000,0000). Net proceeds to the Company amounted to approximately
$193.8 million. Dividends on the Series E Preferred Stock will accumulate at s rate of 7% of the aggregate
liquidation preference thereof and are payable quarterly, in arrears. Dividends are payable in cash or, at the
Company's option, by the issuance of shares of Common Stock of the Company. The Series E Preferred Stock will
be redecmable at the option of the Company al any time on or after October 18, 2000 at rates commencing with
104%, declining 1o 100% on October 18, 2004,

The Series E Preferred Stock will be convertible at any time afier Doacember 29, 1997, at the option of the
bolder into Commeon Stock of the Company at a conversion price of $60.47 per share of Commoa Stock, subject 10
certain adjustments.

Concurrently with the sal¢ of the Series E Depositary Shares, the Company sold $250 million principal
amoun! at maturity of 8 7/8% Notes due in a private placement transaction. Net proceeds W the Company amounted
to approximately $243 miltion. Cash interest ou the 8 7/8% Notes will be payable semi-annually in arrears oo May
! and November | at a rate of 8 7/8% per anoum. The 8 7/8% Notes will be redecmabie, st the Company's opuon
al any wme on or after November 1, 2002, and are pari passu with all other senlor indebtedness.



The proceeds from the Series E Depositary Shares will be used o finance the coatinued expansion of the
Company's telecommunications networks, including but oot limited to, network electroaics, such as local/loag
distance voice and data switches, and for general corporate purposes, including working capital. The net proceeds
from the offering of the 8 7/8% Notes will be used w fund up to 80% of the cost of acquisition or construction by
the Compagy of telecommunications-related assets.

The Company expects that its available cash, including proceeds from the concurrent offerings of the 8
7/8% Notes and Series E Depositary Shares, and credit availability will be sufficient to fund its current accelerated
and expanded capital depioyment plan. If the Company were o require additional financing, it would seek to obtain
such financing through the sale of public or private debt and/or equity securities or through securing a baok credit
faciliy. There can be no assurance as  the avallability of the terms upon which such finaocing might be availabic
Moreover, the 12 4% Notes, the 11 % % Notes, the 8 7/8% Notes and the Series B Preferred Stock impose cerain
restrictions upon the Company's ability w incur additional indebtedoess or lssue additional prefecred stock .

The Company has from time to time beld, and continues to hold, preliminary discussions with (i) potential
strategic investors (i.c. investors in the same or a related business) who have expressed an interest in making an
investment in or acquiring the Company, (ii) potential joint venmure partners looking toward formation of strategic
alliances that would expand the reach of the Company's network or services without pecessarily requiring an
additional investment in the Company and (iil) companies that represent potential acquisition opportunities for the
Company. There can be no assurance that any agreement with any potential strategic Investor, joint venture parmer
or acquisition targe! will be reached nor docs management believe that any thereof is neceszary to mccessfully
implement its strategic plans.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation has not had & significant impact on the Company's operations over the past 3 years.

The information set forth above in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations” includes forward-looking statements that involve numerous risks and uncertainties. The Comparny's
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements as a result of certain
factors, including those set forth in the secsion entitled “Risk Factors * in the Company ‘s Annual Report on Form [0-
K for the year ended December 31, 1996,



PART . OTHER INFORMATION

Itern 1. Lepal Proceedings

On June 20, 1997, two purported class action complaints were filed in the Court of Chancery of the State
of Delaware in and for New Castle County respectively by TAAM Associates, Inc. and David and Chaile Steinberg
(the “Complaints”), purported siockholders of DIGEX on behalf of all non-affiliated common stockholders of
DIGEX against Intermedia, DIGEX and the Directors of DIGEX (the “DIGEX Directors ). The Complaints allege
that the DIGEX Directors violated their fiduciary duties to the public stockbolders of DIGEX by agreeing 10 vote
favor of the Merger and that Intermedia knowingly aided and abetted such viclation by offeriag to retain DIGEX
management in their present positions and consenting to stock option grants Lo certain execative officers of DIGEX
Tobe Complaints sought preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining the Merger but 0o applicstions were made
for such injunctions prior to consummation of the Merger on July 11, 1997, In addition, the Complaints seek cash
damages from the DIGEX Directors. In August 1997, a motion to dismiss the Complaints was filed on behalf of
Iotermedia, DIGEX and the DIGEX Directors.

These cases #re in their very early stages and oo assurance ¢AQ be given as Lo their ultimate ouicome.
Intermedia, afier consultation with its counsel, believes that there are meritorious-factual and legal defenses to the
claims in the Complaints. Intermedia intends o defend vigorously the clalms in the Complaints.

Item 2. Changes ip Securjties

On July 9, 1997, the Company sold 6,000,000 Series D Depositary Shares (aggregate liquidation
preference $150,000,000) each representing a ope-hundredth interest in a share of the Company's Series D
Preferred Stock, in a private placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allotment option with respect to
the Series D Depositary Shares was exercised and the Company sold ao additional 900,000 Series D Depositary
Shares (aggregate liquidation preference of $22,500,000). Net proceeds to the Company amounted to approximaiely
$167 million. Dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock will accumulate at a rate of 7% of the aggregate
liquidation preference thereof and are payable quarterly, in arrears. Dividends are payable in cash or, at the
Company's option, by the issuance of shares of Common Stock of the Company. The Series D Preferred Stock will
be redeemable at the option of the Company at any time on or after July 19, 2000 at rates commensing with 104 %,
declining to 100% on July 19, 2004.

The Senes D Preferred Stock is convertble, at the optian of the bolder, tato Comana Stk of tw
Company at a conversion price of $I8 90 per ahare of Common Stovk, SWRHRY B VIR Bluawera

The Nettea 1 Diopanitary Shses weve fasued and s0id to the initial purchasers pursuant to ab exemption
Thu teguainn provided by Secthon 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the *Act®). Each of the
vuual purchasers of the Series D Depositary Shares represented to the Company, among other things, that (i) it 15 2
qualified instimtional buyer (“QIB*), (il) It is not acquiring the Series D Depositary Shares with a view to any
distribution thereof that would violate the Act or e securities laws of any state of the Unlted States or any other
applicable jurisdiction, (iii) it will be re-offering and reselling the Serics D Depositary Shares only o QIBs in
reliance oo the exemption from the registration requirements of the Act provided by Rule 144A and 10 accredited
wnvestors in a privale placement exempt from the registration requirements of the Act, and (iv) oo form of genera)
solicitation or general advertising has been or will be used by & or any of its representatives in connection with the
offer and sale of any of the Depositary Shares.

On October 30, 1997, the Company sold 7,000,000 Series E Depositary Shares (aggregate liquidation
preference $175,000,000) each represepting & one-hundredth interest in a share of the Company's Series E Preferred
Stock, in a private placement transaction. Subsequent thereto, the over-allotment option with respect 1o the Series E
Depositary Shares was exercised and the Comparty sold ao sdditiona? 1,000,000 Series E Depositary Shares
(aggregate liquidation preference of $25,000,0000). Net proceeds 1o the Company amounied %o approximately

$193 8 million. Dividends on the Series E Preferred Stock will accumulate at a rate of 7% of the aggregate
liquidation preference thereof and are payable quarterly, in arrears. Dividends are payable o cash or, at the
Company's option, by the issuance of shares of Common Stock of the Company. The Series E Preferved Stock wll
be redeemable at the option of the Company at any time on or afier October 18, 2000 at rates commencing With

104 %, declining to 100% on October 18, 2004



The Series E Preferred Stock will be convertible at any time after December 29, 1997, at the optioa of the
holder, wto Common Stock of the Company at a conversion price of $60.47 per share of Common Stock, subject to
cerawn adjustments

The Series E Depositary Shares were issued and sold to the initial purchasers pursuant to an exemption
from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act™). Each of the
uutial purchasers of the Series E Depositary Shares represented to the Company, among other things, that (i) 1t1s a
qualified instirutional buyer ("QIB "), (ii} it is pot acquiring the Series E Depositary Shares with a view 10 any
distribution thereof that would violate the Act or the securities iaws of any state of the United Stales or any other
apphicable jurisdiction, (Lki) it will be re-offering and reselling the Series E Depositary Shares oaly 1o QIBs in
reliance on the exemption from the registration requirements of the Act provided by Rule 144 A, pursuant 10 offers
and sales that occur outside the United States within the meaning of Regulation S and to accredited investors w a
private placement exempt from the registration requirements of the Act, and (iv) no form of general solicitation or
general advertising has been or will be used by it or any of its representatives in connection with the offer and sale
of any of the Senes E Deposiary Shares.

Item 3. Defaults Upog Senior Secuities

None
Item 4. Submission of Maners 10 a Vote of Securitv Hojders
None

Item 5. Other Information
None.

Itern 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Exhibis
umber Exhibit

21 Agrecment and Plan of Merger among the Company, Daylight Acquisiton Corp
and DIGEX, dated June 4, 1997. Exhibit 99 (¢} (1) to the Company’s Schedule
14D-t filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 1], 1997 is
incorporated herein by reference.

31 Restated Certificase of Incorporation of the Company, together with all
amendments thereto.

3.2 By-laws of the Company, together with all amendmeats thereto.  Exhibit 3.2 to
tbe Company’s Form $-1, filed with the Commission on November 8, 1993,
(No. 33-69053) is incorporated berein by reference.

4.1 Indenture, dated as of October 30, 1997, by and berween the Company and
SunTrust Back, Central Florida, National Association, as Trustee. Exhibit 4.1 10
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission oo
November 6, 1997 {the “Form 8-K ), is incorporated herein by reference

42 Centificate of Designation of Voting Power, Desighation Preferences and
Retative, Participating, Optional and other Rights and Qualificatioas, Lumtations
and Restrictions of 7% Series E Junior Cogvertible Preferred Stock of the
Company, filed with the Secretary of Swate of the State of Delsware on October
29, 1997 Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 8-K is incorporated berewn by reference

473 Depasit Agreement, dated as of October 30, 1997, by and among the Company,
Conunental Stock Transfer & trust Company and all the bolders from ume to

21



ume of Depositary Receipts 1ssued thereunder.  Exhibit 4.2 to the Form B K 1s
incorporated herein by reference.

27 ! Financial Daua Schedule (For SEC Use Only)

(b) Repons on Form 8-K

The following reports oo Form B-K were filed during the third quarter of 1997 and through
November 6, 1997:

The Company filed a Current Report on Form §-K, dated July 9, 1997, reporting under liem 2 the
completion of the acquisition of DIGEX, Incorporated by Daylight Acquisition, Corp.. & wholly
owned subsidiary of lotermedis Communications Inc. The Company also reported under liem 5
the completion of the concwrent private placements of its Series D Depositary Shares and 1! % %
Notes.

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K/A, dated July 9, 1997, reporting under liem 7
the financial statements of businesses acquired and the proforma financial information as of March
31, 1997,

The Company filed a Current Report oo Formn 8-K, dated October 24, 1997, reporting under liem
5, the commencement of two copcurrent private offerings of its securities.

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, dated November 6, 1997, reporting under

Item 5, the completion of concurrent private placements of its Series E Depositary Shares and 8
T/E% Notcs
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant bas duly caused this report to be
sigoed on s behalfl by the updersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated November 6, 1997

INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS INC.
{Regustrant)

{s/ Robent M, Manniog
Robert M. Manning
Seaior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

{3/ _Jeanpe M. Walters
Jeanne M. Walters
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer







DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF
INTERMEDIA COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

The following information sets forth the name, age, citizenship, business address, present
principal occupation or employment, and the material occupation, positions, offices or
employment for the past five years of each director and executive office of ICI. Unless
otherwise indicated below, the address of each director and executive officer is Intermedia
Communications Inc., 3625 Queen Palm Drive, Tampa, Florida 33619 and each director and
executive officer is a citizen of the United States of America.

David C. Ruberg, age 51, has been a director, President, and Chief Executive Officer
of ICI since May 1993 and Chairman of the Board since March 1994. He was an independent
consultant to the computer and telecommunications industries from September 1991 to May
1993, Mr. Ruberg was a Vice President and General Manager of Data General Corporation
from 1989 until September 1991,

John C, Baker, age 47, has been a director of ICI since February 1988. Mr. Baker has
been the pnncipal of Baker Capital Corp., a private equity investment firm, since October 1995,
He was a Senior Vice President of Patricof & Co. Ventures, Inc., a mulli-national venture
capital firm from |988 untii September 1995. Mr. Baker is currently a director of Xpedite
Systems, Inc., FORE Systems, Inc. and Resource Bancshares Mortgage Group, Inc., all of
which are publicly traded corporations.

George F. Knapp, age 65, has been a director of ICI since February 1988. He has been
a principal of Communications Investment Group, an investment banking firm, since June 1990.
From January 1988 until June 1990, Mr. Knapp was an associate at MBW Management, Inc.,
a venture capital firm. Prior to that time, he held various executive positions at ITT Corporation
and 1ts subsidianes, most recently as Corporate Vice President of ITT Corporation. Mr. Knapp
1s currently a member of the Manhattan College Board of Trustees and Chairman of its Finance
Committee.

Philip A, Campbel], age 60, has been a director of IC] since September 1996. Mr.
Campbell 1etired from Bel! Atlantic Inc. as director, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
in 1991. Previously, he was President of New Jersey Bell, Indiana Bell, and Bell Atlantic
Network Services. Mr. Campbell is currently a director of Xpedite Systems, Inc., a publicly
traded corporation.
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Robert A. Rousc, age 48, has served as Executive Vice President, Operations and
Systems of 1CI since October 1996. Prior to joining ICI, Mr. Rouse was Senior Vice President
of Concert, a joint venture company of British Telecommunications and MCI Communications
Company where he managed the engineering and operations of the Concert Global Networks
from 1991 to 1996. Mr. Rouse held various executive management positions at MCI from 1986
o 1991, with responsibilities including product and network design, network and sysiems
development, network planning, operations, provisioning, and customer services. From 969
to 1986, he managed several subsidiaries of Rochester Telephone, now a part of Frontier
Corporation. Mr. Rouse received his B.A. from the University of Rochester in 1971.

James F. Geiger, age 38, has served as Senior Vice President, Sales of ICI since August
1995. Mr. Geiger served as the Vice President of Alternate Channel Sales from March 1995
through August 1995 and as the President of each of FiberNet USA, Inc. and FiberNet
Telecommunications Cincinnati, Inc. (collectively, "FiberNet”) since their inception. Mr.
Geiger was one of the founding principals of FiberNet, initially serving ac Vice President of
Sales & Marketing and subsequently serving as President. From April 1989 to April 1990, Mr.
Geiger served as Director of Marketing for Associated Communications, a cellular telephone
company. Mr. Geiger received his B.S. in accounting from Clarkson University.

Robert M. Manning, age 37, has served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
of IC! since September 1996, Mr. Manning joined ICI from D'MX Inc., a Los Angeles-based
cable programmer, where he was Executive Vice President, Senior Financial Executive and a
director of DMX-Europe from October 1991 to September 1996. Prior to his tenure at DMX,
Mr. Manning spent ten years in the investment banking field in corporate finance and mergers
and acquisitinns, most recently with Oppenheimer and Co., Inc. as Vice President, Corporale
Finance, managing their Entertainment/Leisure Time Group from October 1988 w0 October
1991. Mr. Manning is a graduate of Williams College, Williamstown, Massachusetts.

Robenrt A, Rub, age 52, has served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources of IC]
since March 1, 1996. From January 1991 through February 1996, Dr. Ruh was an independent
consultant, specializing in executive and organization development. From 1975 to 1990, Dr.
Ruh held executive positions in human resources with Baxter Healthcare Corporation and
American Hospital Supply Corporation. From 1973 to 1975, Dr. Ruh served as a consulting
psychologist for Medina and Thompson, specializing in executive assessment, selection, and
development. From 1970 to 1972, Dr. Ruh was on the corporate organization development staff
at Coming Glass Works. Dr. Ruh served as Assistant Professor of psychology at Michigan State
University from 1970 to 1972. Dr. Ruh received a B.A. in psychology from Valparaiso
University in 1966. He received an M.A. (1967) and a Ph.D. (1970) in industrial/organization
psychology from Michigan State University.
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Barbara L. Samson, age 34, a co-founder of ICI, has served as a Vice President since
June 1987, and as a Senior Vice President since October 1992. She served as President of ICI's
predecessor from September 1986 0 June 1987. Ms. Samson recently served two terms as
Chairman of the Association of Local Telecommunications Services (ALTS), a national
competiive access provider trade associstion. Ms. Samson received her B.S. in
telecommunications from the University of Florida and her M.B. A. from the University of South

Florida.'

Michagl A, VYiren, age 55, has served as Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning,
Regulatory, and Industry Relations of ICI since October 1996. Prior to his present position, he
was Senior Vice President, Engineering and Information Systems from January 1996 to October
1996 and served as Vice President, Product Development from December 1992 through January
1996. Dr. Viren joined ICI in February 1991 as Director of Product Development. Dr. Viren
worked for GTE Corporation from August 1986 to February 1991 as a specialist in wide and
local area networking. Prior w that he operated his own consulting firm concentrating in WAN
and LAN design; was Senior Vice President of Criterion, Inc., an economic consulting firm in
Dallas, Texas; and served as the Director of the Utility Division of the Missouri Public Service
Commission. Dr. Viren taught economics for 10 years, most recently as an Associate Professor
of Economics at the University of Missouri-Columbia and prior to that a the University of
Kansas. Dr. Viren received a Ph.D. in economics from the University of California-Santa
Barbara and a B.S. in mechanical engineering from the California State University at Long

Beach.

Patricia A, Kurlin, age 42, has served as Vice President, General Counsel of IC] since
June 1996. From September 1995 until June 1996, Ms. Kurlin served as Corporate Counset and
served as Director of Governmental and Legal Affairs for ICI from September 1993 w
September 1995,  Prior to0 joining ICI, Ms. Kurlin served as Senior Telecommunications
Atomney at the Florida Public Service Commission from May 1990 to September 1993, Ms.
Kuriin received her J.D. from the Florida State University and a B.S. degree from the
University of South Florida.

Jeanne M. Walters, age 34, has served as Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of
ICI since May 1993. From November 1992 until May 1993 she served as Assistant Controller.
From June 1988 to November 1992, Ms. Walters was an auditor at Emst & Young LLP, a
certified public accounting firm in Tampa, Florida. Ms. Walters received her B.S. in accounting
and an M.B.A. from Wilkes University. She is licensed in the State of Florida as a certified

public accountant.

'Commencing April |, 1997, Ms. Samson has been on a sabbatical leave 1n order 10 chair
the Flonda NetDay 2000 program.
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